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History Repeats Itself

Cano Petroleum, Inc, (Amex: CFW) focuses on
secondary and enhanced oil recovery techniques to
extract additional oil from mature onshore U.S. fields.
3ased in Fort Worth, Texas, Cano employs a unique
husiness model that enables the company to exploit
our country's proven reservoirs — assets with marginal
production that still contain significant reserves that
can be produced through enhanced oil recovery (EOR).
Increased energy prices, coupled with adva 3 1n il

covery lechnology, position Cano to capitalize on
these opportunitics in order to build shareholder value,
while at the same {ime help reduce the United States'
dependence on foreign oil sources.

Cano's forward-thinking strategy has put it in the
enviable position of a “first-mover,” able to take
advantage of early opportunities before signilicant
competition appears. The Company has assembled a
highly qualified and experienced team and has already
acquired at attractive prices a portfolio of quality oil and
gas assets it believes hold great potential for increased
production through secondary waterflood or EOR.
Cano benefits from decades of EOR research and
development, sponsared and performed by various

departments of the U.S. government, universities, and

major oil and oil service companies,



LCANOPEROLEM

DEAR SHAREHQOLDERS NOVEMBER 8. 2007

Each year, | begin this letter by thanking you for allowing me to serve as your

chairman and CEQ, and each year, [ mean it more. Cano Petroleum, Inc. is
one of the most dynamic oil and gas companies in the U.S., and I never tire of
the exciting challenges that each day brings. We recently celebrated our third

anniversary as a company, and | believe we have a bright future ahead.

Fiscal 2007 was a transitional year for Cano. With capital RESERVE GROWTH
MBOE

expenditures of $53 million, we enjoyed production

growth of 84% and reserve growth of 47%. We drilled 80000

000

80 wells and have positioned ourselves for solid growth
in the coming year.

30000
We expect fiscal 2008 to be a defining year for our
company. As [ write this letter, we are injecting water 20000

in our waterflood in the Panhandle field. We also have 10000

commenced the pilot waterflood in our Desdemona field 0

‘05 06 07
FISCAL YFAR

and the ASP pilot in our Nowata field. In addition, we

have begun the drilling program in our Cato field. This year we plan to drill

PV-10 GROWTH

fin thousands — pre-tax) 169 wells with a capital budget of $78 million. We expect to see positive results

oo from these initiatives within the next 6 to 12 months.

o None of this progress would be possible without our most important asset — our
380 people. We have strengthened our management team in the past year, and today
3600 your company is led by the most talented group of executives [ have ever had the
5400 pleasure of working with. We are grateful for your support, and our mission —

00 to maximize shareholder value while reducing America’s dependence on foreign
oil — extends from our corporate headquarters right down to our field team
10

05 ‘06 07

AL VAR members. Your interests are also represented by an active, engaged Board of

Directors, and you should be very proud of them.
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PRODUCTION : : LA : :

GROWTH A glance at your daily newspaper will tell you that we live in a volatile, uncertain

MBOE world. Qil is vital to our lifestyle and our economy, yet the majority of it comes
600

from overseas — often from places where certain forces are actively working
against our national interests. Cano’s focus on increasing domestic production is
our part in an industry-wide effort to build energy independence for America, but
that’s a big job. While we work toward that goal, [ want to acknowledge the brave

contributions of our men and women in uniform who put their lives on the line

every day to protect our way of life.

0 06 07 I’m also proud of our industry’s efforts to produce energy in ways that continue to
FISCAL YEAR
become more environmentally friendly, Cano, like all other oil and gas producers,

is making great strides in adopting “green” practices and leaving things better than

%at was Old we found them. [t may be our most important
legacy to our children and grandchildren,

Our industry’s greatest challenge, in the long

term, will be to develop new energy

. ® sources that don’t depend on fossil
| ©lﬂh@ma tuels. It is my belief that we will meet that challenge, but [ don’t know

New Mexico - i o of any technologies currently under development that will have a major

impact in the foreseeable future. Fortunately, we still have decades of

oil in the ground, and much of it is beneath American soil. Every barrel

we can produce here is one less barrel that we have to import. That
is why we at Cano are working as hard as we can to increase our

production and keep America strong.

@ Cano Headquarters Co L .
A Again, it is an honor and privilege to serve as your Chairman and CEQ.

@ Areas of Operation .
Thank you for your confidence, and | look forward to seeing you all at the annual

shareholders’ meeting,

Cano’s focus on increasing
domestic production is our

part in an industry-wide o~

effort to build energy
f Jeft Johnson
in ndence for America.
dePe dence Chairman and CEQ




B al
PR S STt

RN




CANOPETROLEUM

CANO PETROLEUM'S MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES ARE
PROUD TO SUPPORT AND SALUTE THE UNITED STATES
MILITARY OVERSEAS AND AT HOME. WE APPRECIATE THE
TREMENDOUS SACRIFICE OUR SERVICE MEN AND WOMEN
MAKE EVERY DAY TO ENSURE OUR FREEDOMS AND QUR
AMERICAN WAY OF LIFE. '

CANO PETROLEUM EMPLOYEES LADDER ENERGY EMPLOYEES DOMINGUEZ ALFONSO RIOS. GABRIEL
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FLOWERS. KEITH
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HODGES. CHEVI
JOHNSON, |ETT
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KOCH. KARLA
MAPLS, ADAM

MARTING, [OHN

MCCAGHREN, A MARK

MCCAGHREN, JIm
MCKINNEY., PATRICK
MORGAN. JON
O'MALLFY. [OHN
RICKETTS. MIKE
ROsS, FAITH
SANFORD, TINA
SMITH, MORRIS B.
SPURGEON. BARBARA
TURNER, SUL
WATKINS, ARIGAIL L.

WILLIAMS, MICHELLE

WOLLISON, JAYME

ANDERSON. JACKI
LSLICK, BARBARA
YOWLER, JUSTIN
HESSLEN. JUSTIN
PARRISH, MICHATL G.

SQUARE ONE EMPLOYEES
LANDRETH. LEE HORNBACK
SANTIBANLZ, |OSEPH

SCITFRN, KEVIN

SCITERN. SCOTT

SHAR®, L£S

SNYDER. |. MARK

CANO PETROLEUM OF
NEW MEXICO EMDPLOYEES
BROOKSTIIRE, GENF

RAMIREZ, DAVIL

RARICK, BRIAN

VAUGHN, BILLY

WO OPERATING EMPLOYEES
ALLEN. JOHN
AMNAYA, FERMIN
ANAVA, JOSE L.
ANAYA, SAMUEL
ANDERSON, GFRALD
CARRASCO. OMAR
CARRLLLO, GUSTAVO
CLARDY. CHAD
CORTEZ, RAUL
DELATORRE, CARLOS

ELIZONDO, HECTOR
GOMEZ, LUCIO
GOMEZ, PAULING
HEFNER, TOMMY
HERNANDEZ, RAYMONIY
HERRERA, ROBERTO
IILLHOUSE. HOMER
KETCHERSIDY, LYNN
KILCREASE, AMANDA
MARIN, LLIS
MCDOWELL. LLAINE
MCFATRIDGL. DOUG
MEDINA, ATANACIO
MEDIMA, ROGELIO

MIERAMONTES JR., MANLEL

MERAMONTES. MANUEL
MERANDA, ENRIQUE
MIRANDA. FRANCISCO
MIRANDA, 'EPE AL
MIRANDA. RAUL
MODESTOL ERWIN
MONTOYA. MARTIN
NICKEL. |OC

OLIVAS, AURELIO
PARKFR, LARRY
PATENO, FERNANDO
PERGESON, DIANE
PHILLIPS, STEVE
PORTILLO. MANUEL
RAMIREZ, ALBERTO
RESENDIZ. MANUEL

RIOs. ANTONIO

RIOS, [AVIER

RIOS, |OSE ALBLRTO
RIOS, JUAN

RICS, MARTIN
RIOS, MIGUEL
RIS, PAULING
RIOS, VICTOR
RIVLRA, DAVID
RIVLRA, ISIDRO
RIVERA, VICTOR
RODRIQUEZ. VICTOR
ROWELL, JASON
SALVARREY, RAFAEL
SILVA, JESUS

SMITH, GLEN
SMITIL STIAWN
SPARKS. DWAYNE
TAMAYO, MARCO
TARANGQ, JERARDO
TICE, BENNIE

TICL BRANDON
TICE. KoRy

TICL. RALPH
TINAIERD, MIGUEL
TOOLEY, MARK
WHITE, SCOTT
WINBORNE, T.|.
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PART |
Items 1 and 2. Business and Properties

Introduction

LRI

Cano Petroleum, Inc. (together with its direct and indirect subsidiaries, “Cano,” “we,” “us,” or the
“Company”’) is a growing independent oil and natural gas company. Our strategy is to acquire assets
with a high ratio of non-proven or proved undeveloped reserves suitable for EOR techniques, primarily
on the onshore United States for a low cost. We intend to convert these non-proven and/or proved
undeveloped reserves into proved producing reserves by applying water, gas or chemical flooding and
other EOR techniques. During our first three years of operations, our primary focus has been to
achieve growth through acquiring interests in existing, mature fields in Texas, Oklahoma and New
Mexico. We believe the portfolio of oil and natural gas properties we have acquired to date provides
suitable opportunities to apply EOR techniques. As of June 30, 2007, we had proved reserves of
66,720 MBOE, of which 8,454 MBOE were proved producing, 2,843 MBOE were proved
non-producing, and 55,423 MBOE were proved undeveloped.

We were organized under the laws of the State of Delaware in May 2003 as Huron Ventures, Inc.
On May 28, 2004, we merged with Davenport Field Unit, Inc.,, an Oklahoma corporation, and certain
other entities. In connection with the Davenport Merger, we changed our name to Cano
Petroleum, Inc. Prior to the Davenport Merger, we were inactive with no significant operations.

See the “Glossary of Selected Qil and Natural Gas Terms” at the end of Items 1 and 2 for the
definition of certain terms in this annual report.

Our Properties

Davenport Properties. In the Davenport Merger, we acquired the Davenport Properties in Lincoln
County, Oklahoma for 5,165,000 shares of our common stock and $1,650,000 cash. Proved reserves as
of June 30, 2007 attributable to the Davenport Properties are 1,488 MBOE, of which 552 MBOE are
proved producing, 936 MBOE are proved non-producing and none of which are proved undeveloped.
As a result of ongoing waterflood operations on the Davenport Properties, current production is
approximatety 80 BOEPD.

Nowata Properties. In September 2004, we acquired the Nowata Properties which consisted of
more than 220 wells producing from the Bartlesville Sandstone for approximately $2.6 million. Proved
reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the Nowata Properties are 1,687 MBOE, all of which are
proved producing. As a result of prior waterflood operations on the Nowata Properties, current net
production is approximately 200 BOEPD.

Desdemona Properties. In March 2005, in connection with our acquisition of Square One
Energy, Inc. for $7.6 million, consisting of $4.0 million in cash and 888,888 shares of our common stock
valued at $3.96 per share, we acquired a 100% working interest in the Desdemona Properties which are
11,068 acres in mature oil fields in central Texas. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the
Desdemona Properties are 11,851 MBOE, of which 711 MBOE are proved producing, 1,175 MBOE
are proved non-producing and 9,965 MBOE are proved undeveloped. Current production is
approximately 205 BOEPD. These properties have not been previously waterflooded and have mineral
rights to the Barnett Shale formation.

Corsicana Properties. During 2005, we began acquiring oil and natural gas leases comprising the
Corsicana Properties. Currently, we have a 100% working interest in 341 acres under lease. The
Corsicana Properties were the subject of a proved surfactant-polymer chemical injection pilot in the
1980s and contain proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 of 205 MBOE, of which 108 MBOE are proved
non-producing and 97 MBOE are proved undeveloped.




Panhandle Properties. On November 29, 2005, through our acquisition of W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc. for an adjusted cash price of $48.4 million and 1,791,320 shares of common stock with an
aggregate value of approximately $8.24 million, we acquired inventory, 10 workover rigs and related
equipment, 480 producing wells, 40 water disposal wells and 380 idle wells on approximately
20,000 acres in Carson, Gray and Hutchinson Counties, Texas which constitute the Panhandle
Properties. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the Panhandle Properties are
35,547 MBOE, of which 3,397 MBOE are proved producing, 32,150 MBOE are proved undeveloped
and none of which is proved non-producing. Current production is approximately 650 BOEPD. We are
progressing with the execution of Phase I of our waterflood development plan at the Cockrell Ranch
Unit. These properties have not been previously waterflooded.

Pantwist Properties. Effective February 1, 2006, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Pantwist LLC,
acquired additional properties, including 167 wells and 2 workover rigs and covering approximately
9,700 acres in the Panhandle field which are the Pantwist Properties for a cash purchase price of
$23.4 million. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the Pantwist Properties are
6,829 MBOE, of which 1,883 MBOE are proved producing, 4,946 MBOE are proved undeveloped and
none of which are proved non-producing, Current production is approximately 350 BOEPD. These
properties have not been previously waterflooded.

New Mexico Properties—New Acquisition. In addition to the capital spending previously discussed,
we completed an acquisition on March 30, 2007 with an effective date of February 1, 2007. Cano Petro
of New Mexico, Inc., our wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired certain oil and gas properties in the
Permian Basin for approximately $8.4 million, after purchase price adjustments. The purchase price
consisted of approximately $6.6 million in cash and 404,204 shares of Cang restricted common stock,
which was valued at $4.59 per share. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the New
Mexico Properties are 9,112 MBOE, of which 224 MBOE are proved producing, 8,264 MBOE are
proved undeveloped and 624 MBOE are proved non-producing. Current production is approximately
50 BOEPD. The New Mexico Properties include roughly 20,000 acres and three fields in Chavez and
Roosevelt Counties, New Mexico. The prime asset is the roughly 15,000 acre Cato Field, which
produces from the historically prolific San Andres formation, which has been successfully waterflooded
in the Permian Basin for over 30 years. We believe that the Cato Field is the largest San Andres field
in the Permian Basin that has never been waterflooded.

Sale of Rick Valley Properties. In July 2004, we acquired the Rich Valley Properties in Grant
County, Oklahoma, through our acquisition of Ladder Companies, Inc., a Delaware corporation, for
approximately $2.2 million. On June 11, 2007, we sold the Rich Valley Properties for net proceeds of
$6.9 million. At the time of sale the production was approximately 110 BOEPD.

Planned Development Program

During our first two years of operations through June 30, 2006, our primary focus was to achieve
growth through acquiring existing, mature oil and natural gas fields. During March 2007, we continued
to acquire properties by acquiring Permian Basin oil and natural gas properties located in New Mexico.
We believe the portfolio of oil and natural gas properties that we have acquired thus far provides
ample opportunities to apply our operational strategy. As of June 30, 2007, we had proved reserves of
66,720 MBOE, of which 8,454 MBOE were proved producing, 2.843 MBOE were proved
non-producing, and 55,423 MBOE were proved undeveloped.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2007, our primary emphasis has been to achieve growth by
developing our existing oil and natural gas properties through development activities such as
waterflooding and EOR technology. We will continue to evaluate potential acquisition targets that are
consistent with our operational strategy, These development activities are more clearly defined later




under “Item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Capital Development Update.”

Waterflood operations and EOR techniques such as surfactant-polymer chemical injection involve
significant capital investment and an extended period of time, generally a year or longer, from the
initial phase of a program until increased production occurs. Generally, surfactant polymer injection is
regarded as more risky compared to waterflood operations. Our ability to successfully convert proved
undeveloped reserves to proved producing reserves will be contingent upon our ability to obtain future
financing and/or raise additional capital, and further, is greatly contingent upon inherent uncertainties
associated with the production of oil and natural gas as well as price volatility. See “Risk Factors.”

Industry Conditiens

We believe significant acquisition opportunities will continue to exist primarily because the major
energy companies and large independents continue to focus their attention and resources toward the
discovery and development of large fields. During the past several years, the major companies have
been divesting themselves of their mature oilfields, a trend management expects will continue. Also, the
recent economics of the oil and natural gas market have improved as prices have risen substantially.
These conditions provide ample opportunities for smaller independent companies to acquire and
exploit mature U.S. ficlds. We expect that there will be increased competition for such properties in the
future.

Our Strategy

s Acquire Strategic Assets. We seek to acquire low-cost assets with a high ratio of non-proven or
proved undeveloped reserves suitable for waterflood and EOR techniques, primarily in the
onshore United States. We believe we have acquired an attractive portfolio of assets to
implement our business plan. We will continue to selectively target potential acquisition
candidates in a disciplined manner, which involves being financially prudent and acquiring assets
that meet our engineering and operational standards. We focus on U.S. operations. Accordingly,
we are not subject to geopolitical uncertainties, dependence on foreign sources and other issues
related to overseas operations.

» No Exploration Risk. Qur portfolio is comprised of mature fields with proven reserves, existing
infrastructure and abundant technical information. Accordingly, our production growth is not
dependent on exploration drilling and the high degree of speculation in making new discoveries.

» Exploit and Develop Existing Properties. We intend to add proved reserves to, and increase
production from, our existing properties through the application of advanced technologies,
including water, gas or chemical flooding and other EOR techniques. We believe that our
management team has a proven track record of exploiting underdeveloped properties to increase
reserves and cash flow.

s Maintain a Low Cost Structure. We intend to maintain a low cost structure through maintaining
efficient operations and operating control. We intend to be the working interest operator in a
high proportion of our properties. This allows us to exercise more control over expenses, capital
allocation, and the timing of development and exploitation activities in our fields. It also enables
us to implement controls over our costs to ensure prudent expenditures. Further, we employ
engineering and geological consultants to aid in evaluating the economic merits of drilling plans
and potential acquisitions on a case-by-case basis rather than staffing these positions, enabling us
to maintain low fixed costs.




September 2006 Financing

On September 6, 2006, we sold in a private placement, preferred stock, common stock and
associated warrants for aggregate gross proceeds of approximately $80.9 million. We used approximately
$68.75 miilion to repay our long-term debt. The remainder was used for working capital and general
corporate purposes, including the funding of our fiscal year 2007 capital budget.

Proved Reserves

The following table summarizes proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 and was prepared according to
the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

N
Nowata Mei‘i‘;o Davenport Desdemona Corsicana Panhandle Pantwist Total
Qil-MBbls . .......... 1,554 7,754 1,403 374 206 26,251 4,686 42,228
Gas - MMcf ......... .. 795 8,151 507 68,862 — 55,776 12,860 146,951
0il Equivalent (MBOE) . .. 1,687 9,112 1,488 11,851 206 35547 6,829 66,720

QOur proved oil and natural gas reserves as of June 30, 2007 have been estimated by Forrest A.
Garb & Associates, Inc., independent petroleum engineers. As defined in the Securities and Exchange
Commission rules, proved reserves are the estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas, and natural
gas liquids which geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be
recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions,
i.e., prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made. Prices include considerations of changes in
existing prices provided only by contractual arrangements, but not on escalations based upon future
conditions. Reservoirs are considered proved if economic productibility is supported by either actual
production or conclusive formation tests. The area of a reservoir considered proved includes (A) that
portion delineated by drilling and defined by gas-oil and/or oil-water contacts, if any; and (B) the
immediately adjoining portions not yet drilled, but which can be reasonably judged as economically
productive on the basis of available geological and engineering data. In the absence of information on
fluid contacts, the lowest known structural occurrence of hydrocarbons controls the lower proved limit
of the reservoir. Reserves which can be produced economically through application of improved
recovery techniques (such as fluid injections) are included in the “proved” classification when successful
testing by a pilot project, or the operations of an installed program in the reservoir, provides support
for the engineering analysis on which the project or program was based. Due to the inherent
uncertainties and the limited nature of reservoir data, such estimates are subject to change as
additional information becomes available. The reserves actually recovered and the timing of production
of these reserves may be substantially different from the original estimate. Revisions result primarily
from new information obtained from development drilling and production history and from changes in
economic factors.

We have not reported our reserves to any federal authority or agency other than with the
Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to our filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission,

Our proved reserves equate {o 66,720 MBOE of proved reserves, consisting of (13%) or
8,454 MBOE of proved producing reserves, 2,843 MBOE (4%) of proved non-producing reserves and
55,423 MBOE (83%) of proved undeveloped reserves.

Reserves were estimated using crude oil and natural gas prices and production and development
costs in effect on June 30, 2007. On June 30, 2007, the crude oil and natural gas prices were $70.47 per
barrel and $6.40 per Mcf, respectively. The values reported may not necessarily reflect the fair market
value of the reserves.




Production/Operating Revenues

The following table presents sales, unit prices and average unit costs for the years ended June 30,
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Years Ended June 39,

2007 2006 2005

Operating Revenues(1): (000%s) .................. $28,353 $15860 $3,764
Sales:

Oil (MBbIs). . ... 274 180 75

Gas (MMcf) .. ... o 1,313 531 18

MBOE . ... . . e 493 268 78
Average Price(1):

Oil ($/Bbl) ... ... .. e $ 6195 § 6332 $48.98

Gas ($/Mcf) . .. .o $§ 867 § 838 § 537

$/BOE ... e $ 5755 §$ 59.03 34833
Expense (per BOE):
Lease operating . ...... ... .. it $ 21.78 § 2241 $26.56
Production and ad valorem taxes .. ............... $ 500 $ 430 § 287
General and administrative expense, net ... ......... $ 2587 § 2837 $61.03
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ... ........ $ 874 § 688 § 476
Total ... o $ 6139 § 6196 §95.22

(1) Excludes the effect of commodity price risk activities.

Productive Wells and Acreage

The following table shows our gross and net interest in productive oil and natural gas working
interest wells as of September 6, 2007. Productive wells include wells currently producing or capable of
production.

Gross(1l) Net(2)
il % Total 0il % Total
1,864 162 2,026 1,778 145 1,923

(1) “Gross” refers to wells in which we have a working interest.

(2) “Net” refers to the aggregate of our percentage working interest in gross wells before royalties or
other payout, as appropriate.

We operate all of the gross producing wells presented above. As of September 6, 2007, we had no
wells containing multiple completions.

On September 6, 2007, we had total acreage of 72,888 gross acres and 69,493 net acres, all of
which was considered developed acres. Developed acreage is assigned to producing wells. Undeveloped
acreage is acreage under lease, permit, contract or option that is not in the spacing unit for a
producing well, including leasehold interests identified for exploitation drilling.




Drilling Activity

The following table shows our drilling activities on a gross basis for the years ended June 30, 2007,
2006 and 2005. We own 100% working interests.

Years Ended June 30,
2007 2006 2005
Gross(l)  Gross(l}) Gross(l)

Development
Gas(2y. ... 19 1 3
O3 ... 61 — —
Abandoned(4) ....... ... ... ... ..o .., 3 — =
Total . ... ... ... ... e 111 1 3

(1) “Gross” is the number of wells in which we have a working interest.
(2) “Gas” means natural gas wells that are either currently producing or are capable of production.
(3) *Oil” means producing oil wells.

(4) “Abandoned” means wells that were dry when drilled or were abandoned without production
casing being run.

Present Activities

Our present development activities primarily involve implementing waterflood injection at the
Panhandle, Desdemona and Corsicana Properties; chemical injection at the Nowata Properties; drilling
and completing wells in the Barnett Shale formation of the Desdemona Properties; and initiating well
workovers and return to production activities at the New Mexico Properties. These activities are
discussed in greater detail at “Item 7 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations—Capital Development Update.”

Delivery Commitment

At June 30, 2007, we had no delivery commitments with our purchasers and currently have no
delivery commitments.

Title/Mortgages

Our oil and natural gas properties are subject to customary royalty interests, liens incident to
operating agreements, liens for current taxes and other burdens, including other mineral encumbrances
and restrictions as well as mortgage liens in accordance with our Credit Agreement. We do not believe
that any of these burdens materially interferes with the use of our properties in the operation of our
business. See Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements regarding the mortgages that we have
granted under the Credit Agreement on all of our oil and natural gas properties.

We believe that we have generally satisfactory title to or rights in all of our producing properties.
When we make acquisitions, we make title investigations, but may not receive title opinions of local
counsel until we commence drilling operations. We believe that we have satisfactory title to all of our
other assets. Although title to our properties is subject to encumbrances in certain cases, we believe
that none of these burdens will materially detract from the value of our properties or from our interest
therein or will materially interfere with our use in the operation of our business.




Acquisitions

We regularly pursue and evaluate acquisition opportunities (including opportunities to acquire oil
and natural gas properties or related assets or entitics owning oil and natural gas properties or related
assets and opportunities to engage in mergers, consolidations or other business combinations with
entities owning oil and natural gas properties or related assets) and at any given time may be in various
stages of evaluating such opportunities. Such stages may take the form of internal financial and oil and
natural gas property analysis, preliminary due diligence, the submission of an indication of interest,
preliminary negotiations, negotiation of a letter of intent or negotiation of a definitive agreement.

Competition

We face competition from other oil and natural gas companies in all aspects of our business,
including acquisition of producing propertics and oil and natural gas leases, and cbtaining goods,
services and labor. Many of our competitors have substantially greater financial and other resources.
Factors that affect our ability to acquire producing properties include available funds, available
information about the property and our standards cstablished for minimum projected return on
investment.

Customers

We sell our crude oil and natural gas production to several independent purchasers. During the
years ended June 30, 2007, 10% or more of our total revenues were attributable to four customers
representing 36%, 18%, 17% and 16% of total operating revenue, respectively. Title to the produced
quantities transfers to the purchaser at the time the purchaser collects or receives the quantities. Prices
for such production are defined in sales contracts and are readily determinable based on certain
publicly available indices. The purchasers of such production have historically made payment for crude
oil and natural gas purchases within thirty-five days of the end of each production month. We
periodically review the differcnce between the dates of production and the dates we collect payment for
such production to ensure that receivables from those purchasers are collectible. All transportation
costs are accounted for as a reduction of oil and natural gas sales revenue.

Governmental Regulation

Our operations are subject to extensive and continually changing regulation affecting the oil and
natural gas industry. Many departments and agencies, both federal and state, are authorized by statute
to issue, and have issued, rules and regulations binding on the oil and natural gas industry and its
individual participants. The failure to comply with such rules and regulations can result in substantial
penalties. The regulatory burden on the oil and natural gas industry increases our cost of doing
business and, consequently, affects our profitability. We do not believe that we are affected in a
significantly different manner by these regulations than are our competitors.

The production of crude oil and natural gas is subject to regulation under a wide range of state
and federal statutes, rules, orders and regulations. State and federal statutes and regulations require
permits for drilling operations, drilling bonds, and reports concerning operations. Texas, Oklahoma and
New Mexico, the states in which we own and operate properties, have regulations governing
conservation matters, including provisions for the unitization or pooling of oil and natural gas
properties, the establishment of maximum rates of production from oil and natural gas wells, the
spacing of wells, and the plugging and abandonment of wells and removal of related production
equipment. Texas, Oklahoma and New Mexico also restrict production to the market demand for crude
oil and natural gas. These regulations can limit the amount of oil and natural gas we can produce from
our wells, limit the number of wells, or limit the locations at which we can conduct drilling operations.




Moreover, each state generally imposes a production or severance tax with respect to production and
sale of crude oil, natural gas and gas liquids within its jurisdiction.

Transportation and Sale of Natural Gas

Our natural gas sales were approximately 44% of our total sales during the year ended June 30,
2007. The interstate transportation and sale for resale of natural gas is subject to federal regulation,
including transportation rates and various other matters, by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(“FERC?”). Federal wellhead price controls on all domestic natural gas were terminated on January I,
1993 and none of our natural gas sales prices are currently subject to FERC regulation. We cannot
predict the impact of future government regulation on any natural gas operations.

Environmental Regulations

Our operations are subject to numerous stringent and complex laws and regulations at the federal,
state and local levels governing the discharge of materials into the environment or otherwise relating to
human health and environmental protection. These laws and regulations may, among other things,
require acquisition of a permit before drilling or development commences, restrict the types, quantities
and concentrations of various materials that can be released into the environment in connection with
development and production activities, and limit or prohibit construction or drilling activities in certain
ecologically sensitive and other protected areas. Failure to comply with these laws and regulations or to
obtain or comply with permits may result in the assessment of administrative, civil and criminal
penalties, imposition of remedial requirements and the imposition of injunctions to force future
compliance. Our business and prospects could be adversely affected to the extent laws are enacted or
other governmental action is taken that prohibits or restricts our development and production activities
or imposes environmental protection requirements that result in increased costs to us or the oil and
natural gas industry in general.

We conduct our development and production activities to comply with all applicable environmental
regulations, permits and lease conditions, and we monitor subcontractors for environmental compliance.
While we believe our operations conform to those conditions, we remain at risk for inadvertent
noncompliance, conditions beyond our control and undetected conditions resulting from activities by
pricr owners or operators of properties in which we own interests.

Our insurance policies provide for $1,000,000 general liability coverage for bodily injury and
property damage including pollution, underground resources, blow out and cratering. We also have
$25,000,000 umbrella coverage in excess of the general liability, including pollution and automobile
liability. There is a $3,000,000 policy for control of well, redrill, and pollution on drilling wells and a
$1,000,000 policy for control of well, redrill and pollution on producing wells.

Occupational Safety Regulation

We are subject to various federal and state {aws and regulations intended to promote occupational
health and safety. Although all of our wells are drilled by independent subcontractors under our
“footage” or “day rate” drilling contracts, we have adopted environmental and safety policies and
procedures designed to protect the safety of our own supervisory staff and to monitor all subcontracted
operations for compliance with applicable regulatory requirements and lease conditions, including
environmental and safety compliance. This program inctudes regular field inspections of our drill sites
and producing wells by members of our operations staff and internal assessments of our compliance
procedures. We consider the cost of compliance a manageable and necessary part of our business.




Federal, State or Native American Lease

Our operations on federal, state or Native American oil and natural gas leases are subject to
numerous restrictions, including nondiscrimination statutes. Such operations must be conducted
pursuant to certain on-site security regulations and other permits and authorizations issued by the
Bureau of Land Management, Minerals Management Service and other agencies.

Employees

As of September 6, 2007, we and our wholly-owned subsidiaries had 114 employees, all of whom
are full-time employees. None of our employees are represented by a union. We have never
experienced an interruption in operations from any kind of labor dispute, and we consider the working
relationships among the members of our staff to be excellent.

Principal Executive Offices

Our principal executive offices are located at The Burnett Plaza, 801 Cherry Street, Suite 3200,
Fort Worth, TX 76102. Qur principal executive offices consist of 24,303 square feet and are subject to a
lease that expires on April 20, 2011. See Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements regarding our
lease payments now and in the future,

Internet Address/Availability of Reports

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are made available free of charge on our website at
http://www.canopetro.com as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material
with, or otherwise furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Glossary Of Selected OQil and Natural Gas Terms

“Bbl.” One stock tank barrel, or 42 U S, gallons liquid volume, used herein in reference to crude
oil or other lquid hydrocarbons.

“BOE.” Barrels of oil equivalent. BTU equivalent of six thousand cubic feet (Mcf) of natural gas
which is equal to the BTU equivalent of one barrel of oil.

“BOEPD” BOE per day.
“BTU.” British Thermal Unit.
“BWIPD.” Barrels of water injected per day.

“DRY HOLE.” A development or exploratory well found to be incapable of producing either oil
or natural gas in sufficient quantities to justify completion as an oil or natural gas well.

“ENHANCED OIL RECOVERY” or “EOR” The use of certain methods, such as waterflooding
or gas injection, into existing wells to increase the recover from a reservoir.

“EXPLORATORY WELL” A well drilled to find and produce oil or natural gas in an unproved
area, to find a new reservoir in a field previously found to be productive of oil or natural gas in
another reservoir, or to extend a known reservoir.

“FLUID INJECTION” Pumping fluid into a producing formation to increase or maintain reservoir
pressure and, thus, production.

“GROSS ACRES” or “GROSS WELLS.” The total number of acres or wells, as the case may be,
in which a working or any type of royalty interest is owned.




“MBbBL.” One thousand Bbls,

“Mct.” One thousand cubic feet of natural gas.
“MCFPD.” Mcf per day.

“MMBOE.” One million BOE.

“MMectf.” One million cubic feet of natural gas.
“MMCFPD.” MMcf per day.

“NET ACRES.” The sum of the fractional working or any type of royalty interests owned in gross
acres.

“PRIMARY RECOVERY.” The period of production in which oil moves from its reservoir
through the wellbore under naturally occurring reservoir pressure.

“PRODUCING WELL” or “PRODUCTIVE WELL.” A well that is capable of producing oil or
natural gas in economic quantities.

“PROVED DEVELOPED RESERVES.” The oil and natural gas reserves that can be expected to
be recovered through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods. Additional oil and
natural gas expected to be obtained through the application of fluid injection or other improved
recovery techniques for supplementing the natural forces and mechanisms of primary recovery should
be included as “proved developed reserves™ only after testing by a pilot project or after the operation
of an installed program has confirmed through production response that increased recovery will be
achieved.

“PROVED RESERVES.” The estimated quantities of crude oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids
that geological and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future
years from known reservoirs under existing economic and operating conditions,

“PROVED UNDEVELOPED RESERVES.” The oil and natural gas reserves that are expected to
be recovered from new wells on undrilled acreage or from existing wells where a relatively major
expenditure is required for recompletion. Reserves on undrilled acreage are limited to those drilling
units offsetting productive units that are reasonably certain of production when drilled. Proved reserves
for other undrilled units can be claimed only where it can be demonstrated with certainty that there is
continuity of production from the existing productive formation. Under no circumstances shoutd
estimates for proved undeveloped reserves be attributable to any acreage for which an application of
fluid injection or other improved recovery techniques is contemplated, unless such techniques have
been proved effective by actual tests in the area and in the same reservoir.

“ROYALTY INTEREST” An interest in an oil and natural gas property entitling the owner to a
share of oil and natural gas production free of production costs.

“SECONDARY RECOVERY.” The recovery of oil and natural gas through the injection of liquids
or gases into the reservoir, supplementing its natural energy. Secondary recovery methods are often
applied when production slows due to depletion of the natural pressure.

“STANDARDIZED MEASURE.” Under the Standardized Measure, future cash flows are
estimated by applying year-end prices, adjusted for fixed and determinable changes, to the estimated
future production of year-end proved reserves. Future cash inflows are reduced by estimated future
production and development costs based on period-end costs to determine pretax cash inflows. Future
income taxes are computed by applying the statutory tax rate to the excess inflows over a company’s tax
basis in the associated properties.
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Tax credits, net operating loss carryforwards and permanent differences also are considered in the
future tax calculation. Future net cash inflows after income taxes are discounted using a 10% annual
discount rate to arrive at the Standardized Measure.

“SURFACTANT-POLYMER FLOODING, SP FLOODING, ALKALINE SURFACTANT-
POLYMER FLOODING AND ASP FLOODING.” Enhanced oil recovery techniques that can be
employed to recover additional oil over and above primary and secondary recovery methods. Low
concentrations of surfactants, polymers and other additives that are added to the waterflood operations
already in place to “clean” stubborn or hard to reach oil from the reservoir, much like soap in a greasy
dish pan.

“TERTIARY RECOVERY.” The use of improved recovery methods that not only restores
formation pressure but also improves oil displacement or fluid flow in the reservoir and removes
additional oil after secondary recovery.

“WATERFLOODING” A secondary recovery operation in which water is injected into the
producing formation in order to maintain reservoir pressure and sweep oil into the producing wells.

“WORKING INTEREST.” The operating interest (not necessarily as operator) that gives the
owner the right to drill, produce and conduct operating activities on the property and a share of
production, subject to all royalties, overriding royalties and other burdens, and to all exploration,
development and operational costs including all risks in connection therewith.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Our business involves a high degree of risk. Investors should carefully consider the risks and
uncertainties described below. Each of the following risks may materially and adversely affect our business,
results of operations and financial condition. These risks may cause the market price of our common stock
to decline, which may cause you to lose all or a part of the money you paid to buy our common stock.
Risks Related to Our Industry

Oil and natural gas prices are volatile. A decline in prices could adversely affect our financial position,
financial results, cash flows, access to capital and ability to grow.

Our revenues, operating results, profitability and future rate of growth depend primarily upon the
prices we receive for the oil and natural gas we produce and sell. Prices also affect the amount of cash
flow available for capital expenditures and our ability to borrow money or raise additional capital.
Historically, the markets for oil and natural gas have been volatile and they are likely to continue to be
volatile. Wide fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices may result from relatively minor changes in the
supply of and demand for oil and natural gas, market and political uncertainty and other factors that
are beyond our control, including:

« worldwide and domestic demands and supplies of oil and natural gas;
« weather conditions;

» the price and availability of alternative fucls;

* the availability of pipeline capacity;

« the price and level of foreign imports;

» domestic and foreign governmental regulations and taxes;

+ the ability of the members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries to agree to
and maintain oil price and production controls;

11




= political instability or armed conflict in oil-producing regions; and
* the overall economic environment.

These factors and the volatility of the energy markets make it extremely difficult to predict future
oil and natural gas price movements with any certainty. Declines in oil and natural gas prices would not
only reduce revenue, but could reduce the amount of oii and natural gas that we can produce
economically and, as a result, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of
operations and reserves,

Government regulation may adversely affect our business and results of operations.

Oil and natural gas operations are subject to various and numerous federal, state and local
government regulations, which may be changed from time to time. Matters subject to regulation include
discharge permits for drilling operations, drilling bonds, reports concerning operations, the spacing of
wells, injection of substances, unitization and pooling of properties and taxation. From time to time,
regulatory agencies have imposed price controls and limitations on production by restricting the rate of
flow of oil and patural gas wells below actual production capacity in order to conserve supplies of oil
and natural gas. There are federal, state and local laws and regulations primarily relating to protection
of human health and the environment applicable to the development, production, handling, storage,
transportation and disposal of oil and natural gas, by-products thereof and other substances and
materials produced or used in connection with oil and natural gas operations. The transportation and
storage of refined products include the risk that refined products and other hydrocarbons may be
suddenly or gradually released into the environment, potentially causing substantial expenditures for a
response action, significant government penalties, liability to government agencies and private parties
for natural resources damages, personal injury, or property damages and significant business
interruption. We own or lease a number of properties that have been used to store or distribute refined
and unrefined products for many years. Many of these properties have also been operated by third
parties whose handling, disposal, or release of hydrocarbons and other wastes were not under our
control. As a result, we may incur substantial expenditures and/or liabilities to third parties or
governmental entities which could have a material adverse effect on us.

The oil and natural gas industry is capital intensive, and we may not be able to raise the necessary capital in
the future.

The oil and natural gas industry is capital intensive. We make substantial capital expenditures for
the acquisition, exploration for and development of oil and natural gas reserves.

Historically, we have financed capital expenditures primarily with cash generated by operations,
proceeds from bank borrowings and sales of our equity securities. In addition, we may consider selling
additional non-core assets to raise additional operating capital.

QOur cash flow from operations and access to capital are subject to a number of variables,
including:

* our proved reserves;

* the level of oil and natural gas we are able to produce from existing wells;
* the prices at which oil and natural gas are sold; and

* our ability to acquire, locate and produce new reserves.

Any one of these variables can materially affect our ability to borrow under our revolving credit
facility.




If our revenues or the borrowing base under our revolving credit facility decreases as a result of
lower oil and natural gas prices, operating difficulties, declines in reserves or for any other reason, we
may have limited ability to obtain the capital necessary to undertake or complete future drilling
projects. We may, from time to time, seek additional financing, either in the form of increased bank
borrowings, public or private sales of debt or equity securities or other forms of financing, and there
can be no assurance as to the availability of any additional financing upon terms acceptable to us.

Risks Related to Our Business
Our limited history makes an evaluation of us and our future difficult and profits are not assured.

Prior to the Davenport Merger in May 2004, we were inactive with no significant operations. In
connection with the Davenport Merger, we decided to focus our business on the acquisition of
attractive crude oil and natural gas prospects, and the exploration, development and production of oil
and natural gas on these prospects. Since that time, we have acquired rights in oil and natural gas
properties and undertaken certain exploitation and other activities. However, we do not have a long
operating history in our current business. Although we are in the process of initiating three waterfloods
and an alkaline-surfactant project, we have not completed any new waterflooding or EOR technologies
on our own on any of our properties. In view of our limited history in the oil and natural gas business,
you may have difficulty in evaluating us and our business and prospects. You must consider our
business and prospects in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by
companies in their early stage of development. For our business plan to succeed, we must successfully
undertake most of the following activities:

* Find and acquire rights in attractive oil and natural gas properties;

« Develop our oil and natural gas properties, including the successful application of EOR
technologies and procedures, to the point at which oil and natural gas are being produced in
commercially viable quantities;

« Contract with third party service providers regarding services necessary to develop our oil and
natural gas wells;

+ Contract with transporters and purchasers of our commercial production of oil and natural gas;
+ Maintain access to funds to pursue our capital-intensive business plan;

» Comply with all applicable laws and regulations;

« Implement and successfully execute our business strategy;

* Respond to competitive developments and market changes; and

» Attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel.

There can be no assurance that we will be successful in undertaking such activities. Our failure to
undertake successfully most of the activities described above could materially and adversely affect our
business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. [n addition, there can be no assurance
that our exploitation and production activities will produce oil and natural gas in commercially viable
quantities. There can be no assurance that sales of our oil and natural gas production will ever
generate sufficient revenues or that we will be able to sustain profitability in any future period.
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If we cannot obtain sufficient additional capital when needed, we will not be able to continue with our
business strategy. In addition, significant infusions of additional capital may result in dilution to your
ownership and voting rights in our securities.

Our business strategy is to acquire interests in mature oil fields with established reserves that have
declined to marginal production levels, but possess significant remaining upside exploitation potential,
and implement various secondary and tertiary enhanced oil recovery operations. We are focused on
acquiring undervalued properties that feature enhanced recovery opportunitics. As we continue to find
acquisition candidates, we may require additional capital to finance the acquisitions as well as to
conduct our EOR operations. We may not be able to obtain additional financing in sufficient amounts
or on acceptable terms when needed, which could adversely affect our operating results and prospects.
If we cannot raise the additional capital required to implement our business strategy, we may be
required to curtail operations or develop a different strategy, which could adversely affect our financial
condition and results of operations. Further, any debt financing must be repaid regardless of whether or
not we generate profits or cash flows from our business activities.

Equity financing may result in dilution to existing stockholders and may involve securities that have
rights, preferences, or privileges that are senior to our common stock.

The actual quantities and present value of our proved reserves may be lower than we have estimated.

This prospectus contains estimates of our proved reserves. The process of estimating oil and
natural gas reserves is complex. The process involves significant decisions and assumptions in the
evaluation of available geological, geophysical, engineering and economic data for each reservoir.
Therefore, these estimates are inherently imprecise. Actual future production, oil and natural gas
prices, revenues, taxes, development expenditures, operating expenses and quantities of recoverable oil
and natural gas reserves most likely will vary from these estimates and vary over time. Such variations
may be significant and could materially affect the estimated quantities and present value of our proved
reserves, In addition, we may adjust estimates of proved reserves to reflect production history, results
of exploration and development drilling, results of secondary and tertiary recovery applications,
prevailing oil and natural gas prices and other factors, many of which are beyond our control.

Approximately 87% of our total proved reserves as af June 30, 2007 consist of undeveloped and developed
non-producing reserves, and those reserves may not ultimately be developed or produced.

Approximately 83% of our total proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 are undeveloped and
approximately 4% are developed non-producing. While we plan to develop and produce all of our
proved reserves, these reserves may not ultimately be developed or produced. Furthermore, not all of
our undeveloped or developed non-producing reserves may be ultimately produced at the time periods
we have planned, at the costs we have budgeted, or at all. The aggregate estimated development costs
for our proved undeveloped reserves are approximately $325,000,000 as of June 30, 2007,

We may not achieve the production growth we anticipate from properties we acqitire.

On May 28, 2004, we acquired Davenport Field Unit, which owned a 100% working interest in
certain oil, natural gas and mineral leasehold estates and personal property related such leasehold
estates located in Lincoln County, Oklahoma covering approximately 2,178 acres. On September 14,
2004, we acquired the Nowata Properties comprised of more than 220 oil and natural gas producing
wells on 2,601 acres of land in Nowata County, Oklahoma. On March 29, 2005, we acquired Square
One, pursuant to which we own a 100% working interest in 10,300 acres of mature oil fields in central
Texas. On November 29, 2005, we acquired all of the outstanding common stock of WO Energy,
pursuant to which we own oil and natural gas properties on approximately 20,000 acres in Carson, Gray
and Hutchinson counties located in the Texas panhandle with 480 producing wells, 40 water disposal
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wells and 380 idle wells. On April 28, 2006, our wholly owned subsidiary Pantwist, LLC acquired
additional oil and natural gas properties in the Texas panhandle, which properties cover approximately
9,700 acres with 167 wells, On March 30, 2007, our wholly owned subsidiary, Cano Petro of New
Mexico, Inc., acquired additional oil and natural gas properties in New Mexico, which properties cover
approximately 20,000 acres. Our operational strategy is to implement waterflood and EOR techniques.
The performance of waterflood and EOR techniques is often difficult to predict, takes an extended
period of time from first investment until actual production and we may not achieve the anticipated
production growth from properties we acquire.

Acquisitions may prove to be worth less than we paid because of uncertainties in evaluating recoverable
reserves and potential liabilities.

Our recent growth is due in part to acquisitions of exploration and production companies,
producing properties and undeveloped leascholds. We expect acquisitions will also contribute to our
future growth. Successful acquisitions require an assessment of a number of factors, including estimates
of recoverable reserves, exploration potential, recovery applicability from waterflood and EOR
techniques, future oil and natural gas prices, operating costs and potential environmental and other
liabilities. Such assessments are inexact and their accuracy is inherently uncertain. In connection with
our assessments, we perform a review of the acquired properties which we believe is generally
consistent with industry practices. However, such a review will not reveal all existing or potential
problems. In addition, our review may not permit us to become sufficiently familiar with the properties
to fully assess their deficiencies and capabilities. We do not inspect every well or property. Even when
we inspect a well or property, we do not always discover structural, subsurface and environmental
problems that may exist or arise. We are generally not entitled to contractual indemnification for
pre-closing liabilities, including environmental liabilities. Normally, we acquire interests in properties on
an “as is” basis with limited remedies for breaches of representations and warranties. As a result of
these factors, we may not be able to acquire oil and natural gas properties that contain economically
recoverable reserves or be able to complete such acquisitions on acceptable terms.

Additionally, significant acquisitions can change the nature of our opcrations and business
depending upon the character of the acquired properties, which may have substantially different
operating and geological characteristics or be in different geographic locations than our existing
properties. It is our current intention to continue focusing on acquiring properties with development
and exploration potential located in onshore United States. To the extent that we acquire properties
substantially different from the properties in our primary operating regions or acquire properties that
require different technical expertise, we may not be able to realize the economic benefits of these
acquisitions as efficiently as in our prior acquisitions.

Exploration and development drilling and the application of waterflooding and EOR techniques may not result
in commercially productive reserves.

We do not always encounter commercially productive reservoirs through our drilling operations or
our application of waterflooding or EOR techniques. The new wells we drill or participate in may not
be productive and we may not recover all or any portion of our investment in wells we drill or
participate in. The engineering data and other technologies we use do not allow us to know
conclusively prior to drilling a well that oil or natural gas is present or may be produced economically.
The cost of drilling, completing and operating a well is often uncertain, and cost factors can adversely
affect the economics of a project. Our efforts will be unprofitable if we drill dry holes or wells that are
productive but do not produce enough reserves to return a profit after drilling, operating and other
costs or our application of waterflooding or EOR techniques is not successful. Further, our drilling and
other operations may be curtailed, delayed or canceled as a result of a variety of factors, including:

* unexpected drilling conditions;
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* title problems;

» pressure or irregularities in formations;
» equipment failures or accidents;

s adverse weather conditions; and

* increases in the costs of, or shortages or delays in the availability of, chemicals, drilling rigs and
equipment.

The departure of key personnel could adversely affect our ability to run our business.

Our future success is dependent on the personal efforts, performance and abilities of key
management, including S. Jeffrey Johnson, our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer; Morris B. Smith,
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer; Patrick McKinney, Senior Vice President—
Engineering and Operations; and Michael J. Ricketts, Vice President and Principal Accounting Officer.
All of these individuals are integral parts of our daily operations. We have employment agreements
with Messrs. Johnson, Smith, McKinney, and Ricketts. We do not maintain any key life insurance
policies for any of our executive officers or other personnel. Although, to our knowledge, none of our
senjor management currently has any plans to retire or leave our company in the near future, the loss
of any of them could significantly impact our business until adequate replacements can be identified
and put in place.

We face strong competition from larger il and natural gas companies, which makes it difficult to conduct
profitable operations.

Our competitors include major integrated oil and natural gas companies and numerous
independent oil and natural gas companies, individuals and drilling and income programs. Many of
these competitors are large, well-established companies and have substantially larger operating staffs
and greater capital resources than we do. We may not be able to successfully conduct our operations,
evaluate and select suitable properties and consummate transactions in this highly competitive
environment. Specifically, these larger competitors may be able to pay more for exploratory prospects
and productive oil and natural gas properties and may be able to define, evaluate, bid for and purchase
a greater number of properties and prospects than our financial or human resources permit. In
addition, such companies may be able to expend greater resources on the existing and changing
technologies that we believe are and will be increasingly important to attaining success in the industry.

We are subject to many restrictions under our revolving credit facility which may adversely impact our future
operations.

We may depend on our revolving credit facility for future capital needs. As required by our
revolving credit facility with our bank lenders, we have pledged substantially all of our oil and natural
gas properties as collateral to secure the payment of our indebtedness. The revolving credit facility
restricts our ability to obtain additional financing, make investments, sell assets, grant liens, repurchase,
redeem or retire our securities, enter into specific transactions with our subsidiaries or affiliates and
engage in business combinations. The revolving credit facility prohibits us from declaring or paying
dividends on our common stock. We are also required to comply with certain financial covenants and
ratios.

These financial covenants and ratios could limit our ability to obtain future financing, make
needed capital expenditures, withstand a downturn in our business or economy in general or otherwise
conduct necessary corporate activities. We may also be prevented from taking advantage of business
opportunities that arise because of the limitations that the restrictive covenants under the revolving
credit facitity impose on us. Although we are currently in compliance with these covenants, in the past
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we have had to request waivers from or enter into amendments with our lenders to avoid default
because of our anticipated non-compliance with certain financial covenants and ratios. Any future
default, if not cured or waived, could result in the acceleration of all indebtedness outstanding under
the revolving credit facility. If that should occur, we may not be able to pay all such debt or to borrow
sufficient funds to refinance it, which could force us to sell significant assets or to have our assets
foreclosed upon which could have a material adverse effect on our business or financial results. Even if
new financing were available, it may not be on terms that are acceptable to us.

In addition, the revolving credit facility limits the amounts we can borrow to a borrowing base
amount, determined by the lenders, based upon projected revenues from the oil and natural gas
properties securing our loan. The lenders can independently adjust the borrowing base and the
borrowings permitted to be outstanding under the revolving credit facility.

Derivative activities create a risk of financial loss.

Pursuant to the terms of our revolving credit facility, we are parties to oil and natural gas price
risk management arrangements with respect to a portion of our expected production. We purchase
floors that generally result in minimum price received by us for a portion of our production over a
specified time period. We have the right to receive from the counterparty, the excess of the fixed price
specified in the contract over a floating price based on a market index, multiplied by the quantity
identified in the derivative contract. These transactions may expose us to the risk of financial loss if the
counterparty to our future contracts fail to perform under the contracts.

Failure to maintain effective internal controls could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

The year ended June 30, 2007 was the first year that we were subject to Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act which requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of our internal
control over financial reporting and a report by our independent auditors addressing our internal
controls and management’s assessment. Effective internal controls are necessary for us to produce
reliable financial reports. If, as a result of deficiencies in our internal controls, we cannot provide
reliable financial reports, our business decision process may be adversely affected, our business and
operating results could be harmed, we may be in violation of our lending covenants, investors could
lose confidence in our reported financial information, and the price of our stock could decrease as a
result.

During our evaluation of disclosure controls and procedures for the year ended June 30, 2007, we
concluded that we maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, in
all material respects, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

There can be no guarantee that we will not have deficiencies in our disclosure controls and
internal controls in the future.
Our business involves many operating risks, which may result in substantial losses, and insurance may be

unavailable or inadequate to protect us against these risks.

Our operations are subject to hazards and risks inherent in drilling for, producing and transporting
oil and natural gas, such as:

* fires;
= natural disasters;

* explosions;
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* pressure forcing oil or natural gas out of the wellbore at a dangerous velocity coupled with the
potential for fire or explosion;

* weather;

» failure of oilfield drilling and service tools;

* changes in underground pressure in a formation that causes the surface to collapse or crater;
* pipeline ruptures or cement failures;

= environmental hazards such as natural gas leaks, oil spills and discharges of toxic gases; and
+ availability of necded equipment at acceptable prices, including steel tubular products.

Any of these risks can cause substantial losses resulting from:

* injury or loss of life;

» damage to and destruction of property, natural resources and equipment;

» pollution and other environmental damage;

* regulatory investigations and penalties;

* suspension of our operations; and

* repair and remediation costs.

Our liability for environmental hazards includes those created either by the previous owners of
properties that we purchase or lease or by acquired companies prior to the date we acquire them. We
maintain insurance against some, but not all, of the risks described above. Our insurance policies
currently provide for $1,000,000 general liability coverage for bodily injury and property damage
including pollution, underground resources, blow-out and cratering. In addition, we have $1,000,000
coverage for our contractual obligations to our service contractors using their equipment downhole as a
result of a blow-out. We have a “Owned-Hired and Non-Owned” Commercial Automobile liability limit
of $1,000,000. We also have secured $25,000,000 umbrella coverage in excess of the general liability and
automobile liability. There is a $3,000,000 policy for control of well, redrill, and pollution on drilling
wells and a $1,000,000 policy for control of well, redrill and pollution on producing wells. Our
insurance may not be adequate to cover casualty losses or liabilities. Also, in the future we may not be
able to obtain insurance at premium levels that justify its purchase.

We do not insure against the loss of oil or natural gas reserves as a result of operating hazards,
insure against business interruption or insure our field production equipment against loss. Losses could
occur for uninsurable or uninsured risks, or in amounts in excess of existing insurance coverage. The
occurrence of an event that is not fully covered by insurance could harm our financial condition and
results of operations.

There are risks in acquiring producing properties, including difficulties in integrating acquired properties into
our business, additional liabilities and expenses associated with acquired properties, diversion of management
altention, increasing the scope, geographic diversity and complexity of eur operations and incurrence of
additional debt.

Our business strategy includes growing our reserve base through acquisitions. Our failure to
integrate acquired businesses successfully into our existing business, or the expense incurred in
consummating future acquisitions, could result in unanticipated expenses and losses. In addition, we
may assume cleanup or reclamation obligations or other unanticipated liabilities in connection with
these acquisitions. The scope and cost of these obligations may ultimately be materially greater than
estimated at the time of the acquisition.

18




We are continually investigating opportunities for acquisitions. In connection with future
acquisitions, the process of integrating acquired operations into our existing operations may resuit in
unforeseen operating difficultics and may require significant management attention and financial
resources that would otherwise be available for the ongoing development or expansion of existing
operations. Qur ability to make future acquisitions may be constrained by our ability to obtain
additional financing.

Possible future acquisitions could result in our incurring additional debt, contingent liabilitics and
expense, all of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and operating
results.

Terrorist activities may adversely affect our business.

Terrorist activities, including events similar to those of September 11, 2001, or armed conflict
involving the United States may adversely affect our business activities and financial condition. If events
of this nature occur and persist, the resulting political and social instability could adversely affect
prevailing oil and natural gas prices and cause a reduction in our revenues. In addition, oil and natural
gas production facilities, transportation systems and storage facilities could be direct targets of terrorist
attacks, and our operations could be adversely impacted if infrastructure integral to our operations is
destroyed or damaged. Costs associated with insurance and other security measures may increase as a
result of these threats, and some insurance coverage may become more difficult to obtain, if available
at all,

Part of our business is seasonal in nature which may affect the price of our oil and natural gas.

Weather conditions affect the demand for and price of oil and natural gas. Demand for oil and
natural gas is typically higher during winter months than summer months. However, warm winters can
also lead to downward price trends. As a result, our results of operations may be adversely affected by
seasonal conditions.

We are subject to potential early repayments as well as restrictions pursuant to the terms of our Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock which may adversely impact our operations.

Pursuant to the terms of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, if a “triggering event” occurs,
the holders of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock will have the right to require us to redeem
their preferred stock at a minimum price of at least 125% of the $1,000 per share stated value pius
certain dividends. “Triggering events” include the following:

» our common stock is suspended from trading or fails to be listed on the AMEX, the New York
Stock Exchange, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the Nasdaq Global Market or the Nasdag
Capital Market;

+ we fail to convert and do not cure this failure within 10 business days after the conversion date
or give notice of our intention not to comply with a request for conversion;

» we fail to pay for at least 5 business days any amount when and as due pursuant to the terms of
the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock or any documents related to the sale and registration
rights of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, common stock and warrants;

+ certain actions are taken by us or third parties with regard to bankrupicy,

+ we default on any indebtedness which default is not waived and the applicable grace period has
expired; or

* we breach any representation, warranty, covenant or other term or condition of any document
relating to the sale and registration rights regarding the Series 1D Convertible Preferred Stock,



the common stock and the warrants, which, to the extent such breach is curable, such breach is
not cured within 7 business days.

There is no guarantee that we would be able o repay the amounts due upon an occurrence of a
“triggering event.”

In addition, we cannot issue any preferred stock that is senior or on par with the Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock with regard to dividends or liquidation without the approval of holders of
a majority of the Series D. Convertible Preferred Stock.

We are subject to several lawsuits relating to a fire that occurred on March 12, 2006 in Carson County, Texas
which may have an adverse impact on us.

Cano and certain of its subsidiaries are defendants in several lawsuits relating to a fire that
occurred on March 12, 2006 in Carson County, Texas. The alleged damages include damage to land
and livestock, remedial expenses and claims relating to wrongful death. We entered into a Settlement
Agreement with our insurance carrier pursuant to which we received $6,699,827 in exchange for
releasing the insurance carrier from any future claims. This amount may not be sufficient to cover all
of our litigation expenses and all the alleged damages.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Our historic stock price has been volatile and the future market price for our common stock may continue to
be volatile. Further, the limited market for our shares will make our price more volatile. This may make it
difficult for you to sell our common stock for a positive return on your investment.

The public market for our common stock has historically been very volatile. Since we acquired
Davenport Field Unit on May 28, 2004 and through the fiscal vear ended June 30, 2007, the market
price for our common stock has ranged from $0.45 to $10.65. On September 6, 2007, our closing price
on AMEX was $6.03. Any future market price for our shares may continue to be very volatile, This
price volatility may make it more difficult for you to sell shares when you want at prices you find
attractive. We do not know of any one particular factor that has caused volatility in our stock price.
However, the stock market in general has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that often
are unrelated or disproportionate to the operating performance of companies. Broad market factors
and the investing public’s negative perception of our business may reduce our stock price, regardless of
our operating performance. Market fluctuations and volatility, as well as general economic, market and
political conditions, could reduce our market price. As a result, this may make it difficult or impossible
for you to sell our common stock for a positive return on your investment.

If we fail to meet continued listing standards of AMEX, our common stock may be delisted which would have
a material adverse effect on the price of our common stock,

Our common stock was listed on AMEX on May 5, 2005 under the symbol “CFW.” In order for
our securities to be eligible for continued listing on AMEX, we must remain in compliance with certain
listing standards. Among other things, these standards require that we remain current in our filings with
the SEC and comply with certain provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, If we were to become
noncompliant with AMEX’s continued listing requirements, our common stock may be delisted which
would have a material adverse affect on the price of our common stock.
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If we are delisted from AMEX, our common stock may become subject to the “penny stock” rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, which would make transactions in our common stock cumbersome and
may reduce the value of an investment in our stock.

The Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted Rule 3a51-1 which establishes the definition
of a “penny stock,” for the purposes relevant to us, as any equity security that is not listed on a
national securities exchange or registered national securities association’s automated quotation system
and has a market price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. For any transaction
involving a penny stock, unless exempt, Rule 15g-9 requires:

» that a broker or dealer approve a person’s account for transactions in penny stocks; and

« the broker or dealer receive from the investor a written agreement to the transaction, sctting
forth the identity and quantity of the penny stock to be purchased.

In order to approve a person’s account for transactions in penny stocks, the broker or dealer must:
+ obtain financial information and investment experience and objectives of the person; and

« make a reasonable determination that the transactions in penny stocks are suitable for that
person and the person has sufficient knowledge and experience in financial matters to be
capable of evaluating the risks of transactions in penny stocks.

The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior to any transaction in a penny stock, a disclosure
schedule prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission relating to the penny stock market,
which, in highlight form:

» sets forth the basis on which the broker or dealer made the suitability determination; and

» that the broker or dealer received a signed, written agreement from the investor prior to the
transaction.

Generally, brokers may be less willing to execule transactions in securities subject to the “penny
stock” rules. This may make it more difficult for investors to dispose of our common stock and cause a
decline in the market value of our stock.

If securities analysts downgrade our stock or cease coverage of us, the price of our stock could decline.

The trading market for our common stock relies in part on the research and reports that industry
or financial analysts publish about us or our business. We do not control these analysts. Furthermore,
there are many large, well-established, publicly traded companies active in our industry and market,
which may mean that it is less likely that we will receive widespread analyst coverage. If one or more of
the analysts who do cover us downgrade our stock, our stock price would likely decline rapidly. If one
or more of these analysts cease coverage of our company, we could lose visibility in the market, which
in turn could cause our stock price to decline.

We do not pay dividends on our common stock.

We have never paid dividends on our common stock, and do not intend to pay cash dividends on
the common stock in the foreseeable future. Net income from our operations, if any, will be used for
the development of our business, including capital expenditures and to retire debt. Any decisions to pay
dividends on the common stock in the future will depend upon our profitability at the time, the
available cash and other factors. Qur ability to pay dividends on our common stock is further limited by
the terms of our revolving credit facility and our Series I Convertible Preferred Stock.
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Provisions in our corporate governance and loan documents, the terms of our Series D Convertible Preferred
Stock and Delaware law may delay or prevent an acquisition of Cano, which could decrease the value of our
common stock.

Our certificate of incorporation, our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, our bylaws, our loan
documents and the Delaware General Corporation Law contain provisions that may discourage other
persons from initiating a tender offer or takeover attempt that a stockholder might consider to be in
the best interest of all stockholders, including takeover attempts that might result in a premium to be
paid over the market price of our stock.

The terms of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock permit the holders of such preferred stock
the right to have their Series D Convertible Preferred Stock redeemed upon a “change of control.” In
addition, the terms of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock do not permit us to enter into certain
transactions that would constitute a “change of control” unless the successor entity assumes all of our
obligations relating to the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock and the holders of a majority of our
Series D Convertible Preferred Stock approve such assumption and the successor entity is publicly
traded on the AMEX, the New York Stock Exchange, the Nasdaq Global Select Market, the Nasdag
Global Market or the Nasdaq Capital Market.

In addition, subject to the terms of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, we are authorized to
issue additional shares of preferred stock. Subject to the terms of the Series D Convertible Preferred
Stock and our certificate of incorporation, our board of directors has total discretion in the issuance
and the determination of the rights and privileges of any shares of preferred stock which might be
issued in the future, which rights and privileges may be detrimental to the holders of the common
stock. It is not possible to state the actual effect of the authorization and issuance of a new series of
preferred stock upon the rights of holders of the common stock and other series of preferred stock
unless and until the board of directors determines the attributes of any new series of preferred stock
and the specific rights of its holders. These effects might include:

* restrictions on dividends on common stock and other series of preferred stock if dividends on
any new series of preferred stock have not been paid;

* dilution of the voting power of common stock and other series of preferred stock to the extent
that a new series of preferred stock has voling rights, or to the extent that any new series of
preferred stock is convertible into common stock;

* dilution of the equity interest of common stock and other series of preferred stock; and

* limitation on the right of holders of common stock and other series of preferred stock to share
in Cano’s assets upon liquidation until satisfaction of any liquidation preference attributable to
any new series of preferred stock.

The terms of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock and the provisions in our corporate
governance documents regarding the granting of additional preferred stock may deter or render more
difficult proposals to acquire control of our company, including proposals a stockholder might consider
to be in his or her best interest, impede or lengthen a change in membership of our Board of Directors
and make removal of our management more difficult, Furthermore, Delaware law imposes some
restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between our company and owners of 15% or
more of our common stock. These provisions apply even if an acquisition proposal is considered
beneficial by some stockholders and therefore could depress the value of our common stock.
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The conversion price of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock may be a lowered if we issue shares of our
common stock at a price less than the existing conversion price which could cause further dilution to our
common stockholders,

Subject to certain exclusions, if we issue common stock at a price less than the existing conversion
price for our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock, the conversion price shall be adjusted downward
which would further dilute our common stock holders upon conversion,

Our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock has voting rights both together with and separate from our common
stock which could adversely affect our common stockholders.

The holders of our Series D Convertible Preferred Stock vote together with the holders of our
common stock on an as converted basis, subject to a limitation on how many votes the Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock holders may cast if the conversion price falls below $4.79. In addition,
approval of holders of a majority of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock is required for us to take
the following actions:

+ to modify the certificate of incorporation or bylaws in a manner adverse to the Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock;

e increase or decrease the number of authorized shares of Series D Convertible Preferred Stock;

» create any class of preferred stock that has a preference over or is in parity with the Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock with respect to dividends or liquidation;

» purchase, repurchase or redeem any share of common stock;
* pay dividends or make any other distribution on the common stock; or
* circumvent a right of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock.

These voting rights may have an adverse impact on the common stock and the voting power of our
common stockholders.

Since we are a United States real property holding corporation, non-U.S. investors may be subject to U.S.
federal income tax (including withholding tax) on gains realized on disposition of our shares, and U.S.
investors selling our shares may be required to certify as to their status in order to avoid withholding.

Since we are a United States real property holding corporation, a non-U.S. holder of our common
stock will generally be subject to U.S. federal income tax on gains realized on a sale or other
disposition of our common stock. Certain non-U.S. holders of our common stock may be eligible for an
exception to the foregoing general rule if our common stock is rcgularly traded on an established
securities market during the calendar year in which the sale or disposition occurs. However, we cannot
offer any assurance that our common stock will be so traded in the future.

If our common stock is not considered to be regularly traded on an established securities market
during the calendar year in which a sale or disposition occurs, the buyer or other transferee of our
common stock will generally be required to withhold tax at the rate of 10% on the sales price or other
amount realized, unless the transferor furnishes an affidavit certifying that it is not a foreign person in
the manner and form specified in applicable Treasury regulations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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Item 2. Properties (see Items 1 and 2. Business and Properties)
Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Fire Litigation

On March 23, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 100th Judicial District Court in Carson
County, Texas; Cause No. 9840, The Tom L. and Anne Burnett Trust, by Anne Burnett Windfohr,
Windi Phillips, Ben Fortson, Jr., George Beggs, 111 and Ed Hudson, Jr. as Co-Trustees; Anne Burnett
Windfohr; and Burnett Ranches, Ltd. v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O.
Operating Company, Ltd, and W.O. Energy, Inc. The plaintiffs claim that the electrical wiring and
equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started a
wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson County.

The plaintiffs (i) allege negligence and gross negligence and (ii) seek damages, including, but not
limited to, damages for damage to their land and livestock, certain expenses related to fighting the fire
and certain remedial expenses totaling approximately $1.7 million to $1.8 million. In addition, the
plaintiffs seek (i) termination of certain oil and natural gas leases, (i) reimbursement for their
attorney’s fees (in the amount of at least $549,000) and (iii) exemplary damages. The plaintiffs also
clarm that Cano and its subsidiaries are jointly and severally liable as a single business enterprise and/or
a general partnership or de facto partnership. The owner of the remainder of the mineral estate, Texas
Christian University, has intervened in the suit joining the plaintiffs’ request to terminate certain oil
and natural gas leases and on January 26, 2007, Southwestern Public Service Company d/b/a Xcel
Energy, intervened in the suit as an adverse party to all defendants, claiming that the fire that is subject
of this lawsuit destroyed transmission and distribution equipment, including utility poles, lines and other
equipment with an estimated loss of $1,876,000. By order dated March 7, 2007, the court granted
defendants’ motion to strike the intervention of Southwest Public Service Company d/b/a Xcel Energy.

On June 21, 2007, the Judge of the 100™ Judicial District Court issued a Final Judgment
(a) granting motions for summary judgment in favor of Cano and certain of its subsidiaries on
plaintiffs’ claims for (i) breach of contract/termination of an oil and gas lease; and (i) negligence; and
(b) granting the plaintiffs’ no-evidence motion for summary judgment on contributory negligence,
assumption of risk, repudiation and estoppel affirmative defenses asserted by Cano and certain of its
subsidiaries. The Final Judgment has been appeaied.

On April 28, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 31* Judicial District Court of Roberts
County, Texas, Case No. 1922, Robert and Glenda Adcock, et al. v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy
of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating Company, Ltd, and W.O. Energy, Inc. There are 43 plaintiffs and
four groups of intervenors that claim that the electrical wiring and equipment of Cano or certain of its
subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006
in Carson County.

The piaintiffs and intervenors (i) allege negligence, gross negligence, trespass and nuisance and
(i) seek damages, including, but not limited to, damages to their land, buildings and livestock and
certain remedial expenses totaling $11,297,684. In addition, the plaintiffs seek (i) reimbursement for
their attorney’s fees and (ii) exemplary damages. The case is set for trial on October 29, 2007. On
May 21, 2007, the plaintiffs filed a first amended petition. In their amended petition, the plaintiffs
assert an additional claim for res ipsa loquitor and also claim that the Company and its subsidiaries are
jointly and severally liable as a single business enterprise and/or as a partnership or de facto
partnership. Further, the First Amended Petition names eleven new plaintiffs to the suit. It omits the
claims of three original plaintiffs who do not appear to have any claims currently pending against the
Company. Five of the former plaintiffs have asserted claims in the matter styled Gary and Genia
Burgess, et al. v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating, Ltd, and W.O.
Energy, Inc. (discussed below), while one of the plaintiffs has intervened in the matter styled
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Southwestern Public Service Company d/bfa Xcel Energy v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc., W.O. Operating, Ltd, and W.O. Energy, Inc. (also discussed below). Discovery in the suit
is underway and the case is set for trial on October 29, 2007. On August 28, 2007, one of the
intervenors, Travelers Lloyds Insurance Company, filed a Notice of Nonsuit requesting the court to sign
an order dismissing its claims, which seek approximately $367,627 of total damages, without prejudice.

On April 10, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 31st Judicial District Court of Roberts
County, Texas, Case No. 1920, Joseph Craig Hutchison and Judy Hutchison v. Cano Petroleum, Inc.,
W.0. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating Company, Ltd, and W.O. Energy, Inc. On May 1, 2006,
the following lawsuit was filed in the 31st Judicial District Court of Roberts County, Texas, Case
No. 1923, Chisum Family Partnership, Ltd. v. Cano, W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc; W. O. Operating
Company, Lid, and W.O. Energy, Inc. The plaintiffs in both cases claim that the electrical wiring and
equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started a
wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson County.

The plaintiffs in both cases (i) allege negligence and trespass and (i) seek undisclosed damages,
including, but not limited to, damages to their land and certain remedial expenses. In addition, the
plaintiffs in both cases seek (i) reimbursement for their attorney’s fees and (i) exemplary damages.

On July 3, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 31% Judicial District Court of Roberts
County, Texas, Case No. 1928, Rebecca Lee Martinez, et al v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating Company, Ltd., and W.O. Energy, Inc. The plaintiffs claim that the
electrical wiring and equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas
operations started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson County, Texas. The plaintiffs
(i) allege negligence and gross negligence and (ii) seek undisclosed damages for the wrongful death of
two individuals who they claim died as a result of the fire. Additional heirs and relatives of one of the
decedents have intervened in this case seeking similar claims.

On August 9, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 233rd Judicial District Court of Gray
County, Texas, Yolanda Villareal, Individually and on behalf of the Estate of Gerardo Villareal v. Cano
Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., W. O. Operating Company, Ltd., and W.O. Energy, Inc.
The plaintiffs claim that the electrical wiring and equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries
relating to oil and natural gas operations started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson
County, Texas. The plaintiffs (i) allege negligence and gross negligence and (ii) seek undisclosed
damages for the wrongful death of Gerardo Villareal who they claim died as a result of the fire.
Relatives of Roberto Chavira have intervened in the case alleging similar claims regarding the death of
Roberto Chavira.

On March 14, 2007, the following lawsuit was filed in 100th Judicial District Court in Carson
County, Texas; Cause No. 9994, Southwestern Public Service Company d/b/a Xcel Energy v. Cano
Petroleum, Inc., W.Q. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating Company, Ltd, and WO Energy, Inc,
The plaintiffs claim that the electrical wiring and equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries
relating to oil and natural gas operations started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson
County. This case is a refiling of the intervention which was struck by the court as described above.

The plaintiff alleges negligence and seeks $1,876,000 in damages for loss and damage to
transmission and distribution equipment, utility poles, lines and other equipment. In addition, the
plaintiff secks reimbursement for its attorney’s fees. On May 15, 2007, three new plaintiffs (one of
which is a former plaintiff in the Adcock matter) intervened in the lawsuit and (i) allege negligence,
gross negligence, res ipsa loquitor, nuisance, and trespass and (i) seek damages, including, but not
limited to, damages to their land, buildings and livestock and certain remedial expenses totaling
approximately $201,280. In addition, the intervenors seek (i) reimbursement for their attorney’s fees
and (ii) exemplary damages. The intervenors also claim that the Company and its subsidiaries are
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jointly and severally liable as a single business enterprise and/or as a partnership or de facto
partnership.

On May 2, 2007, the following lawsuit was filed in the 84" Judicial District Court of Hutchinson
County, Texas, Case No. 37,619, Gary and Genia Burgess, et al. v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy
of Nevada, Inc., W.O. Operating, Ltd. And W.O. Energy, Inc. Eleven plaintiffs claim that electrical
wiring and equipment relating to oil and gas operations of the Company or certain of its subsidiaries
started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson County, Texas. Five of the plaintiffs are
former plaintiffs in the Adcock matter. The plaintiffs (i) allege negligence, gross negligence, res ipsa
loguitor, nuisance, and trespass and (ii) seek damages, including, but not limited to, damages to their
land, buildings and livestock and certain remedial expenses totaling approximately $1,152,480. In
addition, the plaintiffs seek (i) reimbursement for their attorney’s fees and (ii) exemplary damages. The
plaintiffs also claim that the Company and its subsidiaries are jointly and severally liable as a single
business enterprise and/or as a partnership or de facto partnership.

Due to the inherent risk of litigation, the outcome of these cases is uncertain and unpredictable;
however, at this time Cano management believes the suits are without merit and is vigorously
defending itself and its subsidiaries.

Insurance Settlement

On June 20, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Texas, Fort Worth Division, C.A. No. 4-06cv-434-A, Mid-Continent Casualty
Company, Plaintiff, vs. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., W.O, Operating
Company, Ltd. and W.O. Energy, Inc. seeking a declaration that the plaintiff is not responsible for
pre-tender defense costs and that the plaintiff has the sole and exclusive right to select defense counsel
and to defend, investigate, negotiate and settle the litigation described above and on September 18,
2006, the First Amended Complaint for Declaratory Judgment was filed with regard to the cases
described above. Cano and its subsidiaries were served with the lawsuit between September 26-28, 2006.

On February 9, 2007, Cano and its subsidiaries entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release
with the plaintiff pursuant to which in exchange for mutual releases, in addition to the approximately
$923,000 that we have been reimbursed by plaintiff, the plaintiff agreed to pay to Cano within 20
business days of February 9, 2007 the amount of $6,699,827 comprised of the following: (a) the
$1,000,000 policy limits of the primary policy; (b) the $5,000,00¢ poticy limits of the excess policy;

(c) $500,000 for future defense costs; (d) $144,000 as partial payment for certain unpaid invoices for
litigation related expenses; (¢) all approved reasonable and necessary litigation related expenses
through December 21, 2006 that are not part of the above-referenced $144,000; and (f) certain
specified attorneys fees. During February 2007, we received the $6,699,827 payment from Mid-Con. Of
this $6,699,827 amount, the payments for policy limits amounting to $6,000,000, in accordance with the
Credit Agreement (Note 4 to our consolidated financial statements), have been placed in a controlled
bank account and the use of the proceeds is specified to pay attorney’s fees, settlement amounts and
other litigation expenses incurred to defend and/or settle the fire litigation. Accordingly, our
consolidated balance sheets reflect the $6,000,000 as restricted cash and a corresponding liability under
deferred litigation credit. The remaining $699,827 was applied as a reduction to general and
administrative expense for litigation expenses incurred.

Other

Occasionally, we are involved in other various lawsuits and certain governmental proceedings
arising in the ordinary course of business. Our management does not believe that the ultimate
resolution of any current matters that are not set forth above, including due to the existence of
insurance coverage, indemnification and escrow accounts, will have a material effect on our financial
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position or resulis of operations. None of our directors, officers or affiliates, owners of record or
beneficially of more than five percent of any class of our voting securities, or security holder is involved
in a proceeding adverse to our business or has a material interest adverse to our business.

Item 4, Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the quarter ended June 30, 2007.

PART 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities
Market Information

Our shares of common stock are listed on the American Stock Exchange (“AMEX”) under the
trading symbol “CFW.” For the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, the following table sets forth the
high and low sales prices per share of common stock for each quarterly period. On September 6, 2007,
the closing sale price on the AMEX was $6.03.

Fiscal 2007 Fiscal 2006
Fiscal Quarter High Low High Low
First Quarter Ended September 30 ............ . ... ... ... ... $6.40 $3.69 § 590 $3.51
Second Quarter Ended December 31 . ... ... ... ... ... ..., $5.80 $3.90 § 840 3$4.14
Third Quarter Ended March 31 . . ... ... $5.47 $4.15 31065 3643
Fourth Quarter Ended June 30 ... ... ... ... . .. i $6.47 $440 3 866 3$4.09

Holders

As of September 6, 2007, our shares of common stock were held by approximately
250 stockholders of record. In many instances, a record stockholder is a broker or other entity holding
shares in street name for one or more customers who beneficially own the shares. We estimate that, as
of September 6, 2007, there were approximately 4,300 beneficial holders who own our common stock in
street name.

Dividends

We have not declared any dividends to date on our common stock. We have no present intention
of paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future, as we intend to use
earnings, if any, to generate growth. Our Credit Agreement does not permit us to pay dividends on our
common stock. In addition, the terms of our Series D> Convertible Preferred Stock do not permit us to
pay dividends on our common stock without the approval of the holders of a majority of the Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock.

For the year ended June 30, 2007, the preferred dividend was $3,169,516, of which $1,746,923
pertained to holders of the PIK dividend option.

During the year ended June 30, 2007, there were no equity securities issued pursuant to
transactions exempt from the registration requirements under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
that were not disclosed previously in Current Reports on Form 8-K or Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2007, we did not repurchase any of our registered equity
securities.
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph compares the cumulative total stockholder return on our
common stock with the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index (the “S&P 5007) and the S&P
Supercomposite Oil & Gas Exploration & Production Index for the period from September 4, 2003 to
June 30, 2007, assuming an initial investment of $100 and the reinvestment of all dividends, if any.
Since Huron Ventures, Inc. (our predecessor company) filed a Form 10 SB to register common stock
pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 on September 4, 2004, we used a
starting point beginning with September 4, 2003 for the data presented below.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial information (which is not covered by the report of an independent
registered public accounting firm) is summarized from our results of operations for the five-year period
ended June 30, 2007 and should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and
the notes thereto included in “ltem 8 Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Operating Revenues:
Crude oil and natural gassades. . . . ........
Operating Expenses:
Lease operating expenses . . . . ... ... ... ..
Production and ad valorem taxes . .........
General and administrative . . ... ... ... ...
Accretion of asset retirement obligations . . . ..
Depletion and depreciation . . . ... ........

Total operating expenses . . . ... ... ... ..

Other income (expenses):

Unrealized loss on hedge contracts . ... ... ...
Realized gain on hedge contracts . . . .. ..... ..
Interest expense . .. .......... . ...,
Interest income and deductions, net . . . ... .. ..

Total other income (expenses) . . . ... .. ...
Loss from continuing operations before income tax
benefit . ... ... .. .. . .
Income tax benefit . .. ........ ... ... ... ..

Loss from continuing operations . . .. ... ... ..
Income on disposal of discontinued operations,

Preferred stock discount . . ... ... ... .. ...
Preferred stock dividend . . . ........... ...

Net income (loss} applicable to commen stock:
Continuing operations . . .. .......... ...
Discontinued operations . . . ..., ... ... .-

Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted . .

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basicand diluted .. ......... ... .. ..

CASH FLOW DATA:
Cash flow provided by (used in):
Operating activities . . ... .. .. .........,
Investing activities . . . . . ... . ...... .. ...
Financing activities . . .. ...............
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalents . . . .. ...........
Total assets ... ........ . ... . ...
Longtermdebt . . ... ... ... ... L,
Temporary equity—Series D convertible preferred
stock and paid-in kind dividend; liquidation
preference is $50,862,925 .. . .......... ..
Stockholders’ equity . . . .. ..o o oo

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003(1)
$ 28353026 § 15860562 § 3764015 § 7958 8 —
10,885,393 6,240,986 2,068,881 44,305 —
2,465,191 1,153,775 223,566 616 -
12,755,524 7,622,508 4,753,609 341,020 12,418
140,129 90,492 48,204 690 —
4,305,696 1,847,217 370,899 4,533 —
30,551,933 16,954,978 7,465,159 391,164 12,418
(2,198,907) (1,094416) (3,701,144}  (383,206)  (12.418)
(1,810,000) (3,245,588) — - —
962,559 540,871 — - —
(2,559,619) (2,426,321) — — —
253,026 124,467 11,661 — —
(3.154,034) (5,006,571) 11,661 — —
(5.352,941) (6,100987)  (3,680,483)  (383,206)  (12,418)
1,918,551 3,771,083 — — —
(3.434,390) (2329904)  (3,689.483)  (383206)  (12,418)
2,644,534 485,480 716,341 — 313967
— 416,534 — —

3,169,516 — — — —
(3,434,390) (2,329904)  (3.689,483)  (383206)  (12,418)
2,644,534 485,480 716,341 — 3,139,167
$ (0.13) § (0.08) $ (029) §  (005) § 477
30,758,441 22,364,009 11,839,080 7,311,505 655,778
2,658,407 $  (6,083,774) § (501,035) $ (633,927) (9,487)
(39,854,248) (78,365,354)  (10,726,180)  (1,248,858) 7,987
38,670,280 84,948,298 9,797,425 3,438,064 21,500
2,119,098 § 644,659 § 145489 § 1575279 20,000
201,469,244 146,948,731 17.578420 3,340,564 20,000
33,500,000 68,750,000 — — —
47,596,061 — - - _
68,861,235 40,636,233 15390940 2,932,765 17,339

(1) We were incorporated as Huron Ventures, Inc, on May 29, 2003, and on June 3, 2003, we became a parent helding company
of Calypso Merger, Inc., the survivor of a merger of it and Calypso Enterprises, Inc. Calypso Enterprises, Inc. is a
predecessor of us for accounting purposes and its results of operations from July 1, 2002 until June 3, 2003 are included in

our financial statements covering such periods.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditien and Results of Operations
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain of the matters discussed under the captions “Business and Properties,” “Legal
Proceedings,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” and elsewhere in this annual report may constitute “forward-looking” statements for
purposes of the Securities Act of 1933, and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and, as such, may
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause the actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. When used in this report, the
words “anticipates,” “estimates,” “plans,” “believes,” “continues,” “expects,” “projections,” “forecasts,”
“intends,” *may,” “might,” “could,” “should,” and similar expressions are intended to be among the
statements that identify forward-looking statements. Various factors that could cause the actual results,
performance or achievements to differ materially from our expectations are disclosed in this report
(“Cautionary Statements”), including, without limitation, those statements made in conjunction with the
forward-looking statements included under the captions identified above and otherwise herein. All
written and oral forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by
the Cautionary Statements.

LIS LR

Overview
Introduction

We are a growing independent oil and natural gas company that is actively pursuing waterflooding
and enhanced oil recovery techniques to increase production and reserves at our existing properties and
properties acquired in the future. Qur primary focus is crude oil and our target acquisitions are
onshore U.S. properties. Our focus on domestic, mature oil fields eliminates exploration risks and
uncertainties of international sources. We use waterflooding and enhanced oil recovery methods, such
as alkaline/ surfactant/ polymer technology.

During our first two years of operations through June 30, 2006, our primary focus was to achieve
growth through acquiring existing, mature oil and natural gas fields. In March 2007, we acquired
Permian Basin oil and natura! gas properties located in New Mexico. We believe the portfolio of oil
and natural gas properties that we have acquired thus far provides ample opportunities to apply our
operational strategy.

As of June 30, 2007, we had proved reserves of 66,720 MBOE, of which 8,454 MBOE were proved
producing, 2,843 MBOE were proved non-producing, and 55,423 MBOE were proved undeveloped.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2007, our primary emphasis was to achieve growth by
developing our existing oil and natural gas properties through development activities such as
waterflooding and EOR technology. We will continue to evaluate potential acquisition targets that are
consistent with our operational strategy. These development activities are more clearly defined later in
the next section titled “Capital Development Update.”

As discussed in greater detail below under “Liquidity and Capital Resources”, during
September 2006, we issued preferred and common stock that had net proceeds of $75.5 million. These
proceeds were used to repay long-term debt of $68.75 million, and the remainder was used to provide
working capital and for general corporate purposes, including the funding of our fiscal 2007 capital
budget, as discussed below. Our outstanding subordinated debt totaling $15 million, with an interest
rate of 12.74%, has been permanently retired. The Credit Agreement is our only source of long-term
debt.
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Capital Development Update

For the year ended June 30, 2007 (2007 Fiscal Year”), we incurred $53 million of capital
expenditures. Of the $53 million, $45 million was incurred ($40 million spent) to implement
developmental projects at our existing fields to increase reserves; convert existing proved undeveloped
reserves to proved producing reserves; and increase production. The remaining $8 million pertained to
our acquisition of New Mexico Properties, as discussed below. The $53 million was financed by the
September 2006 financing and Credit Agreement, as discussed below under “Liquidity and Capital
Resources.”

For the year ending June 30, 2008 (“2008 Fiscal Year™), we have a capital development budget of
$57 million, which is further discussed under 2008 Planned Capital Expenditures.” The status of our
capital development activity during Fiscal Year 2007 and planned activity during 2008 Fiscal Year is
summarized as follows;

Panhandle Properties. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the Panhandle Properties
are 35,547 MBOE, of which 3,397 MBOE are proved producing, 32,150 MBOE are proved
undeveloped and none of which is proved non-producing. Current production is approximately
650 BOEPD. We are progressing with the execution of our waterflood development plan at the
Cockrell Ranch Unit of the Panhandle Field, We were granted our Phase [ waterflood injection permits
from the Texas Railroad Commission in February 2007. We have had two drilling rigs running in the
field since April 2007 and have drilled and completed 60 waterflood replacement wells in our Phase |
and Phase 11 development patterns. 10 replacement wells remain to be drilled to complete Phase III.
We commenced water injection into the Cockrell Ranch Unit waterflood at the Panhandle field on
July 5, 2007. At the present time, we have a total of 34 injection wells water moving into the Brown
Dolomite formation at roughly 24,000 barrels per day. As we continue bringing additional injection
wells on, we anticipate achieving the full 75 well injection pattern by mid-October 2007 with a
maximum injection rate of 52,500 barrels per day. Preliminary response from the waterflood is still
anticipated in December 2007. Full waterflood development over the remaining 11,000+ net acres of
the Panhandle Properties is anticipated once the initial response data is available.

Desdemona Properties. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the Desdemona
Properties are 11,851 MBOE, of which 711 MBOE are proved producing, 1,175 MBOE are proved
non-producing and 9,965 MBOE are proved undeveloped. Current production is approximately
205 BOEFPD.

Desdemona Properties—Waterflood. 'We have drilled and completed 11 required replacement wells
to initiate the development of the Duke Sand Waterflood at Desdemona. Procurement and
infrastructure development of the waterflood facilities is 100% complete. We have received
preliminary approval of our waterflood permit from the Texas Railroad Commission and expect to
initiate water injection within the next 30 days. We anticipate an initial waterflood response in the
first calendar quarter of 2008,

Desdemona Properties—Barnett Shale. 'We have successfully drilled and completed wells in the
Barnett Shale formation in this field, located some 50 miles west of established Barnett Shale
production in the Ft. Worth Basin. We have drilled fifteen vertical wells to delineate the lateral
extent of the Barnett Shale formation within the roughly 11,000 acres of our Desdemona Field.
Currently, the Barnett Shale vertical wells are averaging 700 MCFPD of total gas production. The
results of the vertical well test program have provided encouraging results that have allowed us to
initiate our Horizontal Well Development Program in the field.

Based on our vertical test results and analogs, it is internally estimated Cano has 80 total
horizontal locations on roughly 120 acre spacing, of which 76 future horizontal locations were
considered for proved undeveloped reserves. We booked proved reserves of 6.8 MMBOE for the
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Barnett Shale play at June 30, 2007. Of this amount, 6.0 MMBOE was proved undeveloped. We
also have Marble Falls formation re-completion potential in all of our vertical and horizontal
Barnett Shale wells. Based on the three existing Marble Falls re-completions producing in the field,
we booked 4.0 MMBOE of proved reserves, of which 3.9 MMBOE was proved undeveloped in the
Marble Falis formation. We have drilled and completed 4 horizontal wells out of the announced
FY 2008 Budget 24 horizontal wells in the field. The four new wells are currently flowing back
load and are under evaluation. In response to currently low natural gas prices, we have elected to
defer the drilling program in the Barnett Shale. Of the remaining capital amount of roughly

$15 million committed to this program, roughly $5 million will be re-directed to the New Mexico
Properties {as discussed below) and the balance of $§10 million will committed to the Barnett Shale
program once natural gas prices improve.

Nowata Properties. Praved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable 10 the Nowata Properties are
1,687 MBOE, all of which are proved producing. As a result of prior waterflood operations on the
Nowata Properties, current net production is approximately 200 BOEPD. We completed the budgeted
workovers to return 15 wells to production in the Nowata field to optimize the existing waterflood
pattern. Our tertiary recovery pilot project at the Nowata Field is underway. The ASP pilot plant,
associated equipment and supplies were installed and tested during July and August 2007. ASP Pilot
start-up operations will begin in mid-September 2007. Response is anticipated in the first calendar
quarter of 2008.

Davenport Properties. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the Davenport Properties
are 1,488 MBOE, of which 552 MBOE are proved producing, 936 MBOE are proved non-producing
and none of which are proved undeveloped. As a result of ongoing waterflood operations on the
Davenport Properties, current production is approximately 80 BOEPD. We completed workovers to
return twelve wells to production and are awaiting final regulatory approval to activate eleven injection
wells to optimize the existing waterflood pattern at this field. Initial results of the wells returned to
production have been encouraging and production increases have exceeded expectations. Contingent
upon successful laboratory studies, we anticipate initiating an ASP Pilot project during our fiscal year
ending June 30, 2009.

Corsicana Properties. The Corsicana Properties were the subject of a proved surfactant-polymer
chemical injection pilot in the 1980s and contain proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 of 205 MBOE, of
which 108 MBOE are proved non-producing and 97 MBOE are proved undeveloped. We have drilled
and completed 16 pattern replacement wells and plan to reinstate a prior waterflood in this field.
During June 2007, we received the required permits to inject water. We are planning to reinstate the
pricr waterflood in September 2007. As we previously mentioned, we have been pleased with the
remaining oil saturations in this field and coupled with the prior successful polymer pilot in this field in
the 1980’s we believe this field is a prime ASP candidate. Once the waterflood response and laboratory
results are analyzed, we anticipate evaluating an ASP Pilot in the field in calendar year 2008.

Pantwist Properties. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the Pantwist Properties are
6,829 MBOE, of which 1,883 MBOE are proved producing, 4,946 MBOE are proved undeveloped and
none of which are proved non-producing. Current production is approximately 350 BOEPD. We
anticipate implementation of waterflood injection operations during 2011 and 2012 calendar years.

New Mexico Properties—New Acquisition. In addition to the capital spending activities previously
discussed, we completed an acquisition on March 30, 2007, with an effective date of February 1, 2007,
to acquire certain oil and gas properties in the Permian Basin for approximately $8.4 million, after
purchase price adjustments. Proved reserves as of June 30, 2007 attributable to the New Mexico
Properties are 9,112 MBOE, of which 224 MBOE are proved producing, 8,264 MBOE are proved
undeveloped and 624 MBOE are proved non-producing. Current production is approximately 50
BOEPD. These properties include roughly 20,000 acres and three fields in Chavez and Roosevelt
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Counties, New Mexico. The prime asset is the roughly 15,000 acre Cato Field, which produces from the
historically prolific San Andres formation, which has been successfully waterflooded in the Permian
Basin for over 30 years. We believe that the Cato Field is the largest San Andres field in the Permian
Basin that has never been flooded. There were two successful waterflood pilots conducted in the field
in the 1970’s by Shell and Amoco. This field was unitized by Kelt Oil in 1990, secondary recovery
permits are in place and there now exists a water supply pipeline to an adjacent field 1.5 miles away.
Moreover, this field is a very viable CO-2 tertiary flood candidate with a CO-2 pipeline located four
miles from the site. We initiated well workovers and a return to production program in May 2007. We
have worked over 20 idle wells and have returned 10 wells to production to date. We plan to return
between 60 - 80 wells to production during the course of the year. We have deployed re-frac
stimulations on four wells in the field. Production responses of between 15 - 25 BOEPD per well have
been achieved. It is our goal to re-frac up to 25 of the return to production wells during the course of
the year. Additionally, one drilling rig has been contracted to drill 11 new 40-acre spaced wells in areas
of the field that have not been developed. The first well is expected to spud by October 2007. Another
drilling rig has been contracted to drill 21 new 20-acre infill wells in an area of the field that had a
prior waterflood pilot. The first well is expected to spud by November 2007. Initiation of Phase I of the
waterflood at Cato is scheduled for second calendar quarter of 2008.

Rich Valley Field. On June 11, 2007, pursuant to the terms of an Agreement for Purchase and
Sale, we sold our interests in the Rich Valley Properties located in Oklahoma and Kansas to Anadarko
Minerals, Inc. for net proceeds of $6.9 million cash. The agreement had an effective date of Apnil 1,
2007. All of the funds received were used to reduce the outstanding balance under the Credit
Agreement discussed below. As of April 1, 2007, the asscts of the Rich Valley Properties totaled
$3.3 million, of which $3.2 million represented the oil and gas properties, net. We recognized a
$3.8 million pre-tax gain on the sale of the Rich Valley Properties.

Industry Cenditions

We believe significant acquisition opportunities will continue to exist primarily because the major
energy companies and large independents continue to focus their attention and resources toward the
discovery and development of large fields. During the past several years, the major companies have
been divesting themselves of their mature oilfields, a trend management cxpects will continue. Also, the
recent economics of the oil and natural gas market have improved as prices have risen substantially.
These conditions provide ample opportunities for smaller independent companies to acquire and
exploit mature U.S. fields. We expect that there will be increased competition for such properties in the
future.

QOur Strategy

* Acquire Strategic Assets. We seek to acquire low-cost assets with a high ratio of non-proven or
proved undeveloped reserves suitable for waterflood and EOR techniques, primarily in the
onshore United States. We believe we have acquired an attractive portfolio of assets to
implement our business plan. We will continue to selectively target potential acquisition
candidates in a disciplined manner, which involves being financially prudent and acquiring assets
that meet our engineering and operational standards. We focus on U.S. operations. Accordingly,
we are not subject to geopolitical uncertainties, dependence on foreign sources and other issues
related to overseas operations.

« No Exploration Risk. Qur portfolio is comprised of mature fields with proven reserves, existing
infrastructure and abundant technical information. Accordingly, our production growth is not
dependent on exploration dritling and the high degree of speculation in making new discoveries.
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* Exploit and Develop Existing Properties. We intend to add proved reserves to, and increase
production from, our existing properties through the application of advanced technologies,
including water, gas or chemical flooding and other EOR techniques. We believe that our
management team has a proven track record of exploiting underdeveloped properties to increase
reserves and cash flow.

* Maintain a Low Cost Structure. We intend to maintain a low cost structure through maintaining
efficient operations and operating control. We intend to be the working interest operator in a
high proportion of our properties. This allows us to exercise more control over expenses, capital
allocation, and the timing of development and exploitation activities in our fields. It also enables
us to implement controls over our costs to ensure prudent expenditures. Further, we employ
engineering and geological consultants to aid in evaluating the economic merits of drilling plans
and potential acquisitions on a case-by-case basis rather than staffing these positions, enabling us
to maintain low fixed costs.

Waterflood operations and EOR techniques such as surfactant-polymer chemical injection involve
significant capital investment and an extended period of time, generally a year or longer, from the
initial phase of a program until increased production occurs. Generally, surfactant polymer injection is
regarded as more risky compared to waterflood operations. Our ability to successfully convert proved
undeveloped reserves to proved producing reserves will be contingent upon our ability to obtain future
financing and/or raise additional capital, and further, is greatly contingent upon inherent uncertainties
associated with the production of oil and natural gas as well as price volatility. See “Risk Factors.”

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of capital and liquidity have been issuance of equity securities, borrowings
under credit facilities with lenders, and cash flows from operating activities.

September 2006 Financing

On September 6, 2006, we sold in a private placement 49,116 shares of Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock at a price of $1,000.00 per share and 6,584,247 shares of common stock at a price of
$4.83 per share, the three day average closing price of the stock prior to the execution of the definitive
agreements, plus a warrant component. The preferred stock has a 7.875% dividend and features a
paid-in-kind (“PIK") provision that allows, at the investor’s option, the investor to receive additional
shares of common stock upon conversion for the dividend in lieu of a cash dividend payment. Holders
of approximately 55% of the preferred stock chose the PIK dividend option. The preferred stock is
convertible to common stock at a price of $3.75 per share and the common stock was subject to 25%
warrant coverage at an exercise price of $4.79 per share. If any Series D Convertible Preferred Stock
remains outstanding on September 6, 2011, we are required to redeem the Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock for a redemption amount in cash equal to the stated value of the Preferred Stock, plus
accrued dividends and PIK dividends. Gross proceeds from the transactions were $80.9 million, of
which $49.1 million was attributable to the preferred stock, and $31.8 million was attributable to the
common stock and warrants. Net proceeds were $75.5 million after deducting for issuance costs of
$5.4 million.

The warrant component totals 1,646,061 common shares and is exercisable at $4.79 per share. The
exercise period commenced on March 35, 2007 and expires on March 6, 2008.
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For the year ended June 30, 2007, the preferred dividend was $3,169,516, of which $1,746,923
pertained to holders of the PIK dividend option.

Cash proceeds from the September 2006 financing were used to repay long-term debt of
$68.75 million (see Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements), for general corporate purposes and
to fund our capital expenditures as previously discussed. The long-term debt consisted of amounts due
under the Credit Agreement and subordinated credit agreement of $53.75 million and $15.0 million,
respectively. Due to repaying the $15.0 million outstanding balance on the subordinated credit
agreement, this debt facility was permanently retired.

Credit Agreement

On November 29, 2005, we entered into a $100 million credit agreement (“Credit Agreement”)
with the lenders led by Union Bank of California, N.A., as administrative agent and as issuing lender.
During the quarter ended March 31, 2006, Natixis was named as a lender via an amendment to the
Credit Agreement. The maturity date {s November 29, 2009.

At June 30, 2007, we had $33.5 million outstanding under our Credit Agreement. As discussed in
Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, on September 7, 2007, our lenders approved an
increase in the borrowing base to $60.0 million. At September 6, 2007, we had $41.5 million
outstanding under our Credit Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement, the
borrowing base is based on our proved reserves and is redetermined every six months with one
additional redetermination possible during the six month periods between scheduled redeterminations.

Subject to certain restrictions, the Credit Agreement permits the issuance of convertible notes and
equity with an optional redetermination of the borrowing base upon such issuance. If we are not in
default under the Credit Agreement, we may make interest payments on any convertible notes and
dividend payments on any preferred equity securities.

The Credit Agreement provides that we must comply with certain covenants for Leverage and
Interest Coverage Ratios. These ratios are discussed in greater detail in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements. We were in compliance with these ratios as of June 30, 2007.

At our option, interest is based either (i) on the prime rate plus the applicable margin ranging up
to 1.00% based on the utilization level or (ii) on the LIBOR rate applicable to the interest period plus
the applicable margin ranging from 1.75% to 2.50% based on the utilization level. At June 30, 2007
and 2006, the interest rate was 7.46% and 8.49%, respectively. At September 6, 2007, the interest rate
was 7.97%. For loans that arc three months or less in maturity, interest is due on the maturity date of
such loan. For loans that are in excess of three months, interest is due every three months.

The outstanding principal is due on or before November 29, 2009 unless pursuant to the terms of
the Credit Agrecment, specific events of default occur as a result of which all outstanding principal and
all accrued interest may be accelerated. Such specific events of default, include, but are not limited to:
payment defaults by us, breaches of representations and warranties and covenants by us, our insolvency,
a “change of control” of our business as described in the Credit Agreement and a “material adverse
change” as described in the Credit Agreement.

The Credit Agreement imposes certain restrictions on us and our subsidiaries including, but not
limited to, the following: (i) subject to specific exceptions, incurring additional liens; (ii) subject to
specific exceptions, incurring additional debt; (iii) subject to specific exceptions, merging or
consolidating or selling, transferring, assigning, farming-out, conveying or otherwise disposing of any
property; (iv) subject to specific exceptions, making certain payments, including cash dividends to our
stockholders; (v) subject to specific exceptions, making any loans, advances or capital contributions to,
or making any investment in, or purchasing or committing to purchase any stock or other securities or
evidences of indebtedness or interests in any person or any oil and natural gas properties or activities
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related to oil and natural gas properties unless with regard to new oil and natural gas properties, such
properties are mortgaged to Union Bank of California, N.A., as administrative agent, or with regard to
new subsidiaries, such subsidiaries execute a guaranty, pledge agreement, security agreement and
mortgage in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as administrative agent; and (vi) subject to
specific exceptions, entering into affiliate transactions on terms that are not at least as favorable to us
as comparable arm’s length transactions,

In addition, we are required to enter into financial contracts to hedge our exposure to commodity
price risk associated with expected oil and natural production. The Credit Agreement requires financial
hedge contracts to cover no less than 50% and no more than 80% of the production volumes
attributabie to our proved reserves. Our financial hedge contracts are further discussed in Note 5 of the
consolidated financial statements.

As security for our obligations under the Credit Agreement: (i) cach of our subsidiaries has
guaranteed all of our obligations; (ii} we, together with each of our subsidiaries, have executed
mortgages in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A,, as collateral trustee, covering oil and natural gas
properties located in Texas, Oklahoma and New Mexico; (iii) we, together with each of cur subsidiaries,
have granted a security interest in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as collateral trustee, in
substantially all of our assets; and (iv) we have pledged our ownership interests in all of our
subsidiaries to Union Bank of California, N.A., as collateral trustee.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities and Other Capital Resources

At June 30, 2007, our cash balance was $2.1 million. We had cash provided by operating activities
of $2.7 million during 2007 Fiscal Year, which was an improvement of $8.8 million as compared to the
$6.1 million used in operations for 2006 Fiscal Year. The $8.8 million improvement is largely due to
improved earnings as discussed under “Results of Operations—Years Ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005 and reduced expenditures for commodity derivatives. At June 30, 2007, we had unused borrowing
capacity of $1(.5 million. The average interest rate of our debt was 7.46% at June 30, 2007. These
results included net proceeds of $6.9 million that we received for the sale of the Rich Valley Properties,
as previously discussed.

We believe the combination of cash on hand, cash flow generated from operations, strong
commodity prices, available debt of $18.5 million under our Credit Agreement, and access to the
capital markets for any future public or private issuances of debt or equity issuances should be
sufficient to finance our working capital needs and $57 million capital expenditure program for 2008
Fiscal Year as further discussed below, in the section titled “2008 Planned Capital Expenditures.”
However, no assurance may be given that we will be successful in improving our operating results, the
eventual success of our field developmental activities during the next twelve months or that we can
successfully access capital markets for debt or equity issuances.

2008 Planned Capital Expenditures

For 2008 Fiscal Year we have a capital development budget of $57 million. We plan to spend
approximately $20 to $25 million during the six months ended December 31, 2007 and the remaining
amount during the six months ended June 30, 2008. As discussed under “Capital Development
Update,” the expenditures will primarily focus on completion of the Phase 1 waterflood development at
the Panhandle Properties, initiate well workovers and a return to production of the New Mexico
Properties, continued drilling in the Barnett Shale and completion of the ASP injection at the Nowata
Properties.
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Results of Operations—Years Ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005
Overall

For the 2007 Fiscal Year, we had a loss applicable to common stock of $4.0 million, which is
$2.2 million higher as compared to the $1.8 million loss applicable to common stock for year ended
June 30, 2006 (2006 Fiscal Year).”

For the 2006 Fiscal Year, we had a loss applicable to common stock of $1.8 million, which is
$1.6 million lower as compared to the $3.4 million loss applicable to common stock incurred for the
year ended June 30, 2005 (2005 Fiscal Year”).

The following table summarizes the differences between the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and

2005.
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Increase (Decrease)

Amounts in $millions 2007 2006 2005 2007 v. 2006 2006 v. 2005
Results of continuing oil and gas producing

operations, excluding unrealized loss on

commodity derivatives . .. ... ... ... ... .. $116 §57.1 $1.1 $ 4.5 $60
Income from discontinued operations. . .......... 2.6 0.5 0.7 2.1 (0.2)
Less the following items:
General and administrative ... ... ............. 12.8 7.6 48 5.2 2.8
Interest expense, NEt. ... ... 23 2.3 — — 23
Deferred income tax benefit . ................. (1.9 (3.8) — 1.9 (3.8)
Preferred stock dividend . . .. .. ... .. o 32 — — 32 —
Preferred stock discount ... ... ........ ... .. — — 0.4 — (0.4)
Unrealized loss on commodity derivatives. ... ... .. 1.8 33 — (1.5) 33
Net loss applicable to common stock ... ......... $(40) $(1.8) $(34) $(2.2) 1.6

Results of oil and natural gas producing operations consist of operating revenues plus realized gain
on commodity derivatives less lease operating expenses, production taxes, accretion of asset retirement
obligations, and depletion and depreciation. The income from the discontinued operations pertains to
the sale of our Rich Valley Properties, as further discussed in Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statemnents,

2007 Fiscal Year results of continuing oil and gas producing operations is $4.5 million higher than
2006 Fiscal Year primarily due to:

» Including a full twelve months of operating results from the Panhandle and Pantwist Properties
which contributed $4.2 million. The 2006 Fiscal Year operating results included seven months of
Panhandle Properties and two months of Pantwist Properties.

* The remaining $0.3 million increase is attributed to improved operating results from our
Davenport, Desdemona and Nowata Properties primarily due to increased sales.

2006 Fiscal Year is $6.0 million higher than 2005 Fiscal Year primarily due to:

» Including seven months of operating results from the acquisition of the Panhandle Properties
which contributed $3.1 million;

| + Including two months of operating results from the Pantwist Properties which contributed
$0.9 million;

37




* Including two months of operating results from the Nowata Properties which contributed
$0.4 million: and

* Improved operating results from our Davenport, Desdemona, and Nowata Properties, primarily
due to higher crude oil and natural gas prices received and increased saies.

The other factors mentioned in the above table will be addressed in the following discussion.

Operating Revenues

The table below summarizes our operating revenues for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and
2005,

Year Ended June 30, Increase (Decrease)
2007 2006 2005 2007 v. 2006 2006 v. 2005

Operating Revenues . .................... $28,353 $15,861 $3,764  $12.492 $12,097
Sales:

Oil(MBbls) . . ........................ 274 180 75 94 105

Gas (MMcf) ......................... 1,313 531 18 782 513

MBOE ... . .. . 493 208 78 225 190
Average Price

($/Bb). ... .. $ 6195 § 6332 $4898 § (1.37) § 1434

(M) ... $ 867 § 8338 $537 % 029 § 3m

$/BOE. ... .. . . . $ 5755 §$59.03 $4833 § (1.48) $ 1070

2007 Fiscal Year v. 2006 Fiscal Year

The 2007 Fiscal Year operating revenues of $28.4 million represent an improvement of
$12.5 million as compared to the 2006 Fiscal Year operating revenues of $15.9 million. The
$12.5 million improvement is primarily due to:

* Including a full twelve months of Panhandle and Pantwist Properties operating revenues,
accounted for $11.4 million (197 MBOE) of the improvement. The 2006 Fiscal Year included
seven months of Panhandle Properties’ revenue and two months of Pantwist Properties’ revenue.

* Increased revenues from the Desdemona Properties ($0.5 million of revenue and 15 MBOE of
sales) primarily due to increased natural gas sales from our development of the Barnett Shale
formation, as previously discussed under “Capital Development Update.”

* Increased production from the Davenport and Nowata Properties ($0.4 million and 9 MBOE of
sales).

* Production from the recent acquisition, effective April 1, 2007, of our New Mexico Properties
($0.2 million and 4 MBOE of salcs).
2006 Fiscal Year v. 2005 Fiscal Year

The 2006 Fiscal Year operating revenues of $15.9 million represent an improvement of
$12.1 million as compared to the 2005 Fiscal Year of $3.8 million. The $12.1 million improvement is
primarily attributable to:

* Including seven months of operating revenue from the Panhandle Properties (7.9 million of
revenue and 139 MBOE of sales);

* Including two months of operating revenue from the Pantwist Properties ($1.5 mitlion of revenue
and 24 MBOE of sales);
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» Including an additional two months of operating revenue from the Nowata Field ($0.8 million of
revenue and 12 MBOE of sales);

» The higher prices received for crude oil and natural gas sales; and
* Increased sales of 15 MBOE from the other fields.

The average price we received for crude oil sales is generally at or above posted prices in the field.
The average price we receive for natural gas sales is approximately the market (indexed) price less
marketing and other purchaser expenses. The average prices received for crude oil and natural gas
sales are positively impacted by settlement payments received under our derivative agreements as
discussed below under “Loss on Hedging Contracts [ Settlement Payments.”

During March 2006, there were grass fires in the Texas Panhandle area. These fires temporarily
shut-in production on the Panhandle Properties until flow lines were restored. We estimate the
temporary shut-in resulted in approximately $0.3 million reduction in revenues for March and
April 2006. By mid-April 2006, the Panhandle Propertics were producing at 95% of normal operations.

We expect future increases to sales through capital expenditures as previously discussed under
“Capital Development Update.”
Operating Expenses
2007 Fiscal Year v. 2006 Fiscal Year

For the 2007 Fiscal Year, our total operating expenses were $30.6 million, or $13.6 million higher
than the 2006 Fiscal Year of $17.0 million. The $13.6 million increase is primarily attributed to:

» Including a full twelve months of Panhandle and Pantwist Properties operating expenses,
accounted for $6.9 million of the increase. The 2006 Fiscal Year included seven months of
Panhandle Properties’ revenue and two months of Pantwist Properties’ revenue.

* Higher general and administrative expenses of §5.2 million.

« Higher operating expenses due to increased sales, as discussed under “Operating Revenues™.

2006 Fiscal Year v. 2005 Fiscal Year

For the 2006 Fiscal Year, our total operating expenses were $17.0 million, or $9.5 million higher
than the 2005 Fiscal Year of $7.5 million. The $9.5 million increase is primarily attributed to:

» Including seven months of the Panhandle Properties operating expenses totaling $4.4 million;
+ Including two months of the Pantwist Properties operating expenses totaling $0.6 million;
+ Including two additional months of the Nowata Field operating expenses totaling $0.4 million;
« Higher general & administrative expenses of $2.8 million; and
« Higher other operating expenses due to increased sales, as discussed under “Operating
Revenues”.
Lease Operating Expenses

Our lease operating expenses (“LOE”) consists of the costs of producing crude oil and natural gas
such as labor, supplies, repairs, maintenance, and utilitics. Qur LOE per BOE showed a positive
downward trend during the past three years as for the 2007, 2006 and 2005 Fiscal Years, the LOE per
BOE was $21.78, $22.41 and $26.56, respectively, for our continuing operations. We generally incur a
high amount of LOE because our fields are more mature and typically produce less oil and more
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water, and they are generally at the end of the primary or secondary production cycle. Since our
acquisitions are mature fields, our initial focus is to evaluate the existing operations and make the
necessary operational improvements to improve operating efficiency. Based on management’s past
experience, it generaltly requires up to twelve months to fully analyze the acquired field and spend the
necessary funds to improve the field operations to meet our operational standards. We expect these
expenditures should lead to increased operational efficiency and reduced operating expenses in future
periods.
General and Administrative Expenses

Our general and administrative (“G&A”) expenses consist of support services for our operating
activities and investor relations costs,
2007 Fiscal Year v. 2006 Fiscal Year

For the 2007 Fiscal Year, our G&A expenses totaled $12.8 million, which is $5.2 million higher
than the Fiscal Year of $7.6 million. The primary contributors to the $5.2 million increase were:

* Increased labor and staffing costs of $1.4 million;
* Higher legal fees of §1.6 million to comply with regulatory requirements and for litigation;

* Increased fees of $0.8 million for accounting services for SEC reporting and to achieve full
compliance with the Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

* Expenses of $0.4 mitlion to maintain the WO Energy offices; and

*» Other items totaling $1.0 million due to higher office rent expenses, increased board of director
compensation and increased insurance costs.

For the 2007 Fiscal Year and 2006 Fiscal Year, our payroll and payroll-related costs comprise
$4.0 million and $3.0 million, respectively, of our total G&A expenses. We expect these costs to
continue to increase because the recent growth in the petroleum industry has increased competition for
labor resources.
2006 Fiscal Year v. 2005 Fiscal Year

For the 2006 Fiscal Year, our G&A expenses totaled $7.6 million, which is $2.8 million higher than
the 2005 Fiscal Year of $4.8 million. The primary contributors to the $2.8 million increase were:

* Increased labor and staffing costs of $1.8 million;
* Higher legal fees of $1.1 million to comply with regulatory requirements and for litigation;

« Expenses associated with the Sabine joint venture of $§0.4 million, as discussed in Note 7 of our
consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2007;

» Expenses of $0.3 million to maintain the WO Energy offices; and

* Other items totaling $0.4 million are attributed to higher travel costs, board of director
compensation, higher accounting fees and increased insurance costs.

Offsetting these increases was lower deferred compensation expense of $1.2 million.

Realized GainfUnrealized Loss on Hedging Contracts

As discussed in Note 5 of our consolidated financial statements for the 2007 Fiscal Year and 2006
Fiscal Year, we paid $1.6 million and $6.1 million, respectively, to enter into financial contracts to set
price floors for crude oil and natural gas through June 2010. We recorded an unrealized loss on
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commodity derivatives of $1.8 million and $3.2 million, respectively, to reflect the fair value of the
derivative instruments as of June 30, 2007 and 2006. By their nature, these derivative instruments can
be highly volatile to our earnings. A five percent change in these prices for our derivative instruments
can impact earnings by approximately $135,000. We did not have hedging contracts during the 2005
Fiscal Year.

Also, during the 2007 and 2006 Fiscal Years, as discussed in Note 5 of our consolidated financial
statements, there were settlements under our commodity derivatives due to us amounting to $962,559
and $540,871, respectively, which are recorded as realized gain on commodity derivative. The
settlements were cumulative monthly payments to us since the NYMEX natural gas price was lower
than the “floor natural gas prices” ranging between $7.60 and $8.50 and the WTI-NYMEX oil price
was lower than the “floor oil prices” ranging from $55 to $60. The cash flows relating to the derivative
instruments are reflected in operating activities on our consolidated statements of cash flows.

As discussed in Note 4 of our consolidated financial statements, the Credit Agreement requires
that we hedge no less than 50% and no more than 80% of the production volumes attributable to our
proved producing reserves. We are required to maintain three year hedges, and to update our hedges
semi-annually. We intend to enter into financial contracts to set price floors for our crude oil and
natural gas production.

Interest Expense

For 2007 Fiscal Year and 2006 Fiscal Year, we incurred interest expense of $2.6 million and
$2.4 million, respectively, as a direct result of the credit agreements we entered into, as discussed in
Note 4 of our consolidated financial statements. We did not have credit agreements during the 2005
Fiscal Year,

As discussed under “Liguidity and Capital Resources” and Note 4 of our consolidated financial
statements, on September 6, 2006, we completed a private placement of preferred stock, common stock
and warrants totaling gross proceeds of $80.9 million. The preferred dividend rate is 7.875%. These
proceeds have been used to repay long-term debt of $68.75 million, and the remainder was used to
provide working capitai and for general corporate purposes, including the funding of a portion of our
fiscal 2007 capital budget. Our outstanding subordinated debt totaling $15 million, with an interest rate
of 12.74%, has been permanently retired. The Credit Agreement is our only source of long-term debt.

Deferred Income Tax Benefit

As the resuit of the recognition of the deferred tax liabilities assumed in the acquisitions of WO
Energy and Square One, we have recorded a net deferred tax liability. This aflows us to recognize
deferred tax benefits from generation of net operating losses because a valuation allowance against
such items is not required. We review our deferred tax assets at least quarterly and record a valuation
allowance against those assets when we conclude that it is more likely than not that those assets will
expire without being utilized. For the 2007, 2006 and 2005 Fiscal Year, we recorded a deferred income
tax benefit of $1.9 miltion, $3.8 million and $0, respectively. For 2006, the $3.8 million benefit amounts
to an effective tax rate of approximately 65%, due to recording the effect of a change in enacted rates
in the State of Texas in May 2006, amounting to $1,840,000. See Note 11 of our consolidated financial
statements for more information.

Income from Discontinued Operations

On June 11, 2007, pursvant to the terms of an Agreement for Purchase and Sale, we sold our
interests in the Rich Valley Properties located in Oklahoma and Kansas to Anadarko Minerals, Inc. for
net proceeds of $6.9 million cash. The sale of the Rich Valley Properties resulted in a pre-tax gain of
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$3.8 million. For 2007 Fiscal Year, we recognized income from the discontinued operations of
$2.6 million. This is discussed in greater detail at Note 6 of the consolidated financial statements.

Preferred Stock Dividend

The preferred stock dividend during the 2007 Fiscal Year of $3.2 million resulted from the
preferred stock financing, which was completed on September 6, 2006, as discussed in Note 2 of the
consolidated financial statements. We did not have preferred stock dividends during the 2006 Fiscal
Year or 2005 Fiscal Year.

Preferred Stock Discount

The reduced preferred stock discount amounting to $0.4 million occurred during the 2005 Fiscal
Year and was attributable to certain issuances of preferred stock during that period. Since we did not
issue preferred stock during the 2006 Fiscal Year and did not issue preferred stock at a discount during
the 2007 Fiscal Year, there is no preferred stock discount for the 2007 or 2006 Fiscal Years.

Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual obligations in thousands at June 30, 2007 for the
periods shown:

Less than One To Three to More Than
Amounts in $000s Total One Year Three Years Five Years  Five Years
Long-term debt(1}...................... $33,500 §$ — $33,500 $ — $ —
Operating lease obligations (See Note 12). . ... $1,635  $436 § 865 $334 5 —
Total contractual obligations . . . . ..... ... ... $35,135  $436 $34,365 $334 $ —

{1) The credit facility matures on November 29, 2009, At September 6, 2007, there was $41.5 million
outstanding under the credit facility.
Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off balance sheet arrangements.

Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

We derived the selected historical financial data in the table below from our unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements. The sum of net income per share by quarter may not equal the net
income per share for the year due to variations in the weighted average shares outstanding used in
computing such amounts, The historical data presented here are only a summary and should be read in
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conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, related notes and other financial information
included elsewhere in this annual report.

30-Sep 31-Dec 31-Mar 30-Jun

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007
Operating revenues from continuing operations . . $7,674,800 $ 6,157,932 §$ 5,883,454 §$8,636,840
Operating income (loss) from continuing

Operations .. ....... ... ., 133,478 (424,659) (1,587,287)  (320,439)
Loss from continuing operations . . . .......... (442,914) (530,281)  (2,250,689)  (210,507)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax . 75,021 85,103 59,559 2,424 851
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock . . . (636,492) (1,412,149) (3,158,102) 1,247,372
Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted . . (0.02) (0.04) {0.10) 0.04

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006
Operating revenues from continuing operations . .  $1,541,874  § 2,625,499 $ 4,835,493  $6,857,696
Operating income (loss) from continuing

OPerations ... ........vvivuivnnuenan.. (696,335) (691,401) 39,201 254,119
Net income (loss) from continuing operations . . . (610,373)  (1,656,251) (1,207,722} 1,144,442
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax . 152,416 169,715 76,694 86,655
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock . . . (457,957) (1,486,536) (1,131,028) 1,231,097
Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted . . {0.02) (0.06) (0.05) 0.05

Significant Accounting Policies

We have identified the critical accounting policies used in the preparation of our financial
statements. These are the accounting policies that we have determined involve the most complex or
subjective decisions or assessments.

We prepared our consolidated financial statements in accordance with United States gencrally
accepted accounting principles. GAAP requires management to make judgments and estimates,
including choices between acceptable GAAP altcrnatives.

Oil and Natural Gas Properties and Equipment

We follow the successful efforts method of accounting, capitalizing costs of successful exploratory
wells and expensing costs of unsuccessful exploratory wells. Ali developmental costs are capitalized. We
are predominately engaged in the acquisition and development of proved reserves as opposed to
exploration activities. The property costs reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
were resulted from acquisitions and development activity. We have capitalized overhead costs that
directly relate to our drilling and development and we recorded capitalized interest costs.

Depreciation and depletion of producing properties is computed on the units-of-production
method based on estimated proved oil and natural gas reserves. Repairs and maintenance are
expensed, while renewals and betterments are generally capitalized.

Qur units-of-production amortization rates are revised on a quarterly basis. Our development costs
and lease and wellhead equipment are depleted based on proved developed reserves. Our leasehold
costs are depleted based on total proved reserves. Investments in major development projects are not
depleted until proved reserves associated with the projects can be determined or until impairment
occurs.

At least quarterly, or more frequently if conditions indicate that long-term assets may be impaired,
the carrying value of property is compared to management’s future estimated pre-tax cash flow from
the properties. If undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value, then the asset value is
written down to fair value. Impairment of individually significant unproved properties is assessed on a
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property-by-property basis, and impairment of other unproved properties is assessed and amortized on
an aggregate basis. We had no significant unproved properties at June 30, 2007 or 2006. No impairment
was necessary at June 30, 2007, 2006 or 2005.

Estimates of Proved Reserves

The term proved reserves is defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission in Rule 4-10(a)
of Regulation S-X adopted under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. [n general, proved reserves
are the estimated quantities of oil, gas and liquids that geological or engineering data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic
and operating conditions, i.e.,, prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made. Prices include
consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by contractual arrangements, but not on
escalations based on future conditions.

Our estimates of proved reserves materially impact depletion expense. If proved reserves decline,
then the rate at which we record depletion expense increases, reducing net income. A decline in
estimates of proved reserves may result from lower prices, evaluation of additional operating history,
mechanical problems on our wells and catastrophic events such as explosions, hurricanes and floods.
Lower prices also may make it uneconomical to drill wells or produce from fields with high operating
costs. In addition, a decline in proved reserves may impact our assessment of our oil and natural gas
properties for impairment.

Our proved reserve estimates are a function of many assumptions, all of which could deviate
materially from actual results. As such, reserve estimates may vary materially from the ultimate
quantities of oil and natural gas actually produced.

Asset Retirement Obligation

QOur financial statements reflect the fair value for any asset retirement obligation that can be
reasonably estimated upon acquiring or drilling a well, and the retirement obligation is recorded as a
liability at its estimated present value at the asset’s inception, with an offsetting increase to producing
properties on the consolidated balance shects. Periodic accretion of the discount of the estimated
liability is recorded as an expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when crude oil and natural gas quantities are delivered to or collected by
the respective purchaser. Title to the produced quantities transfers to the purchaser at the time the
purchaser collects or receives the quantities. Prices for such production are defined in sales contracts
and are readily determinable based on certain publicly available indices. The purchasers of such
production have historically made payment for erude oil and natural gas purchases within thirty-five
days of the end of each production month. We periodically review the difference between the dates of
production and the dates we collect payment for such production to ensure that receivables from those
purchasers are collectible. The point of sale for our oil and natural gas production is at our applicable
field gathering systems; therefore, we do not incur transportation costs related to our sales of oil and
natural gas production.

As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, we sold our crude oil and natural gas production to several
independent purchasers. During the year ended June 30, 2007, we had sales of 10% or more of our
total revenues to primarily four customers which represented 36%, 18%, 17% and 16% of total
operating revenue, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2006, we had sales of 10% or more of
our total revenues to five customers representing 29%, 25%, 12%, 12% and 109% of total operating
revenue, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2005, we had sales to primarily three customers
which represented 58%, 21% and 19% of total operating revenue, respectively.

44




Stock Compensation Expense

Effective July 1, 2006, we accounted for share-based payments for services provided by employee
to employer in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R}), which generally requires companies to value the fair
value of employee stock options and other equity-based compensation at the grant date and record the
expense over the vesting period. We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) beginning July 1, 2006. Since we had
expensed stock options in accordance with SFAS No. 123, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) did not
materially impact our operating results, financial position, or our cash flows.

Commodity Derivatives

We are required to hedge a portion of our production at specified prices for oil and natural gas
under the Credit Agreement, as discussed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. The
objective is to reduce our exposure to commodity price risk associated with expected oil and natural gas
production. By achieving this objective we intend to protect the outstanding debt amounts and
maximize the funds available under our existing Credit Agreement, which helps us to support our
annual capital budgeting and expenditure plans. We have entered into commodity derivatives that set
“price floors” for our crude oil and natural gas production that are recorded as derivative assets on our
consolidated balance sheets and are measured at fair value.

At June 30, 2007, we had no commodity derivatives that set a price ceiling. We do not hold or
issue commodity derivatives for speculative or trading purposes. We are exposed to credit tosses in the
event of nonperformance by the counterparty to our commeodity derivatives, We anticipate, however,
that our counterparty, Union Bank of California, will be able to fully satisfy their obligations under the
commodity derivatives contracts. We do not obtain collateral or other securily to support our
commodity derivatives contracts subject to credit risk but we monitor the credit standing of the
counterparty.

We have elected not to designate the commodity derivatives to which we are a party as hedges,
and accordingly, we record such contracts at fair value and recognize changes in such fair value in
current earnings as they occur.

Changes in the fair values of our derivative instruments are rccorded immediately in earnings as
unrealized gain or loss on commodity derivatives on our consolidated statements of operations. Cash
flows resulting from the settlement of our derivative instruments are recorded as realized gains on
commodity derivatives on the consolidated statements of operations.

New Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 157"), was issued by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) in September 2006. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value under GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 157 applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair
value measurement. No new requirements are included in SFAS No. 157, but application of SFAS
No. 157 will change current practice. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not expect adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a
material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

On July 13, 2006, the FASB released FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
Interpretation of FASB Statement 109 (“FIN 487). FIN 48 requires companies to evaluate and
disclose material uncertain tax positions it has taken with various taxing jurisdictions. We have reviewed
FIN 48 and determined the adoption of FIN 48 will not materially affect our operating results, financial
position, or future cash flows. We adopted FIN 48 on July 1, 2007.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Commodity Risk

Our revenues are derived from the sale of our crude cil and natural gas preduction. The prices for
oil and natural gas are extremely volatile and sometimes experience large fluctuations as a result of
relatively small changes in supplies, weather conditions, economic conditions and government actions.
Pursuant to our Credit Agreement, we are required to enter into financial contracts to hedge
approximately 50% to 80% of our production at specified floors for oil and natural gas between $55
and $60 per barrel and between $7.50 and $8.50 per Mcf. Therefore, for the hedged production, we will
receive at least the floor prices. During the year ended June 30, 2007, approximately 74% of our
production was hedged. The remaining 26% was not subject to the floors and is subject to the volatility
and price fluctuations of oil and natural gas.

Assuming that the prices that we receive for our crude oil and natural gas production are above
the above described floors, based on our actual fiscal year sales volumes for the year ended June 30,
2007, a 10% decline in the prices we receive for our crude oil and natural gas production would have
had an approximate 33 million impact on our revenues.

Interest Rate Risk

At June 30, 2007, we had borrowings of $33.5 million outstanding under our Credit Agreement. At
June 30, 2007, if there had been an increase in the interest rate of 1%, our interest expense would have
increased by $335,000 annually.

Commodity Derivatives

We are required to hedge a portion of our production at specified prices for oil and natural gas
under the Credit Agreement, as discussed in Note 4 of the consolidated financial statements. The
objective is to reduce our exposure to commodity price risk associated with expected oil and naturai gas
production. By achieving this objective we intend to protect the outstanding debt amounts and
maximize the funds available under our existing Credit Agreement, which helps us to support our
annual capital budgeting and expenditure pians. We have entered into commodity derivatives that set
“price floors” for our crude oil and natural gas production.

During our years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we paid $1.6 million and $6.1 million to enter
into commodity derivatives to set price floors. These financial contracts are summarized in the table
below.

Barrels of

Floor Barrels Floor Gas Mcf  Equivalent

Time Period Oil Price  per Day Gas Price  per Day  Qil per Day
VIO6 - 123106 .. ... .. o o $60 534 $8.50 1,784 832
6/1/06 - 12/31/06 . ... ... $60 79 $7.60 690 194
07 - 1231007 ... $355 507 $8.00 1,644 781
V107 - 12/31/07 ... $60 72 $7.60 658 182
V08 -12/31/08 .. ... ... $55 479 $7.50 1,534 735
1/08 - 12/31/08 .. ... ... 360 66 $7.60 592 164
M09 - 4/30/09 .. ... .. $60 59 $7.60 359 152
109 - 12/31/09 ... .. o $55 395 $7.60 1,644 668
VI/B0-6/30/10 oo $55 365 $7.00 1,657 641

During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, there were settlements under our commodity
derivatives due to us amounting to $962,559 and $540,871, respectively, which are recorded as realized
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gain on commodity derivatives on our consolidated statements of operations. The settlements were
cumulative monthly payments due to us since the NYMEX natural gas price was lower than the “floor
natural gas prices” ranging between $7.60 and $8.50 and the WTI-NYMEX oil price was lower than
the “floor oil prices” ranging from $55 to $60. The cash flows relating to the derivative instruments are
reflected in operating activities on our consolidated statements of cash flows.

We obtained mark-to-market valuations used for our commodity derivatives from an external
source and validated such valuations using quotes for exchange-traded options with similar terms. In
accordance with SFAS No. 133, we recorded the $7.7 million in payments as derivative assets. SFAS
No. 133 also provides that commodity derivatives be measured at fair value on the balance sheet date.
During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we recognized unrealized loss on commodity hedges
on our consolidated statements of operations amounting to $1,810,000 and $3,245,588, respectively,
under unrealized loss on hedge contracts. At June 30, 2007, our derivative assets totaled $2,691,974, of
which $1,881,800 was considered long-term.

If crude oil prices fell $1 below our hedged crude oil price floor, we would save approximately
$220,000 due to having the crude oil price floor hedge in place. If natural gas prices fell $1 below our
hedged natural gas price floor, we would save approximately $870,000 due to having the natural gas
price floor hedge in place.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm and Consolidated Financial
Statements are set forth beginning on page F-1 of this annual report on Form 10-K and are
incorporated herein.

The financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the
required information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) that are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the
information required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
(i) accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure; and
(ii) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the rules and
forms of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

We carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures as of the end of the period covered by this annual report. Based on that
evaluation, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of June 30, 2007 were effective.
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over
financial reporting as that term is defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Rule 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f). Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of our financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our
control environment is the foundation for our system of internal control over financial reporting and is
an integral part of our Code of Ethics and Business Conduct for Qfficers, Directors and Employees,
which sets the tone of our Company. Our internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect our transactions and dispositions of our assets; (ii) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of our financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that our receipts and expenditures are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of our management and directors; and (iii) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of our assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.

In order to evaluate the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of June 30,
2007, as required by Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, our management conducted an
assessment, including testing, based on the criteria set forth in Internal Control—Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the “COSQ
Framework™). Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not
prevent or detect misstatements. In addition, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial QOfficer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting and, based on that assessment, determined that our internal
control over financial reporting was effective as of June 30, 2007 to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

Hein & Associates LLF, the independent registered public accounting firm that audited the
consolidated financial statements of the Company included in this annual report on Form 10-K, has
issued an audit report on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007. The report, dated September 6, 2007, which
expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting and an opinion that the Company had maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007 based on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission {COSQO), is included below.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Cano Petroleum, Inc.
Fort Worth, Texas

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying “Management’s Annual
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting,” that Cano Petroleum, Inc. maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
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Commission {COSQ). Cano Petroleum, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reascnable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectivengss to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Cano Petroleum, Inc. maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of June 30, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Also in our opinion, Cano Petroleum, Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of June 30,
2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Qrganizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements of Cano Petroleum, Inc. and our
report dated September 7, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ Hein & Associates LLP

HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Dallas, Texas
September 7, 2007

Changes in Internal Controls

During the quarter ended June 30, 2007, there was no change in our internal control over financial
reporting that has materially effected or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control
over financial reporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information

On September 7, 2007, our director Donnie D. Dent announced that he will not seek re-election
as a director at the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

PART II1
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers of the Registrant and Corporate Governance

Information required by this item relating 1o our (i) directors, nominees for directors and executive
officers, (ii) audit committee, (iii)) Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, (iv) changes in procedures by
which security holders may recommend nominees to our board of directors, and (v) compliance with
Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act will be set forth in the earlier filed of an amendment to
this annual report on Form 10-K or our Proxy Statement relating to the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, that will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or prior to
October 29, 2007, and that is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by this item relating to executive compensation will be set forth in the earlier
filed of an amendment to this annual report on Form 10-K or our Proxy Statement relating to the 2007
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, that will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or
prior to October 29, 2007, and that is incorporated herein by reference.

Ttem 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information required by this item relating to (i) security ownership of certain beneficial owners
and management and (ii) securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans will be set
forth in the earlier filed of an amendment to this annual report on Form 10-K or our Proxy Statement
relating to the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, that will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on or prior to October 29, 2007, and that is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence

Information required by this item relating to (i) certain business relationships and related
transactions with management and other related parties and (i) director independence will be set forth
in the earlier filed of an amendment to this annual report on Form 10-K or our Proxy Statement
relating to the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, that will be filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on or prior to October 29, 2007, and that is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information relating to (i) fees billed to the Company by the independent public accountants
for services for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 and (ii) audit committee’s pre-approval policies
and procedures for audit and non-audit services, will be set forth in the earlier filed of an amendment
to this annual report on Form 10-K or our Proxy Statement relating to the 2007 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, that will be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on or prior to
October 29, 2007, and that is incorporated herein by reference.




PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

1. Index to Consolidated Financial Statements, Reports of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm, Consolidated Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, Consolidated
Statements of Operations for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2007,
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for each of the three years in the
period ended June 30, 2007, Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three
years in the period ended June 30, 2007, and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,

2. The financial statement schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the
required information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Exhibits: The exhibits required to be filed by this Item 15 are set forth in the Index to Exhibits
accompanying this report.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
registrant has duly caused this Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

CANO PETROLEUM, INC.

Date: September 11, 2007 By: /s/ S. JEFFREY JOHNSON

S. Jeffrey Johnson
Chief Executive Officer

Date: September 11, 2007 By: /s/ MORRIS B. SMITH

Morris B. Smith
Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial
Officer

Date: September 11, 2007 By: /s/ MICHAEL J. RICKETTS

Michael J. Ricketts
Vice-President and Principal Accounting
Officer

KNOW ALIL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each of the undersigned directors of Cano
Petroleum, Inc. hereby constitutes and appoints S. Jeffrey Johnson and Morris B. Smith or either of
them (with full power to each of them to act alone), his true and lawful attorney-in-facts and agents,
with full power of substitution, for him and on his behalf and in his name, place and stead, in any and
all capacities, to sign, cxecute and file any and all amendments to this Form 10-K, with all exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorneys, and each of them, full power and authority to do so and perform each
and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in and about the premises in order to
effectuate the same as full to all intents and purposes as he himself might or could do if personally
present, thereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or either of them, or
their or his substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done.

In accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
tollowing persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ S. JEFFREY JOHNSON Chairman of the Board September 11, 2007

§. Jeffrey Johnson

/s/ DONNIE D. DENT Director September 11, 2007
Donnie D. Dent

/s/ GERALD W. HADDOCK Director September 11, 2007

Gerald W. Haddock




Signature

/s/ RANDALL BOoyD

Randall Boyd

/s/ ROBERT L. GAUDIN

Robert L. Gaudin

/s/ DONALD W. NIEMIEC

Donald W. Niemiec

fs/ WiLLIAM O. POWELL II1

William O. Powell 111
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September 11, 2007




Exhibit
Number

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Description

2.1

2.2+

2.3+

2.4

2.6

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

Agreement and Plan of Merger made as of the 26" day of May 2004, by and among Huron
Ventures, Inc., Davenport Acquisition Corp., Davenport Field Unit Inc., the shareholders
of Davenport Field Unit Inc., Cano Energy Corporation and Big Sky Management Ltd.,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 99.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on

June 8, 2004.

Management Stock Pool Agreement dated May 28, 2004, incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 2.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed on August 11, 2004.

Investment Escrow Agreement dated May 28, 2004, incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 2.3 1o Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed on August 11, 2004.

Stock Purchase Agreement dated June 30, 2004, by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc., as
Buyer, and Jerry D. Downey and Karen S. Downey, as Sellers, incorparated by reference
from Exhibit 99.1 1o Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on July 15, 2004.

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated August 16, 2004, by and between Cano Energy
Corporation and Cano Petroleum, Inc., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed an August 25, 2004.

Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated September 2, 2004, by and between Nowata Oil
Properties LLC and Cano Petroleum, Inc., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 20, 2004.

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated February 6, 2005 by and between Square One Energy,
Inc. and Cano Petroleurn, Inc., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 7, 2005.

Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Cano Petroleum, Inc., W. Q. Energy of Nevada,
Inc., Miles O’Loughlin and Scott White dated November 29, 2005 (the schedule and
exhibits have been omitted from this filing. An exhibit to the schedules and exhibits is
contained in the Stock Purchase Agreement and the schedule and exhibits are availabie to
the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request), incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2005,

Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement among Myriad Resources Corporation, Westland
Energy Company and PAMTEX, a Texas general partnership composed of PAMTEX GP1
Ltd. and PAMTEX GP2 Ltd., as Sellers, and Cano Petroleum, Inc. as Buyer dated as of
April 25, 2006 (The schedules and exhibits have been omitted from this filling. An exhibit
to the schedules and exhibits is contained in the Asset Purchase and Sale Agreement and
the schedules and exhibits are available to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon
request}, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB
filed on May 15, 2006.

Amendment No. One to Stock Purchase Agreement by and among Cano Petroleum, Inc.,
W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.,, Estate of Miles O’Loughlin and Scott White dated May 13,
2006 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
May 15, 2006.
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Exhibit
Number

Description

211

2.12

31

3.2

33

34

35

3.6

37

38

4.1

4.2

4.3

Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among UHC New Mexico Corporation, as Seller, (
Cano Petro of New Mexico, Inc., as Buyer, and Cano Petroleum, Inc., for Certain Limited

Purposes, dated March 30, 2007, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Current ‘
Report on Form 8-K filed on April 4, 2007. (The schedules and exhibits have been omitted

from this filing. An exhibit to the schedules and exhibits is contained in the Purchase and |
Sale Agreement and the schedules and exhibits are available to the Securities and i
Exchange Commission upon request).

Agreement for Purchase and Sale among Ladder Companics, Inc. and Tri-Flow, Inc., as
Seller, and Anadarko Minerals, Inc., as Buyer, dated June 11, 2007, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 2.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 12, 2007. (The
schedules and exhibits have been omitted from this filing. An exhibit to the schedules and
exhibits is contained in the Agreement for Purchase and Sale and the schedules and
exhibits are available to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request).

Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
registration statement on Form 10-SB (File No. 000-50386), filed on September 4, 2003.

Certificate of Ownership, amending the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-KSB filed on September 23, 2004,

Bylaws, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s registration statement
on Form 10-SB (File No. 000-50386), filed on September 4, 2003.

Designation for Series A Convertible Preferred Stock, included in the Company’s
Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
registration statement on Form 10-SB (File No. 000-50386), filed on September 4, 2003.

Certificate of Designation for Series B Convertible Preferred Stock, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 99.2 to Current Report Form 8-K, filed on June 8, 2004.

Certificate of Designation for Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 99.2 to Current Report Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission on July 15, 2004.

Certificate of Designation for Series D Convertible Preferred Stock incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on September 7, 2006.

Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation, incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 3.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K, filed on January 23, 2007.

Registration Rights Agreement by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc. and Miles
O’Loughlin dated November 29, 2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 3, 2005.

Registration Rights Agreement by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc. and Scott White
dated November 29, 2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2005.

Amendment No. One to the Registration Rights Agreement by and between Cano
Petroleum, Inc. and Estate of Miles O’Loughlin dated May 13, 2006 and effective as of
November 29, 2005 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Current Report on
Form &-K filed on May 15, 2006.
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Exhibit
Number

Description

44

4.5

101+

10.2+

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

1011+

10.12

Amendment No. One to the Registration Rights Agreement by and between Cano
Petroleum, Inc. and Scott White dated May 13, 2006 and effective as of November 29, 2005
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

May 15, 2006.

Registration Rights Agreement dated August 25, 2006 by and among Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and the Buyers listed therein, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to Amendment to
Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on August 31, 2006.

Stock Option Agreement dated December 16, 2004 between Cano Petroleum, Inc. and
Gerald W. Haddock, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 16, 2004.

2005 Directors’ Stock Option Plan, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on Jun 28, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc,
and Howard Hughes Medical Institute, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Laborers™ District Council and Contractors’ of Ohio Pension Fund, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Ohio Carpenters’ Pension Fund, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and New York Nurses Association Pension Plan, incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2003,

Subscription Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Public Sector Pension Investment Board, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6
to Current Report Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Spindrift Investors (Bermuda) L.P, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Spindrift Partners, L.P., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8 to Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2005,

Stock Option Agreement dated September 16, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and James K. Teringo, Jr., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.10 to Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on September 22, 2003,

Subscription Agreement dated September 14, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Touradji Global Resources Master Fund, Ltd., incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K on September 20, 2005.
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Number
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10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.23

Subscription Agreement dated September 14, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Renaissance US Growth Investment Trust PLC, incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 14, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and BFS US Special Opportunities Trust PLC, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3
to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2005.

Subscription Agreement dated September 14, 2005 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Crestview Capital Master, LLLC, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 20, 2005.

Omnibus Agreement among Cano Petroleum, Inc., Haddock Enterprises, LLC, Carlile
Management, LLC and Sabine Partners, LP dated November 4, 2005, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 9, 2005.

Amended and Restated Regulations of Sabine Production Operating, LLC among Cano
Petroleum, Inc., Haddock Enterprises, [.L.C and Carlile Management, LLC dated
November 4, 2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on November 9, 2005.

Compensation Reimbursement Agreement between Cano Petroleum, Inc. and Sabine
Production Operating, LLC dated November 4, 2005, incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form §-K filed on November 9, 2005.

First Amendment to Amended and Restated Regulations of Sabine Production Operating,
LLC effective July 8, 2007, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report
on Form 8-K filed on February 1, 2007.

Credit Agreement among Cano Petroleum, Inc., as Borrower, The Lenders Party Hereto
From Time to Time, as Lenders, and Union Bank of California, N.A., as Administrative
Agent and as issuing Lender, dated November 29, 2003, incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2003.

Subordinated Credit Agreement among Cano Petroleum, Inc., as Borrower, The Lenders
Party Hereto From Time to Time, as Lenders, and Energy Components SPC EEP Energy
Exploration and Production Segregated Portfolio, as Administrative Agent, dated
November 29, 2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2005.

Guaranty Agreement by and among Ladder Companies, Inc., Square One Energy, Inc.,
W.0. Energy of Nevada, Inc., W.O. Energy, Inc., W.O. Operating Company, Ltd. and WO.
Production Company, Ltd. in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as Administrative
Agent, dated November 29, 2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2005.

Guaranty Agreement by and among Ladder Companies, Inc., Square One Energy, Inc,,
W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., W.O. Energy, Inc., W.O. Operating Company, Ltd. and W. O.
Production Company, Ltd. in favor of Energy Components SPC EEP Energy Exploration
and Production Segregated Portfolio, as Administrative Agent, dated November 29, 2005,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 5, 2005,
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10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28+

10.29+

10.30

10.31+

1032+

10.33+

1034+

10.35

10.36

Escrow Agreement by and among Cano Petroleum, Inc., Miles O’Loughlin, Scott White
and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Escrow Agent, dated November 29,
2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed
on December 5, 2005.

Amended and Restated Escrow Agreement dated as of June 18, 2007 by and among Cano
Petroleum, Inc,, the Estate of Miles O’Loughlin and Scott White, and The Bank of New
York Trust Company, N.A., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on June 21, 2007.

Pledge Agreement by and among Cano Petroleum, Inc., W. O. Energy of Nevada, Inc, and
W O Energy, Inc. in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as Administrative Agent,
dated November 29, 2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to the Current
Report on Form 8-K dated on December 5, 2005.

Security Agreement by and among Cano Petroleum, Inc., Ladder Companies Inc., Square
One Energy, Inc., W. O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., W O Energy, Inc., W. O. Operating
Company, Ltd. and W, O. Petroleum, Ltd,, in favor of Union Bank of California N.A. as
Administrative Agent, dated November 29, 2005, incorporated by reference from

Exhibit 10.7 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 5, 2005.

Cano Petroleum, Inc. 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan dated December 7, 2005,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
December 9, 2005,

Form of Stock Option Agreement (December 2005), incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on December 19, 2005.

Summary of Terms of Purchase of Overriding Royalty Interests by Cano Petroleum, Inc.
from Theprivate Energy Company, Inc. dated December 27, 2005, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 3, 2006,

Summary Sheet: Director Compensation, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 12, 2006.

Employment Agreement between Cano Petroleum, Inc. and S. Jeffrey Johnson dated
effective January 1, 2006, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.} to the Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on January 19, 2006,

Amendment to Employment Agreement of Thomas Cochrane effective January 1, 2006,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 19, 2006.

Amendment to Employment Agreement of James K. Teringo, Jr. effective January 1, 2006,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
January 19, 2006.

Gas Purchase Contract between W. O. Operating Company, Ltd. and Duke Field Services
L.P. dated November 1, 2003, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.17 1o the
Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on February 14, 2006.

Gas Purchase Contract by and between W, O. Operating Company Limited, as Seller, and
One OK Texas Field Services LP, as Buyer, dated January 1, 2005, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.18 to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on

February 14, 2006.
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10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

Amendment No. 1 dated February 24, 2006 to the $100,000,000 Credit Agreement among
Cano Petroleum, Inc., as Borrower, The Lenders Party Hercto From Time to Time as
Lenders and Union Bank of California, N.A., as Administrative Agent and as Issuing
Lender dated November 29, 2005 incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 1, 2006.

Amendment No. 2, Assignment and Agreement dated as of April 28, 2006 among Cano
Petroleum, Inc., Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc., WO Energy, Inc., W.O. Operating Company, Lid., W.O. Production Company,
Ltd., Pantwist, LLC, the Lenders and Union Bank of California, N.A., as Administrative
Agent and as Issuing Lender, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.7 to Quarterly
Report on Form 10-QSB filed on May 15, 2006.

First Amendment to Subordinated Credit Agreement dated as of April 28, 2006 by and
among Energy Components SPC EEP Energy Exploration and Production Segregated
Portfolio, as Administrative Agent and Lender, UnionBanCal Equities, Inc., Cano
Petroleum, Inc., Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc., WO Energy, Inc., W.0. Operating Company, Ltd., W.O. Production Company,
Lid., and Pantwist, LLC, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.8 to Quarterly Report
Form 10-QSB filed May 15, 2006.

Supplement No. | dated as of April 28, 2006 10 the Guaranty Agreement dated as of
November 29, 2005, by Pantwist, LLC in favor of Union Bank of California, as
Administrative Agent, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 to Quarterly Report on
Form 10-QSB filed May 15, 2006.

Supplement No. 1 dated as of April 28, 2006 to the Guaranty Agreement dated as of
November 29, 2005, by Pantwist, LLC in favor of Energy Components SPC EEP Energy
Exploration and Production Segregated Portfolio, as Administrative Agent, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.10 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on May 15, 2006.

Supplement No. 1 dated as of April 28, 2006 to the Pledge Agreement dated as of
November 29, 2005, by Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc. and wO
Energy, Inc. in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as Collateral Trustee, incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.11 to Quarterly Report Form 10-QSB filed on May 15, 2006.

Supplement No. 1 dated as of April 28, 2006 to the Security Agreement dated as of
November 29, 2005, by Pantwist, LLC in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as
Collateral Trustee, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.12 to Quarterly Report on
Form 10-QSB filed on May 15, 2006.

Waiver from Union Bank of California, N.A. dated February 14, 2006 related to Credit
Agreement dated as of November 29, 2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.13
to Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on May 15, 2006.

Waiver from Energy Components SPC EEP Energy Exploration and Production Segregated
Portfolio dated February 14, 2006 retated to Subordinated Credit Agreement dated as of
November 29, 2005, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.14 to Quarterly Report on
Form 10-QSB filed on May 15, 2006.
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10.46

10.47

10.48+

10.49+

10.50+

1051+

10.52+

1053+

10.54+

10.55+

10.56+

10.57+

10.58+

Amendment No. 3 to Credit Agreement among Cano Petroleum, Inc., a Borrower, Square
One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., WO Energy, Inc.
Pantwist, LLC, W.O. Operating Company, Ltd., W.O. Production Company, Lid., Union
Bank of California, N.A. and Natexis Banques Populaires dated May 12, 2006 and effective
as of March 31, 2006, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on May 15, 2006.

Sccond Amendment to Subordinated Credit Agreement among Cano Petroleum, Inc., a
Borrower, Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.,
WO Energy, Inc. Pantwist, LLC, W.0O. Operating Company, Ltd., W.0O. Production
Company, Ltd., Energy Components SPC EEP Energy Exploration and Production
Segregated Portfolio and UnionBanCal Equities, Inc. dated May 12, 2006 and effective as
of March 31, 2006, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on May 15, 2006.

Employment Agreement of Morris B. Smith effective June 1, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 on Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 6, 2006.

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement of James K. Teringo, Jr. effective June 1,
2006, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 in Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
June 6, 2006.

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement of John Lacik effective June I, 2006,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 on Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
June 6, 2006.

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement of Michael J. Ricketts effective June 1,
2006, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 on Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
June 6, 2006.

Employee Restricted Stock Award Agreement of Morris B. Smith effective June 1, 2006,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 on Current Report Form 8-K filed on June 6,
2006.

Employee Restricted Stock Award Agreement of James K. Teringo, Jr. effective June 1,
2006, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 on Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
June 6, 2006.

Employee Restricted Stock Award Agreement of John Lacik effective June 1, 2006,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 on Current Report Form 8-K filed on June 6,
2006.

Employment Agreement of John Lacik effective May 1, 2005, incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.8 on Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 6, 2006.

First Amendment to Employment Agreement of John Lacik effective May 1, 2005,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.9 on Form 8-K filed on June 6, 2006,

Employment Agreement of Patrick McKinney effective June 1, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 9, 2006,

First Amendment to Employment Agreement of Patrick McKinney dated November 9,
2006, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
November 9, 2006.
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10.59+

10.60

10.61

10.62+

10.63+

10.64 +

10.65+

10.66

10.67

10.68+

10.69+

10.70+

10.71+

Restricted Stock Award Agreement of Patrick McKinney dated June 1, 2006 incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 9, 2006.

Amendment No. 4 to Credit Agreement among Cano Petroleum, Inc., as Borrower, Square
One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., WO Energy, Inc,
Pantwist, LLC, W.O. Opecrating Company, Ltd., W.O. Production Company, Ltd., Union
Bank of California, N.A. and Natexis Banques Populaires dated June 30, 2006,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on

June 7, 2006.

Third Amendment to Subordinated Credit Agreement among Cano Petroleum, Inc., as
Borrower, Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc,
WO Energy, Inc., Pantwist, LLC, W.O. Operating Company, Lid., W.O. Production
Company, Ltd., Energy Components SPC EEP Energy Exploration and Production
Segregated Portfolio and UnionBanCal Equities, Inc. dated June 30, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 7, 2006.

Employment Agreement of Michael J. Ricketts effective July 1, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 17, 2006.

Employee Restricted Stock Award Agreement of Morris B Smith dated August 11, 2006,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
August 17, 2006.

Stock Option Agreement of Patrick W. Tolbert dated August 11, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 17, 2006.

Stock Option Agreement of Dennis McCuistion dated August 11, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 17, 2006.

Securities Purchase Agreement dated August 25, 2006 by and among Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and the Buyers listed therein, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment
to Current Report on Form 8-K/A filed on August 31, 2006.

Form of Warrant to Purchase Common Stock dated September 6, 2006 by Cano Petroleum,
Inc., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
September 11, 2006.

Amendment No. One dated December 28, 2006 to the Cano Petroleum, Inc. 2005 Long-
Term Incentive Plan, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on January 4, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement daled December 28, 2006 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and S. Jeffrey Johnson, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on January 4, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement dated December 28, 2006 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Morris B. Smith, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on January 4, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement dated December 28, 2006 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Patrick McKinney, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on January 4, 2007.
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10.72+

10.73+

10.74+

10.75+

10,76+

10,77+

10.76+

10.79+

10.80

10.81

10.82

10.84

Stock Option Agreement dated December 28, 2006 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and James K, Teringo, Jr., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report
on Form §-K filed on January 4, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement dated December 28, 2006 by and between Cano Petroleum, Inc.
and Michael J. Ricketts, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.6 to Current Report
Form 8-K filed on January 4, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement of Gerald Haddock dated December 28, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.75 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 (333-126167) filed on
January 23, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement of Don Dent dated Decernber 28, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.76 to Registration Statement on Form §-1 (333-126167) filed on
January 23, 2007,

Stock Option Agreement of Randall Boyd dated December 28, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.77 to Registration Statement on Form §-1 {333126167) filed on
January 23, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement of James Underwood dated December 28, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.78 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 (333-126167) filed on
January 23, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement of Patrick Tolbert dated December 28, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.79 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 (333-126167) filed on
January 23, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement of Dennis McCuistion dated December 28, 2006, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.80 to Registration Statement on Form S-1 (333-126167) filed on
January 23, 2007.

Amendment No. 5 and Agreement dated as of March 6, 2007 by and among Cano
Petroleum, Inc., Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc., WO Energy, Inc., Pantwist, LLC, Cano Petro of New Mexico, Inc., W.O.
Operating Company, Ltd. and W.O. Production Company, Ltd., Union Bank of California,
N.A., as Administrative Agent, Issuing Lender and Lender, and Natixis, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 12, 2007.

Supplement No. 2 dated as of March 6, 2007 to the Security Agreement dated as of
November 29, 2005, by Cano Petro of New Mexico, Inc. in favor of Union Bank of
Catifornia, as Collateral Trustee, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 12, 2007,

Supplement No. 2 dated as of March 6, 2007 to the Guaranty Agreement dated as of
November 29, 2005, by Cano Petro of New Mexica, Inc. in favor of Union Bank of
California, as Administrative Agent, incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current
Report on Form 8-K filed on March 12, 2007.

Supplement No. 2 dated as of March 6, 2007 to the Pledge Agreement dated as of
November 29, 2005, by Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., and WO
Energy, Inc. in favor of Union Bank of California, as Collateral Trustee, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.4 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 12, 2007.
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10.85

10.86+

10.87+

10.88+

10.89

10,90+

10.91+

10.92+

10.93+

10.94+

10.95+

10.96+*
10.97+*
10.98*

Assignment and Agreement dated as of March 7, 2007 by and among Cano Petroleum,
Inc., Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, lnc., WO
Energy, Inc., Pantwist, LLC, Cano Petro of New Mexico, Inc., W.O. Operating Company,
Ltd. and W.O. Production Company, Ltd., Union Bank of California, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Issuing Lender and Lender, and Natixis, incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.5 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 12, 2007,

Stock Option Agreement of William O. Powell, dated April 4, 2007, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.7 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 12, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement of Robert L. Gaudin, dated April 4, 2007, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.8 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 12, 2007.

Stock Option Agreement of Donald W. Niemiec, dated April 4, 2007, incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.9 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed on May 12, 2007.

Settlement Agreement and Release dated February 9, 2007 by and among Mid-Continent
Casualty Company, Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., WO. Operating
Company, Ltd. and W.O. Energy, Inc., incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to
Registration Statement on Form $-3 (SEC No. 333-138003) filed on April 9, 2007.

Separation Agreement, General Release and Covenant Not to Sue dated May 22, 2007 by
and between Cano Petroleum, Inc. and James K. Teringo, Jr., incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 25, 2007.

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (July 2007), incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2007.

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (July 2007), incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on July 2, 2007,

First Amendment to Employment Agreement of Morris B. Smith dated June 29, 2007,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
July 3, 2007.

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement of Patrick McKinney dated June 29, 2007,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
July 3, 2007.

First Amendment to Employment Agreement of Michael J. Ricketts dated June 29, 2007,
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.3 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on
July 3, 2007.

Form of Amendment to Restricted Stock Award Agreements (August 2007).
Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreement (August 2007).

Amendment No. 6 dated as of August 13, 2007 by and among Canc Petroteum, Inc.,
Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., WO
Energy, Inc., Pantwist, LLC, Cano Petro of New Mexico, Inc., W.O. Opcrating Company,
Ltd. and W.O. Production Company, Ltd., Union Bank of California, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Issuing Lender and Lender, and Natixis.
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10.99~

10.100*

10.101+*

10.1024-*

10.103+*

10.104+*

10.105

211"
23.1*
232"
24.1*
311

31.2*

32.1*

32.2*

First Amendment to the Security Agreement dated as of July 9, 2007, by and among Cano
Petroleum, Inc., Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc., WO Energy, Inc,, Pantwist, LLC, Cano Petro of New Mexico, Inc.,, W.O.
Operating Company, Ltd. and W.O. Production Company, Ltd. and Union Bank of
California, N.A., as Senior Agent.

First Amendment to the Pledge Agreement dated as of July 9, 2007, by and among Cano
Petroleum, Inc., W.0. Operating Company, Ltd. and W.O. Production Company, Ltd. and
Union Bank of California, N.A., as Senior Agent,

Audit Committee Chairman Compensation (June 2007).

Summary of Acceleration of Vesting and Extension of Exercise Period for Stock Options
for Resigning Directors (June 2007).

Amendment dated June 29, 2007 to Stock Option Agreement of James Underwood dated
December 15, 2005.

Amendment dated June 29, 2007 to Stock Option Agreement of James Underwood dated
December 28, 2000.

Amendment No. 7 dated as of September 7, 2007 by and among Cano Petroleum, Inc.,
Square One Energy, Inc., Ladder Companies, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., WO
Energy, Inc., Pantwist, LLC, Cano Petro of New Mexico, Inc., W.O. Operating

Company, Ltd. and W.0. Production Company, Ltd., Union Bank of California, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, Issuing Lender and Lender, and Natixis, incorporated by reference
from Exhibit 10.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 11, 2007.

Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Hein & Associates LLP.

Consent of Forrest A. Garb & Associates, Inc., Independent Petroleurn Engineers.
Power of Attorney (included on the signature page hereto).

Certification by Chief Executive Officer, required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of
the Exchange Act, promulgated pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by Chief Financial Officer, required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of
the Exchange Act, promulgated pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by Chief Executive Officer, required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(h) of
the Exchange Act and Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code,
promulgated pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification by Chief Financial Officer, required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule i5d-14(b) of
the Exchange Act and Secticn 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code,
promulgated pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

*  Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan, contract or arrangement.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Cano Petroleum, Inc.
Fort Worth, Texas

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Cano Petroleum, Inc. and subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Company”) as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management,
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Cano Petroleum, Inc, and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007
and 2006, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended June 30, 2007, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America,

We have also audited, in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of June 30, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) and our report dated
September 7, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting and an unqualified opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s{ HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP

HEIN & ASSOCIATES LLP
Dallas, Texas
September 7, 2007
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CANO PETROLEUM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30,
2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents . . ......... . ... . $ 2,119098 § 644,659
ACCOUNES FECEIVADIE . . . . o o o et et s e e e e e e e 4,081,498 3,563,649
D erivative ASSEES .« & & ot e e e e 810,174 1,176,959
Prepaid eXpenses . ... ... ...t 309,216 205,349
1Y U T I A 292,405 396,081
Other CUETEIE A55CE5 . & v v v v v v et e e e e ettt e oottt a e o 135 641,759
Total CUTTENE ASSELS « o v o v v e v et e e e ettt e e aaa e e 7,612,526 6,628,456
Oil and gas properties and equipment, successful efforts method .. ........... 189,842,882 138,066,641
Less accumulated depletion and depreciation . . . ... .. e (6,201,635) (2,319,780)
Net oil and gas properties . . . . . . ... e 183,641,247 135,746,861
Fixed assets and other, Nt . . . .. oottt e it et 1,547,875 2,081,763
Restricted cash (Note 12) ... .. ... .. s 6,000,000 —
DIELIVALIVE GSSEIS . o v v o v e v e i e e e e e e 1,881,800 1,705,855
GoodWIll . . o e e e e e e 785,796 785,796
TOTAL ASSE TS . . . o e e e e e e e s $201,469,244  $146,948,731
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable . . ... ... $ 7,508,795 § 2,304,198
Oiland gassales payable . . . ... ... ... . .. . 1,345,537 1,399,047
Accrued Habillies . . . . . .o e e e e e e 1,421,484 321,183
Taxes payable . . .. ... 450,062 419,692
Current portion of asset retirement obligations ... ..... ...... ... ... 264,140 19,809
Total current HabilItiEs . . . . . o o oo e et e e e s 10,990,018 4,463,929
Long-term liabilities
Longterm debt .. ... ... e 33,500,000 68,750,000
Asset retirement obligations . . .. ... .. . e 2,150,930 1,587,569
Deferred tax lHabilify . .. . ... ..ottt 32,371,000 31,511,000
Deferred litigation credit (Note 12) ... ... .. i 6,000,000 —
Total Habilities . . . o . v ot e e e et e e e 85,011,948 106,312,498
Temporary Equity
Series D convertible preferred stock and paid-in-kind dividend; par value $.0001
per share, stated value $1,000 per share; 49,116 authorized and 49,116 shares
issued in 2007, liquidation preference of $50,862,925 and zero, respectively. . . . 47,596,061 —
Commitments and contingencies (Note 12}
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock, par value $.0001 per share; 100,000,000 authorized; 33,956,392
and 26,987,941 shares issued in 2007 and 2006, respectively; and 32,688,098 and
25,719,647 shares outstanding in 2007 and 2006, . . ... .. ... ..ol 3,268 2,572
Additional paid-in capital . . .. ... ... L 85,238,490 53,054,812
Accumulated deficit. . . . oo vt e e (15,809,791)  (11,850,419)
Treasury stock, at cost; 1,268,294 shares . . .. ... . ... ... o o (570,732} (570,732)
Total stockholders’ equity . . ... .. ... 68,861,235 40,636,233
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY .. ................ $201,469,244  $146,948,731

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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CANO PETROLEUM, INC.
CONSQLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

Operating Revenues:

Crude oil and natural gassales. ... ................. $28,353,026 $15,860,562 § 3,764,015
Operating Expenses:

Lease operating. . ... .. ... ..ot 10,885,393 6,240,986 2,068,881

Production and ad valorem taxes ................... 2,465,191 1,153,775 223,566

General and administrative ... ... .. ... ... ... ...... 12,755,524 7,622,508 4,753,609

Depletion and depreciation ... .................... 4,305,696 1,847,217 370,899

Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations. . . . . 140,129 90,492 48,204

Total operating expenses. .. ..................... 30,551,933 16,954,978 7,465,159
Loss from operations ... ............ . ... ivv... (2,198907)  (1,094,416) (3,701,144)
Other income (expense):
Unrealized loss on commodity derivatives. .. ............ (1,810,000) (3,245,588) —
Realized gain on commodity derivatives . . .............. 962,559 540,871 —
Interest expense . ........ .. ... ... ... (2,559,619) (2,426321) —
Interest INCOME . . . ... ettt et 253,026 124,467 11,661
Total other income (expense) . ................... (3,154,034)  (5,006,571) 11,661

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes . ... .. (5,352,941)  (6,100.987)  (3,689,483)
Deferred income tax benefit .. ... .. ... .. . ... ... .. 1,918,551 3,771,@32 ——
Loss from continuing operations ... .................. (3,434,390)  (2,329904) (3,689,483)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax of

$1,487,551 in 2007, $273,083 in 2006 and $0 in 2005 .. ... 2,644,534 485,480 716,341
Netloss . ... .. e {789.856) (1,344.424)  (2,973,142)
Preferred stock dividend . .. ........... . ... .. ... ... 3,169,516 — —
Preferred stock discount . .. ... ... .. .. . — = 416,534
Net loss applicable to commeon stock . ... ......... . .... $(3,959,372y $(1,844,424) §(3,389,676)
Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted

Continuing Operations .. ................. ... ... $ (022) $ (0.10) $ (0.35)

Discontinued operations . .............. ... ... 0.09 0.02 (.06
Net loss per share—basic and diluted ... ....... ....... $ (0.13) $ (0.08) § (0.29)
Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basicand diluted. .. ... ....... ... ... . 0 .. 30,758,441 22,364,099 11,839,080

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements.
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CANO PETROLEUM, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Cash flow from operating activities:
NEUIOSS .« ..o ot et e e e e e e $  (789.856) $ (1,844,424) § (2,973,142)
Adjustments needed 10 reconcile net loss 10 net cash flow provided by (used
in} operations:
Unrealized loss on commodity derivatives . . . . .. ................ 1,810,000 3,245,588 —
Gain on sale of oil and gas properties . . ......... ... .. .. ...... (3,810,589} — —
Accretion of discount on asset retirement obligations . . . .. .. ... ... .. 140,129 90,492 48,204
Depletion and depreciation . . ... ... ... ... ... .. 4,305,696 1,847.217 370,899
Stock compensation €XpEnSe . .. ... ... L 647,202 570,523 1,823,040
Deferred income tax benefit . . .. ... ... Lo L o L. {431,000) (3,498,000) —
Income from discontinued operations. . . . .. ..., .. ... ... ..., 133,416 128,675 145379
Amortization of deht issuance costs and prepaid expenses . . .. .. ... ... 2,231,468 656,382 —
Changes in assets and liabilities relating to operations;
Restricted cash . . . . . . . .. . .. e e (6,000,000} — —
Accounts receivable . .. ... L L (521,492) (971,715) (489.893)
Derivative 85818 . . v v ¢ v i e e e e e e e e (1,619,160) (6,128,402) —
Prepaid expenses . . . . ... ... ... (1.464,495) (658.814) —
Inventory . . .. ... .. 28,804 (276.904) —
Accounts payable . . ..o 509,895 1,307,778 670,116
Oiland gassales payable . . ... ... ... .. .. .. L (232,135} 482,853 —
Accrued Habilities - . . . o oo 1,101,701 (545.426) (74.569)
Taxes payable ... ... ... e (22,630) 152,162 —
Other curment 8SS€15 . . . . . . ottt e e e e e 641,453 (641,759) (21,069)
Deferred litigation eredit . . . . ... .. ... . L L L 6,000,000 — —
Net cash provided by (used in) operations . . . . .. .................... 2,658,407 (6,083,774) (501,035)
Cash flow from investing activities:
Additions to oil and gas properties . . .. ... ... ... .. L L, (39.639,172) (5.699.133) (1,646,160)
Acquisition of New Mexico oil and gas properties. . . .. ............ ... (6.552,382) — {2,561,880)
Proceeds from sale of oil and gas properties . .. .................... 6,816,834 — —
Additicns to fixed assetsand other . . . .. ... L. Lo Ll (346,528) (133,318) (464 477}
Acquisition of W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.. . . .. .. ........... ... ... — (48,426,688) —
Acquisition of additicnal Davenport revenue interest . .. ... ... ... L. (133,000} (700,350) (667.000)
Acquisition of Texas Panhandle oil and gas properties .. ... . ......... .. — (23,405,865} —
Acquisition of Square One Energy, Inc. . .. ......... ... ... .. ... — — (4,037.535)
Acquisition of Ladder Companies, Inc.. . .. ... ... ... . . ... .. — — (2.215,467)
Cash restricted for development activities . . . .. ...... ... ........... — — 866,339
Net cash vsed in investing activities . . . . .. ... ... .................. (39,854,248) (78,365,354) (10,726,180)
Cash flow from financing activities:
Paydown long-term debt, met . .. _ ., ... ..., (35,250,000) 67,323,874 —
Payments for debt-issuance costs. . . . .. ... . ..o e (189,873) (654,382) (54.589)
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net. . . ... . ... ... .. ... .. 45,849,138 —_ 5,101,231
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, et . . . . ... ... L L., 29,683,608 18,279.006 4,750,783
Payment of preferred stock dividend . . .. ... ... ..o L L il (1,422,593} — —
Net cash from financing activities . . . . .. ... ... ... ... ............ 38,670,280 84,948,298 9,797,425
Net increase (dccrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . ... .. ... ... ... . 1,474,439 459,170 (1,429.790)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period . .. ..... . ....... ..., 644,659 145,489 1,575,279
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . . . . . .. ... .. ............ $ 2,119098 § 644,659 $ 145,489
Supplemental disclesure of noncash transactions:
Payments of preferred stock dividend inkind . . . .. ... ... o oL § 1,746,923
Common stock issued for acquisition of oil and gas properties . . . ... ... ... $ 18533564 % — 3 —
Common stock issued for acquisition of W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc. . . ... .. $ — § 8,240,000 3 —
Recognition of deferred tax liability for Square One Encrgy, Inc, .. ... ... .. 3 — % 3124013 8 —
Preferred stock discount . . . .. ... ... .. ... $ — 3 — 3§ 416,534
Common stock issued for acquisition of Square One Energy, Inc. . . . ... .. .. $ — 3 — § 351999
Supplemental disclesure of cash transactions:
Cash paid during the period forinterest . . . ... ... ... ... oL, $ 3074280 § 2303375 § —

See accompanying notes to these consolidated financial statements,




CANO PETROLEUM, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

LRI ¥ b LN T

Cano Petroleum, Inc. (together with its direct and indirect subsidiaries, “Cano,” “we,” “us,” or the
“Company”) is an independent oil and natural gas company, based in Fort Worth, Texas, that is actively
pursuing waterflooding and enhanced oil recovery techniques to increase production and reserves at
our existing properties and future acquisitions. Our primary focus is crude oil and our target
acquisitions are onshore U.S. properties. Our focus on domestic, mature oil fields eliminates
exploration risks and uncertainties of international sources.

We were originally organized under the laws of the State of Delaware on May 29, 2003 as Huron
Ventures, Inc. On May 28, 2004, we entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger with our wholly
owned subsidiary, Davenport Acquisition Corp., an Oklahoma corporation; Davenport Field Unit, Inc.,
a Texas corporation; the shareholders of Davenport Field Unit; Cano Energy Corporation, a Texas
corporation; and Big Sky Management Ltd., our then principal stockholder. Our CEO, 8. Jeffrey
Johnson, is a principal shareholder in Cano Energy Corporation (now THEprivate Energy
Company, Inc.). Under the terms of the merger, we issued 5,165,000 shares of our common stock to
the former shareholders of the Davenport Field Unit and paid $1,650,000 to fund developmental costs
associated with the Davenport Field Unit and assumed debt. Pursuant to the terms of the merger, we
changed our name to Cano Petroleum, Inc. on June 3, 2004. The 5,165,000 shares issued to the
Davenport Field Unit sharcholders are further discussed in Note 9.

Qur wholly-owned subsidiarics consist of Ladder Companies, Inc., a Delaware corporation
(“Ladder”); Square One Energy, Inc., a Texas corporation; W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc. (“WO
Energy), a Nevada corporation; Pantwist, LLC, a Texas limited liability corporation (“Pantwist”); and
Cano Petro of New Mexico, Inc. (“Cano Petro”). Ladder wholly owns Tri-Flow, Inc., an Oklahoma
corporation (*Tri-Flow”). There is no significant business transacted through Tri-Flow. WO Encrgy
wholly owns W.Q. Energy, Inc. (“WO Texas”), a Texas corporation. WO Energy and WO Texas wholly
own W.O. Operating Company, Ltd. and W.O. Production Company, Ltd, both of which are Texas
limited partnerships.

Consolidation and Use of Estimates

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of
Cano and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated. In
preparing the accompanying financial statements, management has made certain estimates and
assumptions that affect reported amounts in the financial statements and disclosures of contingencies.
Actual results may differ from those estimates. Significant assumptions are required in the valuation of
proved oil and natural gas reserves, which may affect the amount at which oil and natural gas
properties are recorded. It is at least reasonably possible these estimates could be revised in the near
term, and these revisions could be material,

The term proved reserves is defined by the Securities and Exchange Commission in Rule 4-10(a)
of Regulation S-X adopted under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. In general, proved reserves
are the estimated quantities of oil, gas and liquids that geological or enginecring data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic
and operating conditions, i.c., prices and costs as of the date the estimate is made. Prices include
consideration of changes in existing prices provided only by contractual arrangements, but not on
escalations based on future conditions.
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Our estimates of proved reserves materially impact depletion expense. If proved reserves decline,
then the rate at which we record depletion expense increases, reducing net income. A decline in
estimates of proved reserves may result from lower prices, evaluation of additional operating history,
mechanical problems on our wells and catastrophic events such as explosions, hurricanes and floods.
Lower prices also may make it uneconomical to drill wells or produce from fields with high operating
costs. In addition, a decline in proved reserves may impact our assessment of our oil and natural gas
properties for impairment.

Our proved reserve estimates are a function of many assumptions, all of which could deviate
materially from actual results. As such, reserve estimates may vary materially from the ultimate
quantities of oil and natural gas actually produced.

0il and Gas Properties and Equipment

We follow the successful efforts method of accounting, capitalizing costs of successful exploratory
wells and expensing costs of unsuccessful exploratory wells. All developmental costs are capitalized. We
are predominately engaged in the acquisition and development of proved reserves as opposed to
exploration activities. The property costs reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets
resulted from acquisitions and development activity. Capitalized overhead costs that directly relate to
our drilling and development activities were $532,087 and $0, for the years ended June 30, 2007 and
2006, respectively. In accordance with Statement of Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 34, we
recorded capitalized interest costs of $302,895 and $0 for the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. We record capitalized interest for projects that have an expected cost of at least
$1.5 million and a development period of at least six months.

Depreciation and depletion of producing properties is computed on the units-of-production
method based on estimated proved oil and natural gas reserves. Repairs and maintenance are
expensed, while renewals and betterments are generally capitalized,

Ouwr units-of-production amortization rates are revised on a quarterly basis. Qur development costs
and lease and wellhead equipment are depleted based on proved developed reserves. Qur leasehold
costs are depleted based on total proved rescrves. Investments in major development projects are not
depleted until proved reserves associated with the projects can be determined or until impairment
occurs. As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, capitalized costs related to waterflood and ASP projects that are
in process and not subject to depletion amounted to $15,109,000 and $1,109,000, respectively.

At least quarterly, or more frequently if conditions indicate that long-term assets may be impaired,
the carrying value of our properties is compared to management’s future estimated pre-tax cash flow
from the properties. If undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value, then the asset value is
written down to fair value. Impairment of individually significant unproved properties is assessed on a
property-by-property basis, and impairment of other unproved properties is assessed and amortized on
an aggregate basis. We had no significant unproved properties at June 30, 2007 or 2006. No impairment
was necessary for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 or 2005.

Asset Retirement Obligation

Our financial statements reflect the fair value for any asset retirement obligation that can be
reasonably estimated. The retirement obligation is recorded as a liability at its estimated present value
at the asset’s inception, with an offsetting increase to producing properties on the consolidated balance
sheets. Periodic accretion of the discount of the estimated liability is recorded as an expense in the
consolidated statements of operations.




Goodwill

The amount paid for certain acquisitions in excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired has
been recorded as goodwill in the consolidated balance sheets. Goodwill is not amortized, but is assessed
for impairment annually or whenever conditions would indicate impairment may exist. There were no
impairments recorded for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 or 2005.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are considered to be all highly liquid investments having an original maturity of
three months or less. Excess cash funds are generally invested in U.S. government-backed securities.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable principally consists of crude oil and natural gas sales proceeds receivable and
are typically due within 35 days of their respective production. We require no collateral for such
receivables, nor do we charge interest on past due balances. We periodically review accounts receivable
for collectibility and reduce the carrying amount of the accounts receivable by an allowance. No such
allowance was indicated at June 30, 2007 or 2006. As of June 30, 2007, our accounts receivable were
primarily with several independent purchasers of our crude oil and natural gas production. At June 30,
2007, we had balances due from four customers which were greater than 10% of our accounts
receivable related to crude oil and natural gas production. These four customers had 26%, 26%, 25%
and 10% of accounts receivable related to crude oil and natural gas production, respectively.

At June 30, 2006, we had balances due from four customers which were greater than 10% of our
accounts receivable related to crude oil and natural gas production. These four customers had 29%,
24%, 14% and 12% of accounts receivable related to crude oil and natural gas production, respectively.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when crude oil and natural gas quantities are delivered to or collected by
the respective purchaser. Title to the produced quantities transfers to the purchaser at the time the
purchaser receives or collects the quantities. Prices for such production are defined in sales contracts
and are readily determinable based on certain publicly available indices. The purchasers of such
production have historically made payment for crude oil and natural gas purchases within thirty-five
days of the end of each production month. We periodically review the difference between the dates of
production and the dates we collect payment for such production to ensure that accounts receivable
from those purchasers are collectible. The point of sale for our oil and natural gas production is at our
applicable field gathering systems; therefore, we do not incur transportation costs related to our sales
of 0il and natural gas production,

As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, we sold our crude oil and natural gas production to several
independent purchasers. During the year ended June 30, 2007, we had sales of 10% or more of our
total revenues to four customers which represented 36%, 18%, 17% and 16% of total operating
revenue, respectively, During the year ended June 30, 2006, we had sales of 10% or more of our total
revenues to five customers representing 29%, 25%, 12%, 12% and 10% of total operating revenue,
respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2005, we had sales to primarily three customers which
represented 58%, 21% and 19% of total operating revenue, respectively.

Oil and Gas Sales Payable

Our accounts receivable includes amounts that we collect from the purchasers of our crude oil and
natural gas sales on behalf of us, and certain working interest and royalty owners. The portion of
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accounts receivable that pertains to us is recognized as operating revenue. The portion that pertains to
certain working interest and royalty owners are recorded as oil and gas sales payable.

Inventory

Qur inventory consists of unsold barrels of crude oil remaining in our storage tanks at the end of
the period. We value these crude oil barrels based on the lower of market or our average production
cost.

Income Taxes

We began our oil and natural gas operations on May 28, 2004. Since, for the twelve months ended
June 30, 2005 and the period from inception through June 30, 2004, we had incurred net losses and
had not yet generated book or tax income, our consolidated statement of operations through June 30,
2005 did not reflect a provision for income taxes.

We began to record income taxes in the quarter ended December 31, 2005 as a result of the
acquisition of WO Energy. This is more fully discussed in Note 11.

Deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized for the anticipated future tax effects of temporary
differences between the financial statement basis and the tax basis of our assets and liabilities. These
balances are measured using tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to
reverse. A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is recorded when it is more likely than not that
the benefit from the deferred tax asset will not be realized.

Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate fair value, unless otherwise stated, as of
June 30, 2007 and 2006. The carrying amount of long-term debt approximates market value due to the
use of market interest rates,

Net Loss per Common Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing the net loss attributable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares of common stock outstanding during the
period.

Diluted net loss per common share is computed in the same manner, but also considers the effect
of common stock shares underlying the following:

June 30, 2007  June 30, 2006  June 30, 2005

Stock options (Note 8) .. . ............. 801,513 577,185 175,000
Warrants (Note 2) ... ................ 1,646,061 — —
Preferred stock (Note 2) .. ............ 8,541,913 — —
Paid-in-kind dividends (Note 2) ... ... ... 303,813 — —
Restricted shares (Note 9) ............. 95,000 2,659,975 5.165,000

The shares of common stock underlying the stock options, warrants, the preferred stock, PIK
dividends and the restricted shares, as shown in the preceding table, are not included in weighted
average shares outstanding for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 as their effects wouid be
anti-dilutive.




Stock Compensation Expense

Effective July 1, 2006, we accounted for share-based payments for services provided by employee
to employer in accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), which generally requires companies to value the fair
value of employee stock options and other equity-based compensation at the grant date and record
expense over the vesting period. We adopted SFAS No. 123(R} beginning July 1, 2006. Since we had
expensed stock options in accordance with SFAS No. 123, the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) did not
materially impact our operating results, financial position, or our cash flows.

Commodity Derivatives

We are required to hedge a portion of our production at specified prices for oil and natural gas
under the Credit Agreement, as discussed in Note 4. The objective is to reduce our exposure 1o
commodity price risk associated with expected oil and natural gas production. By achieving this
objective we intend to protect the outstanding debt amounts and maximize the funds available under
our existing Credit Agreement, which helps us to support our annual capital budgeting and expenditure
plans, We have entered into commodity derivatives that set “price floors™ for our crude oil and natural
gas production that are recorded as derivative assets on our consolidated balance sheets and are
measured at fair value.

At June 30, 2007, we have no commodity derivatives that set a price ceiling. We do not designate
our derivatives as cash flow or fair value hedges. We do not hold or issue commodity derivatives for
speculative or trading purposes. We are exposed to credit losses in the event of nonperformance by the
counterparty to our commodity derivatives. We anticipate, however, that our counterparty, Union Bank
of California, will be able to fully satisfy their obligations under the commodity derivatives contracts.
We do not obtain collateral or other security to support our commodity derivatives contracts subject to
credit risk but we monitor the credit standing of the counterparty.

We have elected not to designate the commodity derivatives to which we are a party as hedges,
and accordingly, we record such contracts at fair value and recognize changes in such fair value in
current earnings as they occur.

Changes in the fair values of our derivative instruments are recorded immediately in earnings as
unrealized loss on commodity derivatives on our consolidated statements of operations. Cash flows
resulting from the settlement of our derivative instruments are recorded as realized gains on
commodity derivatives on the consolidated statements of operations.

New Accounting Pronouncements

SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements, (“SFAS No. 157") was issued by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) in September 2006. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value under GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS No. 57 applies to other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair
value measurement. No new requirements are included in SFAS No. 157, but application of the SFAS
No. 157 will change current practice. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal
years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not expect adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a
material impact on our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

On July 13, 2006, the FASB released FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an
Interpretation of FASB Statement 109” (“FIN 487). FIN 48 requires companies to evaluate and
disclose material uncertain tax positions it has taken with various taxing jurisdictions. We have reviewed
FIN 48 and determined the adoption of FIN 48 will not materially affect our operating results, financial
position, or future cash flows. We adopted FIN 48 on July 1, 2007.
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2. PREFERRED AND COMMON STOCK FINANCINGS
September 2006 Financing

On September 6, 2006, we sold in a private placement 49,116 shares of Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock at a price of $1,000.00 per share and 6,584,247 shares of common stock at a price of
$4.83 per share, the three day average closing price of the stock prior to the execution of the definitive
agreements, plus a warrant component. The preferred stock has a 7.875% dividend and features a
paid-in-kind (“PIK”) provision that allows, at the investor’s option, the investor to receive additional
shares of common stock upon conversion for the dividend in licu of a cash dividend payment. Holders
of approximately 55% of the preferred stock chose the PIK dividend option. The preferred stock is
convertible to common stock at a price of $5.75 per share and the common stock was subject to 25%
warrant coverage at an exercise price of $4.79 per share. If any Series D Convertible Preferred Stock
remains outstanding on September 6, 2011, we are required to redeem the Series D Convertible
Preferred Stock for a redemption amount in cash equal to the stated value of the Preferred Stock, plus
accrued dividends and PIK dividends. Gross proceeds from the transactions were $80.9 million, of
which $49.1 million was attributable to the preferred stock, and $31.8 million was attributable to the
common stock and warrants. Net proceeds were $75.5 million after deducting issuance costs of
$5.4 million.

The warrant component totals 1,646,061 common shares and is exercisable at $4.79 per share. The
exercise period commenced on March 5, 2007 and expires on March 6, 2008. We computed the fair
value of the warrants at September 6, 2006 as approximately $2.3 million based on the Black-Scholes
model assuming the warrants will be exercised prior to the March 6, 2008 expiration date, using a 33%
expected volatility factor, an expected life of 1.5 years, a risk-free rate of 4.92% and assuming no
expected dividend yield. We have included the fair value of the warrants in additional paid-in capital on
our consolidated balance sheet as of June 30, 2007.

Cash proceeds from the September 2006 financing were used to repay long-term debt (see
Note 4), for general corporate purposes and to fund our capital expenditures.

We were required to file a Registration Statement (Form 8-1) with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, which was filed on Qctober 13, 2006 and was declared effective on January 4, 2007. On
April 9, 2007, we also filed to register these same securities on a Registration Statement Form §-3
which was declared effective on April 19, 2007. We are required to maintain the effectiveness of the
registration statement, subject to certain exceptions, and if the effectiveness is not maintained, then we
must pay 1.5% of the gross proceeds and an additional 1.5% for every 30 days it is not maintained.
The maximum aggregate of all registration delay payments is 10% of the gross proceeds. We do not
believe it is probable we will incur any penaltics under this provision and accordingly have not accrued
any |oss.

Pursuant to the terms of the preferred stock and subject to certain exceptions, if we issue or sell
common stock at a price less than the conversion price (currently $5.75 per share) in effect
immediately prior to such issuance or sale, the conversion price shall be reduced. If such an issuance is
made on or after June 6, 2007, the conversion price will be lowered to the issue or sale price. The
above described adjustment is not triggered by issuances or sales involving the following: (i) shares
issued in connection with an employee benefit plan; (ii) shares issued upon conversion of the Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock; (iii) shares issued upon exercise of the warrants issued on September 6,
2006; (iv} shares issued in connection with a firm commitment underwritten public offering with gross
proceeds in excess of $50,000,000; (v) shares issued in connection with any strategic acquisition or
transaction; {vi} shares issued in connection with any options or convertible securities that were
outstanding on August 25, 2006; or (vii) shares issued in connection with any stock split, stock dividend,
recapitalization or similar transaction.
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Upon a voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Cano or such subsidiaries
of Cano the assets of which constitute all or substantially all of the assets of the business of Cano and
its subsidiaries taken as a whole, the holders of the Series D Convertible Preferred Stock shall be
entitled 1o receive an amount per share equal to $1,000 plus dividends owing on such share prior to
any payments being made to any class of capital stock ranking junior on liquidation to the Series D
Convertible Preferred Stock,

In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 150,
Accounting for Centain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both Liabilities and Equity and
EITF D-98 “Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities”, the issuance of preferred stock is
accounted for as temporary equity.

For the ten months ended June 30, 2007, the preferred dividend was $3,169,516, of which
$1,746,923 pertained to holders of the PIK dividend option.

The liquidation preference for the preferred stock is $50,862,925, which comprises the stated value
of $49,116,000 and PIK dividends of $1,746,923 as of June 30, 2007. The shares of common stock
underlying the preferred stock and PIK dividends amount to 8,541,913 shares and 303,813 shares,
respectively.

September 2005 Financing

In September 2005, in two private placements we issued 2,603,864 shares and 2,100,000 shares of
our common stock at a per share price equal to $4.14, which was the closing price on September 13,
2005 on the American Stock Exchange. The gross and net proceeds totaled approximately $19.5 million
and $18.3 million, respectively.

3. ACQUISITIONS

WO Energy—On November 29, 2005, we acquired all of the outstanding common stock of WO
Energy for approximately $57.5 million, after purchase price adjustments. The purchase price consisted
of approximately $48.4 million in cash (net of cash acquired) and approximately $8.24 million in
restricted shares of our common stock. The approximate $8.24 million of common stock resulted in the
issuance of 1,791,320 shares to the sellers based on the average of the closing price of the common
stock on AMEX for the three trading days immediately prior to November 29, 2005, which was $4.60
per share. Pursuant to the original agreement, $2 million of the cash portion of the purchase price was
paid into an escrow account to be kept for a minimum of two years to cover potential indemnification
payments by the sellers. On June 18, 2007, the sellers deposited 434,783 shares of our common stock in
exchange for the release of cash from the escrow. The escrow will be effective until the later of
November 29, 2007 or the final disposition of the OneOK gas litigation that involved the sellers prior
to our acquisition of WO Energy.

Pantwist—On April 28, 2006, Pantwist, our wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired certain crude oil and
natural gas properties in the Texas Panhandle Field for approximately $23.5 million, after purchase
price adjustments.

Cano Petro—On March 30, 2007, Cano Petro, a wholly-owned subsidiary, acquired certain oil and
gas properties in the Permian Basin effective February 1, 2007 for approximately $8.4 million, after
purchase price adjustments. The purchase price consisted of approximately $6.6 million in cash and
404,204 shares of Cano restricted common stock, which was valued at $4.59 per share. Included in the
original purchase price calculation and pursuant to the agreement, $800,000 was withheld from the
March 30, 2007 cash payment, which was to be ratably paid out during the following 120 days based on
satisfactory completion of certain due diligence procedures. However, based on additional due diligence
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procedures we conducted subsequent to the acquisition, we paid $258,000 to satisfy the holdback
obligation, and we no longer have a holdback liability as of June 30, 2007.

The acquisitions of WO Energy and the properties acquired by Pantwist and Cano Petro were
recorded based on the purchase method of accounting. The operations of WO Energy, Pantwist and
Cano Petro are included in our consolidated financial statements beginning December 1, 2005, May 1,
2006 and April 1, 2007, respectively. The purchase prices were allocated to the acquired assets and
assumed liabilities based on their estimated fair values. The calculation of the purchase price and
allocation to assets is as follows:

WO Energy Pantwist Cano Petro
Net Acquisition Price . .. .............. $57,537,243  $23484 108 38,405,946
Asset Retirement Obligations . . . ... ... .. 498 411 67,849 1,324,408
Deferred Tax Liability . ............. .. 33,228,998 — —
Other Liabilities Assumed . ... ......... 1,508,762 401,973 178,625
Total Purchase Price ................. §92,773,414  $23,953,930 $9,908,979
Allocation of Purchase Price:
Cash .. oo e $ 870,376 $ — % —
Accounis Receivable . ................ 2,016,168 _— —_
Other current assets. . .. ... .ot nn 158,538 — —
Fixed assets and other . ... ............ 4,354,556 1,258,080 35,000
Oil & Gas Properties . . .. ............. 85,373,776 22,695,850 9,873,979

$92,773.414  $23953,930 $£9,908,979

The fair value assigned to the oil and natural gas properties is based on management’s valuation of
the properties, which was derived in part by reference to reserve reports prepared by an independent
petroleurn engineering firm. Based on the engineer’s reports and our internal analyses, we believe the
value assigned to these properties is reasonably supported, We are continuing the process of
determining our final estimate of fair value of assets and liabilities pertaining to Cano Petro.

The WO Energy acquisition was not eligible for the application of Section 338 in the Internal
Revenue Service tax code. As defined, Section 338 would have enabled us to recognize the stepped-up
basis in the WO Energy properties approximately equal to the acquisition price, for tax computation
purposes. Therefore, we recorded a deferred tax liability of approximately $33.3 million (with an
offsetting increase in property basis) in connection with this purchase.

Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information. The following unaudited condensed pro forma
information gives effect to the acquisitions as if they had occurred on July 1, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The pro forma financial information is not necessarily indicative of the financial results
that would have occurred had the business combinations been effective on the dates indicated and
should not be viewed as indicative of operations in the future.

Years Ended June 30,

2006 2005
Operating revenues - . . . ..o vt vt nce e $31,262,000 $26,477,000
Earnings (loss) applicable to common stock .......... $ (183,000) $ 410,000
Net earnings (loss) per share—basic and diluted . . . . . .. $ (0.01) % 0.02

F-13




4. LONG-TERM DEBT
Credit Agreement

On November 29, 2005, we entered into a $100 million credit agreement (“Credit Agreement”)
with lenders led by Union Bank of California, N.A,, as administrative agent and as issuing lender.
Pursuant 1o the terms of the Credit Agreement, the borrowing base is based on our proved reserves
and is redetermined every six months with one additional redetermination possible during the six
month periods between scheduled redeterminations. During the quarter ended March 31, 2006, Natixis
was named as a lender via an amendment to the Credit Agreement.

On March 7, 2007, we entered into an Assignment and Agreement pursuant to which (i) Union
Bank of California, N.A. and Natixis adjusted their proportional lending interests; and (ii) our
borrowing base was reduced from $55 million to $48 million. During June 2007, in connection with the
sale of the oil and gas properties discussed in Note 6, the borrowing base was reduced to $44 million
and will remain in effect until the next redetermination. On September 7, the lenders approved an
increase in the borrowing base to $60.0 million.

At June 30, 2007, the outstanding amount due under the Credit Agreement was $33.5 million and
is our only source of debt. The outstanding principal is duc on or before November 29, 2009 unless,
pursuant to the terms of the Credit Agreement, specific events of default occur as a result of which all
outstanding principal and all accrued interest may be accelerated. Such specific events of default,
include, but are not limited to: payment defaults by us, breaches of representations and warranties and
covenants by us, our insolvency, a “change of contro!” of our business as described in the Credit
Agreement and a “material adverse change” as described in the Credit Agreement.

On March 6, 2007, we entered into Amendment No. 5 to the Credit Agreement (“Amendment
No. 57). Among other items, Amendment No. 5 (i) provides that we shall grant the lenders mortgages
in our Barnett Shale properties; (ii) clarifies that the development and acquisition of oil and gas
propertics does not constitute general corporate or working capital purposes such that expenditures for
the development and acquisition of oil and gas properties are not subject to the $10 million cap on
general corporate advances; (iii) provides that our Barnett Shale properties are now subject to the
negative covenant of being sold without consent; and (iv) provides that the 36,000,000 of insurance
proceeds received by us shall be placed in a controlled bank account to be used to pay attorney’s fees,
settlement amounts and other litigation expenses incurred to defend andfor settle the fire litigation. See
additional discussion at Note 12.

Subject to certain restrictions, the Credit Agreement permits the issuance of convertible notes and
equity. If we are not in default under the Credit Agreement, we may make interest payments on any
convertible notes and dividend payments on any preferred equity securities.

On September 7, 2007, the Leverage Ratio was amended to be as follows: (a) for each fiscal
quarter ending prior to June 30, 2008, the ratio of (i) our consolidated Debt (as defined in the Credit
Agreement) to (i) the consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Credit Agreement) for the four fiscal
quarter period then ended must not be greater than 5.00 to 1.00; (b) at the end of each fiscal quarter
ending on or after June 30, 2008 but prior to December 31, 2008, the ratio shall not be greater than
4.50 1o 1.00; and (c) at the end of each fiscal quarter ending on or after December 31, 2008, the ratio
shall not be greater than 4.00 to 1.00. For the purposes of calculating the Leverage Ratio, the
definition of “Consolidated Debt” shall not include “Debt” outstanding under preferred stock as
discussed in Note 2. We were in compliance with the prior Leverage Ratio of not greater than 5.00 to
1.00 as of June 30, 2007.

In the Credit Agreement, the Interest Coverage Ratio is as follows: (i) for the quarter ending
September 30, 2006, the ratio of our consolidated EBITDA for the two quarter period multiplied by
two to our consolidated Interest Expense for the two guarter period multiplied by two must be at least
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1.25 to 1.00; (ii) for the quarter ending December 31, 2006, the ratio of our consolidated EBITDA for
the three quarter period multiplied by % to our consolidated Interest Expense for the three quarter
period multiplied by % must be at least 1.25 to 1.00; (iii) for the guarter ending March 31, 2007, the
ratio of our consolidated EBITDA for the four quarter period to our consolidated Interest Expense for
the four quarter period must be at least 1.50 to 1.00; and (iv) for any quarter ending on or after

June 30, 2007, the ratio of our consolidated EBITDA for the four fiscal quarters then ended to our
consolidated Interest Expense for the four fiscal quarters then ended must be at least 2.00 to 1.00. The
definition of “Interest Expense” shall include cash dividends paid under our preferred stock, but shall
exclude PIK dividends under preferred stock, as discussed in Note 2. We were in compliance with the
Interest Coverage Ratio as of June 30, 2007.

Al our option, interest is based either (i) on the prime rate plus the applicable margin ranging up
to 1.00% based on the utilization level or (ii) on the LIBOR rate applicable to the interest period plus
the applicable margin ranging from 1.75% to 2.50% based on the utilization level. At June 30, 2007
and 2006, the interest rate was 7.46% and 8.49%, respectively. For loans that are three months or less
in maturity, interest is due on the maturity date of such loan. For loans that are in excess of three
months, interest is due every three months.

The Credit Agreement imposes certain restrictions on us and our subsidiaries including, but not
limited to, the following: (i) subject to specific exceptions, incurring additional liens; (ii) subject to
specific exceptions, incurring additional debt; (iii) subject to specific exceptions, merging or
consolidating or selling, transferring, assigning, farming-out, conveying or otherwise disposing of any
property; (iv) subject to specific exceptions, making certain payments, including cash dividends to our
stockholders; (v) subject to specific exceptions, making any loans, advances or capital contributions to,
or making any investment in, or purchasing or committing to purchase any stock or other securities or
evidences of indebtedness or interests in any person or any oil and natural gas properties or activities
related to oil and natural gas properties unless with regard to new oil and natural gas properties, such
properties are mortgaged to Union Bank of California, N.A., as administrative agent, or with regard to
new subsidiaries, such subsidiaries execute a guaranty, pledge agreement, security agreement and
mortgage in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as administrative agent; and (vi) subject to
specific exceptions, entering into affiliate transactions on terms that are not at least as favorable to us
as comparable arm’s length transactions.

In addition, we are required to hedge our exposure to commodity price risk associated with
expected oil and natural production. The Credit Agreement requires the hedges to cover no less than
50% and no more than 80% of the production volumes attributable to our proved producing reserves.
Our commodity derivatives are further discussed in Note 5.

As security for our obligations under the Credit Agreement: (i} each of our subsidiaries has
guaranteed all of our obligations; (ii} we, together with each of our subsidiaries, have executed
mortgages in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as collateral trustee, covering oil and natural gas
properties located in Texas, Oklahoma and New Mexico; (iii) we, together with each of our subsidiaries,
have granted a security interest in favor of Union Bank of California, N.A., as collateral trustee, in
substantially all of our assets; and (iv) we have pledged our ownership interests in all of our
subsidiaries to Union Bank of California, N.A., as collateral trustee.

Subordinated Credit Agreement

On November 29, 2005, we entered into a $15.0 million subordinated credit agreement with the
lenders led by Energy Components SPC EEP Energy Exploration and Production Segregated Portfolio,
as administrative agent. As previously discussed, during September 2006, cash proceeds from the
September 2006 financing discussed in Note 2 were used to repay $68.75 million of outstanding
long-term debt, consisting of amounts due under the Credit Agreement and subordinated credit
agreement of $53.75 million and $15.0 million, respectively. Due to repaying the $15.0 million
outstanding balance on the subordinated credit agreement, this debt facility was permanently retired,
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5. COMMODITY DERIVATIVES

During our years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we paid $1.6 million and $6.1 million to enter
into financial contracts to set price floors. These financial contracts are summarized in the table below.

Barrels of

Floor Barrels Floor Gas Mcf  Equivalent

Time Period Oil Price  per Day Gas Price  per Day  Oil per Day
Y106 - 123106 ... ... .. $60 534 $8.50 1,784 832
6/1/06 - 12/31/06 . . ... ... . $60 79 $7.60 690 194
1107 - 12/31/07 ..o 855 507 $8.00 1,644 781
V107 - 1231007 . oo $60 72 $7.60 658 182
OB -12/31/08 . .o $55 479 $7.50 1,534 735
V108 - 12/31/08 ... .. $60 66 $7.60 592 164
1/1/09 - 4/30/09 . ... ... $60 59 $7.60 559 152
1/1/09 - 12/31/09 ... o $55 395 $7.60 1,644 668
1110 -6/30/10 ... ... $55 365 $7.00 1,657 641

During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, there were settlements under our commodity
derivatives due to us amounting to $962,559 and $540,871, respectively, which are recorded as realized
gain on commodity derivatives on our consolidated statements of operations. The settlements were
cumulative monthly payments due to us since the NYMEX natural gas price was lower than the “floor
natural gas prices” ranging between $7.60 and $8.50 and the WTI-NYMEX oil price was lower than
the “floor oil prices” ranging from $55 to $60. The cash flows relating to the derivative instruments are
reflected in operating activities on our consolidated statements of cash flows. At June 30, 2007 and
2006, we had amounts due from our counterparty of $70,610 and $161,173, respectively, included in our
accounts receivable in our consolidated balance sheets.

We obtained mark-to-market valuations used for our commodity derivatives from an external
source and validated such valuations using quotes for exchange-traded options with similar terms. In
accordance with SFAS No. 133, we recorded $7.7 million in payments as derivative assets. During the
years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we recognized unrealized loss on commodity hedges on our
consolidated statements of operations amounting to $1,810,000 and $3,245,588, respectively.

6. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On June 11, 2007, pursuant to the terms of an Agreement for Purchase and Sale, we sold our
interests in the Rich Valley Properties located in Okiahoma and Kansas to Anadarko Minerals, Inc. for
net proceeds of $6.9 million. The agreement had an effective date of April 1, 2007. All of the funds
received were used to reduce the outstanding balance under the Credit Agreement discussed in Note 4.

The results of operations of the Rich Valley Propertics, effective April 1, 2007, have been
presented as discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations. Prior
year results have also been reclassified to report the results of operations of the Rich Valley Properties
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sold as discontinued operations. Results for these assets reported as discontinued operations were as
follows:

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

Operating Revenues:
Crude oil and natural gas sales . . ... ... .. $1,409,747 $2,006,353 $1,717,625

Operating Expenses:
Lease operating. . ................... 548,138 624,529 661,198
Production and ad valorem taxes ........ 99,166 141,645 119,230
General and administrative.. . .. ......... 159,575 171,065 75,477
Accretion of asset retirement obligations . . . 13,820 17,241 21,610
Depletion and depreciation . ........... 119,596 111,434 123,769
Interest expense, net ... .............. 147,956 181,876 —
Total operating expenses . . ... ........ 1,088,251 1,247,790 1,001,284
Gain on sale of properties . . ............. 3,810,589 — —
Income before taxes .. ................. 4,132,085 758,563 716,341
Income tax provision . .. ................ 1,487,551 273,083 _—
Income from discontinued operations . . ... .. $2,644534 § 485480 § 716,341

Interest expense, net of interest income, was allocated to discontinued operations based on the
percent of operating revenues applicable to discontinued operations to the totai operating revenues.

As of April 1, 2007, the assets of the Rich Valley Properties totaled $3.3 million, of which
$3.2 million represented the oil and gas properties, net. At June 30, 2006, the Rich Valley Properties’
assets totaled $3.4 million, of which $3.2 million represented oil and gas properties, net.

7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Transactions involving Directors

On March 29, 2005, we entered into an agreement with Haddock Enterprises, LLC and
Kenneth Q. Carlile (predecessor to Carlile Management, LLC) to explore the possibility of converting
the Sabine Royalty Trust from a liquidating asset into a vehicle to acquire low risk assets. Each of the
three parties owned a one-third interest in the Sabine Production Operating, LLC (*“Sabine
Production”). Gerald W. Haddock is President of Haddock Enterprises, LLC and is a member of our
Board of Directors. From inception through of June 30, 2006, we had incurred approximately $420,000
pertaining to the joint venture, of which $325,000 was funded directly to Sabine Production. During the
years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, we incurred $380,000 and $40,000, respectively, which we charged
to general and administrative expense.

On January 26, 2007 but effective January 8, 2007, we entered into an amendment to the
agreement that provides the maximum amount to be committed to Sabine Production by any member
was increased from $325,000 to $375,000. The amendment also provides that after funding the
increased commitment of $375,000, a member may withdraw as a member of Sabine Production. Upon
a withdrawal, the withdrawing member forfeits its membership interests in Sabine Production and is
released from all of its obligations under the agreement. On January 26, 2007, we made our final
contribution of $50,000 to Sabine Production such that our aggregate contribution was $375,000 and en
February 1, 2007, we delivered our notice of withdrawal from Sabine Production effective on
February 1, 2007.
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We have entered into an agreement to be a lead sponsor of a television production called Honey
Hole All Qutdoors. As part of our sponsorship, we are able to provide fishing and outdoor
opportunities for children with cancer, children from abusive family situations, and military veterans.
During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we paid $150,000 and $125,000, respectively, to R.C.
Boyd Enterprises, the owner of Honey Hole All Outdoors. Randall Boyd is the sole sharehotder of
R.C. Boyd Enterprises and is a member of our Board of Dircctors,

Transactions involving THEprivate Energy Company

On December 27, 2005, we acquired all overriding royalty interests held by THEprivate Energy
Company, Inc. (formerly Cano Energy Corporation) effective as of December 1, 2005, and we are to
acquire all overriding royalty interests acquired in the future by THEprivate Energy Company, Inc. in
and to the crude oil, natural gas and mineral leaseholder cstates and personal property related to
leasehold estates located on the same property on which the Davenport Field Unit's properties are
located. We paid $66,700 per percentage of net revenue attributable to the interests held by
THEprivate Energy Company, Inc. During December 2005, we paid $500,250 to acquire a 7.5%
overriding royalty interest and during January 2006, we paid $200,100 to acquire a 3.0% overriding
royalty interest. At June 30, 2006, we had accrued $133,400 to acquire an additional 2.0% overriding
royalty interest and consummated the transaction during August 2006.

S. Jeffrey Johnson, our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, is a 30% shareholder
in THEprivate Energy Company, Inc. The terms of the purchase were supported by a valuation
established by our independent engineer. This purchase was approved by our Board of Directors.

8. STOCK OPTION PLANS
We have granted stock options to key employees and outside directors as discussed below.

On December 16, 2004, we issued stock options for 50,000 shares of our common stock to Gerald
Haddock, a current member of our board of directors, in exchange for certain financial and
management consulting services to us. The exercise price is $4 per share. The options are exercisable at
any time, in whole or in part, during the ten-year option period which commenced six months following
the date of grant (June 16, 2005) and expires on June 15, 2015.

On April 1, 2005, we adopted the 2005 Directors’” Stock Option Plan (“Plan”). On April 1, 2005,
pursuant to the Plan, we granted stock options to our five non-employce directors to each purchase
25,000 shares of common stock. The options granted under the Plan totaled 125,000 shares. These
options have an exercise price of $4.13 per share. The options vested on April 1, 2006, and expire on
April 1, 2015. During the year ended June 30, 2007, 25,000 options shares were exercised and 25,000
option shares were forfeited. As of June 30, 2007, these vested options totaled 75,000 shares.

On September 16, 2005, we granted stock options to James K. Teringo, Jr., then our Senior Vice
President, General Counsel and Corporate Secretary to purchase 50,000 shares of common stock.
These options have an exercise price of $3.98 per share. These options were forfeited during May 2007.

On December 7, 2005, our stockholders approved our 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (2005
LTIP) that authorized the issuance of up to 1,000,000 shares of our common stock to key employees,
key consultants and outside directors of our company and subsidiaries. On December 28, 2006, our
stockholders approved an amendment to the 2005 LTIP that increases the number of shares authorized
for issuance from 1,000,000 to 3,500,000 shares of our common stock. The amendment also increases
for Executive Officers (as defined in the Plan) for any calendar year (i) the number of stock options or
stock appreciation rights that any Executive Officer can receive from 100,000 shares of common stock
to 300,000 shares of common stock, (ii) the number of shares relating to restricted stock, restricted
stock units, performance awards or other awards that are subject to the attainment of performance
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goals that any Executive Officer can receive from 100,000 shares of common stoek to 300,000 shares of
common stock; and (iii) the number of shares relating to all awards that an Executive Officer can
receive from 100,000 to 300,000. The 2005 LTIP permits the grant of incentive stock options,
non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, restricted stock units,
performance awards, dividend equivalent rights and other awards, whether granted singly, or in
combination or in tandem. The 2005 LTIP terminates on December 7, 2015; however, awards granted
before that date will continue to be effective in accordance with their terms and conditions.

On December 13, 2005, under the 2005 LTIF, 25,000 options were granted to cach of our five
non-employee directors. The options granted to our directors under the 2005 LTIP totaled
125,000 shares. The exercise price is $6.30 per share. These granted options vested on December 13,
2006 if such persons were still directors or an employee on December 13, 2006. As of June 30, 2007,
these vested options totaled 125,000 shares.

During April 2006 and June 2006, we granted options totaling 227,185 shares 1o our emplovees
under the 2005 LTIP. In April 2006, options totaling 90,000 shares were granted and the exercise price
was $9.55 per share. These 90,000 option shares have been forfeited. On June 21, 2006, options totaling
137,185 shares were granted and vest on June 21, 2009, with an exercise price of $5.15 per share. As of
June 30, 2007, 29.975 of these option shares have been forfeited.

On August 11, 2006, under the 2005 LTIP, 15,000 options were granted to each of two
non-employee directors. The options granted to these two directors under the 2005 LTIP tataled
30,000 shares. The exercise price is $5.06 per share. These granted options would bave vested on
August 11, 2007 if such persons were still directors or an employee on this date. As of June 30, 2007,
the 30,000 options were forfeited.

On December 28, 2006, under the 2005 LTIP, 25,000 options were granted to each of our six
non-employee directors totaling 150,000 shares. The exercise price is $5.42 per share. These granted
options vest an December 28, 2007 if such persons are still directors or an employee on December 28,
2007. As of June 30, 2007, 50,000 of these options were forfeited.

On December 28, 2006, under the 2005 LTIP, we granted 265,000 total options to our five
executive officers. The exercise price is $5.42 per share. If the executive officer is still employed by us
on each anniversary date of the grant, one-third of the stock options will vest on each of the following
three anniversary dates—December 28, 2007, 2008 and 2009. As of June 30, 2007, 40,000 of these
options were forfeited.

On February 7, 2007, under the 2005 LTIP, we granted 12,000 total options to an employee. The
exercise price is $4.88 per share. The options vest on February 7, 2010 if such person is still an
employee on February 7, 2010,

On April 4, 2007, under the 2005 LTIP, we granted 61,803 total options to three non-employee
directors. The exercise price is $4.73 per share. The options vest on December 28, 2007 if such persons
are still directors or an employee on December 28, 2007.

On June 28, 2007, we resolved that upon the resignation of any current member of the Board of
Directors who is in good standing on the date of resignation, such member’s unvested stock options
shall be vested and shall have the exercise period for all options extended to twenty-four months after
the date of resignation. On June 29, 2007, Dr. James Underwood resigned as a director; therefore, his
unvested stock options vested on June 29, 2007 and the exercise period for his options was extended to
June 29, 2009.

On June 30, 2007, under the 2005 LTIP, we granted 45,500 total options to several employees. The
exercise price is $6.15 per share. The options vest on June 30, 2010 if such person is still an employee
on June 30, 2010.
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A summary of options we granted during the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as
follows:

Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price
Qutstanding at July 1,2004 . . ............. . ...... — —
Shares granted . . ........ ... ... . i 175,000 34.09
Shares exercised, forfeited, or expired during fiscal year. . — —
Quatstanding at June 30,2005 . . ............. .. ... 175,000 $4.09
Shares granted . ........... ... o 402,185 $6.35
Shares exercised, forfeited, or expired during fiscal year. . — —_
Outstanding at June 30,2006 . . .. ................. 577,185 $5.66
Shares granted . ............ ... .o 564,303 $5.37
Shares forfeited orexpired . . . . ... .o oo (314,975) $6.21
Shares exercised . ...... ... .. ... (25,000) $4.13
Qutstanding at June 30,2007 .. ..... .. ... ... ..... 801,513 $5.29

The following is a summary of stock options outstanding at June 30, 2007:

Exercise Options Remaining Contractual Options

Price Qutstanding Lives (Years) Exercisable
$4.00 50,000 7.96 50,000
$4.13 75,000 7.76 75,000
$4.73 61,803 9.50 —
$4.88 12,000 9.62 —
$5.15 107,210 8.98 —
$5.42 325,000 9.50 —
$6.15 45,500 10.00 —
$6.30 125,000 8.46 125,000
$5.29 801,513 9.18 250,000

Based on our $6.00 stock price at June 30, 2007, the intrinsic value of the options outstanding was
approximately $612,000.

Total options exercisable at June 30, 2007 amounted to 230,000 shares and had a weighted average
exercise price of $5.19. Upon exercise, we issue the full amount of shares exercisable per the term of
the options from new shares. We have no plans to repurchase those shares in the future. The following
is a summary of options exercisable at June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

Weighted Average

Shares Exercise Price
June 30, 2007 . .. o e 250,000 $5.19
June 30,2006 . .. .. e 220,000 $5.21
June 30, 2005 . . ... e 50,000 $4.00

The fair value of each stock option is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. Expected volatilities are based on historical volatility of our common stock. We
use historical data to estimate option exercise and employee termination within the valuation model.
The expected lives of options granted represent the period of time that options granted are expected to
be outstanding. The risk-free rate for periods within the contractual life of the option is based on the
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U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The expected dividend yield reflects our intent
not to pay dividends on our common stock during the contractual periods.

The fair values of options granted along with the factors used to calculate the fair values of those
options are summarized in the table below:

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

No.ofshares . . ... ... . ... . . 564,303 402,185 175,000
Risk free interestrate . ............ ... .. ........ 456 -491% 403-515% 4.02-427%
Expectedlife . ...... ... ... . . 4 years 4 years 4 years
Expected volatility . .. ....... .. ... ... .. .. .. .. ... 505-534% 463 -519% 419-51.5%
Expected dividend yield ... ... ... .. .. ... .. ..... 0% 0% 0%
Weighted average grant date fair value—exercise prices

equal to market value on grant date . ............. $ 264 % 247 % —
Weighted average grant date fair valoe—exercise prices

greater than market value on grant date. . .. ........ 244 3 271 % —
Weighted average grant date fair value—exercise prices

less than market value on grant date . ............. 3 — 3 — 1.73

For the years ended June 30 2007, 2006 and 2005, we have recorded a charge to stock
compensation expense of $587,259, $563,330 and $144,255, respectively, for the estimated fair value of
the options granted to our directors and employees.

9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION
Management Stock Pool Agreement

Pursuant to the terms of a Management Stock Pool Agreement dated May 28, 2004, the
5,165,000 shares issued to the Davenport Field Unit shareholders were placed in escrow, and were
scheduled to be released from escrow pursuant to the achievement of certain employment and
performance goals.

The Davenport Field Unit shareholders were comprised of three current employees, four former
employees and one director. The shares vested to the individuals based on a combination of continued
employment (“‘compensation shares™) and achieving certain performance goals during the two years
following the merger (“performance shares”). The compensation shares amounted 1o 2,659,975 shares
and the performance shares amounted to 2,505,025 shares. Any shares not released from escrow were
returned to treasury stock. At the merger date, we recognized $2,324,250 of deferred compensation in
the consolidated balance sheets. The shares were recorded based on the quoted market price at the
time of the transaction.

Puring the year ended June 30, 2006, of the total compensation shares, 2,644,192 shares were
released and 15,783 compensation shares were forfeited by a former employee. During October 2006,
the Board approved the release of performance shares totaling 1,252,514 shares to the executive
Davenport shareholders and the remaining 1,252,511 shares were returned as treasury shares.

As of June 30, 2007, the treasury stock totaled 1,268,294 shares, consisting of the 1,252,511
performance shares which have been returned as treasury stock and 15,783 compensation shares
forfeited by a former employee.

The $2,324,250 of deferred compensation that was recognized on the merger date was based on
management’s expectation that all escrowed shares would be released from escrow. We have adjusted
the expense to be recorded as deferred compensation, for the year ended June 30, 2006, to match the
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actual award of escrowed shares totaling 3,896,706 shares (2,644,192 compensation shares and 1,252,514
performance shares). Accordingly, of the $2,324,250 recognized as deferred compensation, we
recognized total expense of $1,753,518 from our inception through June 30, 2006, of which $1,775,629
was recognized prior to June 30, 2005. The remaining 1,268,294 shares were returned as treasury
shares, at a recognized cost of $570,732.

Once the Board made its final determination of the performance shares awarded in October 2006,
the Management Stock Pool Agreement expired and had no effect to the financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2007.

Contingently Issued Shares from the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

During June 2006, 140,000 restricted shares were issued to key employees from our 2005 LTIF,
previously discussed in Note 8. During the year ended June 30, 2007, forfeited shares totaled
50,000 shares and 5,000 additiona! shares were granted. As of June 30, 2007, the outstanding 95,000
restricted shares are summarized below:

Weighted Average

Grant-Date
Shares Fair Value Fair Value
OQutstanding at June 30,2006. .. .......... 140,000 $5.62 $ 786,800
Shares granted during August 2006 ........ 5,000 $5.03 $ 25150
Shares forfeited during November 2006 and
May 2007 ... o (50,000) $5.62 $(281,000)
QOutstanding at June 30, 2007............. 95,000 $5.59 $ 530,950

The restricted shares wil] vest to the individual employees based on future years of service ranging
from one to three years depending on the life of the award agreement. The fair value is based our
actual stock price on the date of grant multiplicd by the number of restricted shares granted. As of
June 30, 2007, the value of non-vested restricted shares amounted to $418,550. In accordance with
SEAS No. 123(R), for the year ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, we have expensed $242,824 and $29,304,
respectively, to stock compensation expense based on amortizing the fair value over the appropriate
service period.

Subsequent to June 30, 2007, we awarded 395,000 restricted shares to executive officers with a
grant date of July 2, 2007. Such shares vest in three equal increments on the first, second and third
anniversaries of the grant date. The grant date fair value per share was $5.84 per share, or $2,306,800
aggregated. Such amount will be recognized in expense over the three-year vesting period.

10. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION

Our asset retirement obligation (“ARO”) primarily represents the estimated present value of the
amount we will incur to plug, abandon and remediate our producing properties at the end of their
productive lives, in accordance with applicable state laws. We determine our ARQ by calculating the
present value of estimated cash flows refated to the liability. At June 30, 2007, our liability for ARO
was $2,415,070, of which $2,150,930 was considered long term. At June 30, 2006, our liability for ARO
was $1,607,378, of which $1,587,569 was considered long term. Qur asset retirement obligations are
recorded as current or non-current liabilities based on the estimated timing of the anticipated cash
flows. For the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006, and 2005, we have recognized accretion expense, net of
discontinued operations discussed in Note 6, of $140,129, $90,492 and $48,204, respectively.
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The following table describes the changes in our asset retirement obligations for the years ended
June 30, 2007 and 2006:

Asset retirement obligation at July 1, 2005 .. ... .. ... ... . ..., $1,051,453
Liabilities incurred:
Acquisition of WO Energy . ........ ... . . .. 498,411
Properties acquired by Pantwist ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ...... 67,849
ACCIELON BXPEINSE . o o oo ittt st ittt e e e 107,733
Liabilities settled . . ... ... ... ... ... L (118,068)
Asset retirement obligation at June 30,2006 ... .. ... ..... .. ..., $1,607,378
Liabilities incurred:
Liability incurred for properties acquired (Note 3) . . ..... ... . ... 1,324,408
Sale of Rich Valley—Discontinued Operations (Note 6)........... (254,020)
ACCTEHON EXPENISE . . . ... e e 140,129
Liabilities settled .. .. ... ... . (17,855)
Change in eStmate . .. ... ... ottt e (384,970)
Asset retirement obligation at June 30,2007 .. ... ... ... ... ... ... $2,415,070

The amounts listed above include the effects of purchase accounting adjustments to reflect
knowledge gained since we assumed operational responsibilities of these properties. The change in
estimate resulted primarily from an increase in productive years for certain fields.

11. INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax
provisions. Our income fax benefit is as follows:

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005
Current income tax benefit
Federal. . .. e $ — $ — $ —
State . ... e 53,000 — —
Total current tax benefit . . .................. — — —_
Deferred income tax benefit
Federal. . .. ... ... . . (1,857,000) (1,877,000) —
L0 - ¢ (115,000) (1,894,000) -
Total deferred tax benefit . . ... .............. (1,972,000) (3,771,000) —
Total income tax benefit .. ........ ... ... ......... $(1,919,000) (3,771,000y § —
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A reconciliation of the differences between our applicable statutory tax rate and our effective
income tax rate for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

RALE . o e 35% 35% 35%
Tax at SIatutory Tate . . . ..o vvve e et innnnnnnn, $(1,873.000)  $(2,135000)  $(1,292,000)
STALE TAXES . o o v it e e e e e — {61,000) (96,000
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

Change in Texas tax law . .................... (84,000) (1,840,000) —

Permanentand other. ... ......... ... ... ..... 16,000 31,000 11,000

Change in valuation allowance . .. .............. 22,000 234,000 1,377,000
Income tax benefit ... ......... .. ... ... ... ... $(1,919,000)  $(3,771,000) —

A schedule showing the significant components of the net deferred tax liability as of June 30, 2007
and 2006 are as follows:

As of June 30,

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred compensation expense. ... .. ... ... ... $ 1,143,000 § 834,000
Net operating loss carryovers. . .. ... ... ... 4,615,000 4,680,000
Other. ... e 200,000 216,000
5,958,000 5,730,000
Less: valuation allowance . ............. ... .... (770,000) (792,000)
Total deferred tax assets . .........c. v 5,188,000 4,938,000
Deferred tax liabilities—
Difference in book and tax bases:
Acquired oil and gas properties .............. (36,078,000)  (35,950,000)
Other properties ... ... . ... (1,481,000) {499,000)
Total deferred tax liabilities .. ............... (37,559,000) (36,449,000}
Net deferred tax Kiability . . .. ........... ... . ... $(32,371,000) $(31,511,000)

In May 2006, the State of Texas enacted legislation for a Texas margin tax which restructured the
state business tax by replacing the taxable capital and earned surplus components of the current
franchise tax with a new “taxable margin” component. As the tax base for computing Texas margin tax
is derived from an income-based measure, we have determined the margin tax is an income tax and the
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax law should be included in tax expense
attributable to continuing operations in the period that includes the enactment date. Therefore, we
recalculated our deferred tax assets and liabilities for Texas based upon the new margin tax and
recorded a $1,840,000 deferred tax benefit for the Texas margin tax in 2006.

At June 30, 2007 and 2006, we had net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards for tax purposes of
approximately $12.8 million and $13.0 million. The remaining net operating losses principally expire
between 2024 and 2027. $2.2 million of these NOL carryforwards will be unavailable to offset any
future taxable income due to limitations from change in ownership as defined in Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Service code. The tax effect of this limitation is recorded as a valuation allowance of
$770,000 and $792,000 at June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Fire Litigation

On March 23, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 100th Judicial District Court in Carson
County, Texas; Cause No. 9840, The Tom L. and Anne Burnett Trust, by Anne Burnett Windfohr,
Windi Phillips, Ben Fortson, Jr., George Beggs, Il and Ed Hudson, Jr. as Co-Trustees; Anne Burnett
Windfohr; and Burnett Ranches, Ltd. v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O.
Operating Company, Ltd, and W.O. Energy, Inc. The plaintiffs claim that the electrical wiring and
equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started a
wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson County.

The plaintiffs (i) allege negligence and gross negligence and (ii) seek damages, including, but not
limited to, damages for damage to their land and livestock, certain expenses related to fighting the fire
and certain remedial expenses totaling approximately $1.7 million to $1.8 million. In addition, the
plaintiffs scek (i) termination of certain oil and natural gas leases, (ii) reimbursement for their
attorney’s fees (in the amount of at least $549,000} and (iil) exemplary damages. The plaintiffs also
claim that Cano and its subsidiaries are jointly and severally liable as a single business enterprise and/or
a general partnership or de facto partnership. The owner of the remainder of the mineral estate, Texas
Christian University, has intervened in the suit joining the plaintiffs’ request to terminate certain oil
and natural gas teases and on January 26, 2007, Southwestern Public Service Company d/b/a Xcel
Energy, intervened in the suit as an adverse party to all defendants, claiming that the fire that is subject
of this lawsuit destroyed transmission and distribution equipment, including utility poles, lines and other
equipment with an estimated loss of §1,876,000. By order dated March 7, 2007, the court granted
defendants’ motion to strike the intervention of Southwest Public Service Company d/b/a Xcel Encrgy.

On June 21, 2007, the Judge of the 100" Judicial District Court issued a Final Judgment
(a) granting motions for summary judgment in favor of Cano and certain of its subsidiaries on
plaintiffs’ claims for (i) breach of contract/termination of an oil and gas lease; and (ii) negligence; and
(b) granting the plaintiffs’ no-evidence motion for summary judgment on contributory negligence,
assumption of risk, repudiation and estoppel affirmative defenses asserted by Cano and certain of its
subsidiaries. The Final Judgment has been appealed,

On April 28, 2006, the foliowing lawsuit was filed in the 31% Judicial District Court of Roberts
County, Texas, Case No. 1922, Robert and Glenda Adcock, et al. v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy
of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating Company, Ltd, and W.O. Energy, Inc. There are 43 plaintiffs and
four groups of intervenors that claim that the electrical wiring and equipment of Cano or certain of its
subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006
in Carson County.

The plaintiffs and intervenors (i) allege negligence, gross negligence, trespass and nuisance and
(ii) seek damages, including, but not limited to, damages to their land, buildings and livestock and
certain remedial expenses totaling $11,297,684. In addition, the plaintiffs seek (i} reimbursement for
their attorney’s fees and (ii) exemplary damages. The case is set for trial on October 29, 2007. On
May 21, 2007, the plaintiffs filed a first amended petition. In their amended petition, the plaintiffs
assert an additional claim for res ipsa logquitor and also claim that the Company and its subsidiaries are
joinily and severally liable as a single business enterprise andfor as a partnership or de facto
partnership. Further, the First Amended Petition names ¢leven new plaintiffs to the suit. It omits the
claims of three original plaintiffs who do not appear to have any claims currently pending against the
Company. Five of the former plaintiffs have asscrted claims in the matter styled Gary and Genia
Burgess, et al. v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating, Ltd, and W.O.
Energy, Inc. (discussed below), while one of the plaintiffs has intervened in the matter styled
Southwestern Public Service Company d/b/a Xcel Energy v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc., W.O. Operating, Ltd, and W.O. Energy, Inc. (also discussed below). Discovery in the suit
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is underway and the case is set for trial on October 29, 2007. On August 28, 2007, one of the
intervenors, Travelers Lloyds Insurance Company, filed a Notice of Nonsuit requesting the court 1o sign
an order dismissing its claims, which seek approximately $367,627 of total damages, without prejudice.

On April 10, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 3ist Judicial District Court of Roberts
County, Texas, Case No. 1920, Joseph Craig Hutchison and Judy Hutchison v. Cano Petroleum, Inc.,
W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating Company, Ltd, and W.O. Encrgy, Inc. On May 1, 2006,
the following lawsuit was filed in the 31st Judicial District Court of Roberts County, Texas, Case
No. 1923, Chisum Family Partnership, Ltd. v. Cano, W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating
Company, Ltd, and W.O. Energy, Inc. The plaintiffs in both cases claim that the electrical wiring and
equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas operations started a
wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson County.

The plaintiffs in both cases (i) allege negligence and trespass and (ii) seek undisclosed damages,
including, but not limited to, damages to their land and certain remedial expenses. In addition, the
plaintiffs in both cases seek (i) reimbursement for their attorney’s fees and (i} exemplary damages.

On July 3, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 31 Judicial District Court of Roberts
County, Texas, Case No. 1928, Rebecca Lee Martinez, et al v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of
Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating Company, Ltd., and W.O. Energy, Inc. The plaintiffs claim that the
electrical wiring and equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries relating to oil and natural gas
operations started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson County, Texas. The plaintiffs
(i) allege negligence and gross negligence and (ii) seek undisclosed damages for the wrongful death of
two individuals who they claim died as a result of the fire. Additional heirs and relatives of one of the
decedents have intervened in this case seeking similar claims.

On August 9, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the 233rd Judicial District Court of Gray
County, Texas, Yolanda Villareal, Individually and on behalf of the Estate of Gerardo Villareal v. Cano
Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc., W. O. Operating Company, Ltd., and W.O. Energy, Inc.
The plaintiffs claim that the electrical wiring and equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries
relating to oil and natural gas operations started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson
County, Texas. The plaintiffs (i) allege negligence and gross negligence and (i) seek undisclosed
damages for the wrongful death of Gerardo Villareal who they claim died as a result of the fire.
Relatives of Roberto Chavira have intervened in the case alleging similar claims regarding the death of
Roberto Chavira.

On March 14, 2007, the following lawsuit was filed in 100th Judicial District Court in Carson
County, Texas; Cause No. 9994, Southwestern Public Service Company d/b/a Xcel Energy v. Cano
Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy of Nevada, Inc.; W. O. Operating Company, Ltd, and WO Energy, Inc.
The plaintiffs claim that the electrical wiring and equipment of Cano or certain of its subsidiaries
relating to oil and natural gas operations started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson
County. This case is a refiling of the intervention which was struck by the court as described above.

The plaintiff alleges negligence and secks $1,876,000 in damages for loss and damage to
transmission and distribution equipment, utility poles, lines and other equipment. In addition, the
plaintiff seeks reimbursement for its attorney’s fees. On May 15, 2007, three new plaintiffs (one of
which is a former plaintiff in the Adcock matter) intervened in the lawsuit and (i) allege negligence,
gross negligence, res ipsa loquitor, nuisance, and trespass and (ii) seek damages, including, but not
limited to, damages to their land, buildings and livestock and certain remedial expenses totaling
approximately $201,280. In addition, the intervenors seek (i) reimbursement for their attorney’s fees
and (i} exemplary damages. The intervenors also claim that the Company and its subsidiaries are
jointly and severally liable as a single business enterprise and/or as a partnership or de facto
partnership.
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On May 2, 2007, the following lawsuit was filed in the 84" Judicial District Court of Hutchinson
County, Texas, Case No. 37.619, Gary and Genia Burgess, et al. v. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.O. Energy
of Nevada, inc., W.O. Operating, Ltd. And W.O. Energy, Inc. Eleven plaintiffs claim that electrical
wiring and equipment relating to oil and gas operations of the Company or certain of its subsidiaries
started a wildfire that began on March 12, 2006 in Carson County, Texas. Five of the plaintiffs are
former plaintiffs in the Adcock matter, The plaintiffs (i) allege negligence, gross negligence, res ipsa
loguitor, nuisance, and trespass and (ii) seek damages, including, but not limited to, damages to their
land, buildings and livestock and certain remedial expenses totaling approximately $1,152,480. In
addition, the plaintiffs seek (i) reimbursement for their attorney’s fees and (ii) exemplary damages. The
plaintiffs also claim that the Company and its subsidiaries are jointly and severally liable as a single
business enterprisc andjor as a partnership or de facio partnership.

Due to the inherent risk of litigation, the outcome of these cases is uncertain and unpredictabie;
however, at this time Cano management believes the suits are without merit and is vigorously
defending itself and its subsidiaries.

Insurance Seitlement

On June 20, 2006, the following lawsuit was filed in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Texas, Fort Worth Division, C.A. No. 4-06cv-434-A, Mid-Continent Casuaity
Company, Plaintiff, vs. Cano Petroleum, Inc., W.0. Energy of Nevada, Inc., W.O. Operating
Company, Ltd. and W.O. Energy, Inc. seeking a declaration that the plaintiff is not responsible for
pre-tender defense costs and that the plaintiff has the sole and exclusive right to select defense counsel
and to defend, investigate, negotiate and settle the litigation described above and on September 18,
2006, the First Amended Complaint for Declaratory Judgment was filed with regard to the cases
described above. Cano and its subsidiaries were served with the lawsuit between September 26-28, 2006.

On February 9, 2007, Cano and its subsidiaries entered into a Settlement Agreement and Release
with the plaintiff pursuant to which in exchange for mutual releases, in addition to the approximately
$923,000 that we have been reimbursed by plaintiff, the plaintiff agreed to pay to Cano within 20
business days of February 9, 2007 the amount of $6,699,827 comprised of the following: (a) the
$1,000,000 policy limits of the primary policy; (b) the $5,000,000 policy limits of the excess policy;

(c) $500,000 for future defense costs; (d) $144,000 as partial payment for certain unpaid invoices for
litigation related expenses; () all approved reasonable and necessary litigation related expenses
through December 21, 2006 that are not part of the above-referenced $144,000; and (f) certain
specified attorneys fees. During February 2007, we received the $6,699,827 payment from Mid-Con. Of
this $6,699,827 amount, the payments for policy limits amounting to $6,000,000, in accordance with the
Credit Agreement (Note 4), have been placed in a controlled bank account and the use of the proceeds
is specified to pay attorney’s fees, settlement amounts and other litigation expenses incurred to defend
and/or settle the fire litigation. Accordingly, our consolidated balance sheets reflect the $6,000,000 as
restricted cash and a corresponding liability under deferred litigation credit. The remaining $699,827
was applied as a reduction to general and administrative expense for litigation expenses incurred.

Other

Occasionally, we are involved in other various lawsuits and certain governmental proceedings
arising in the ordinary course of business. Our management does not believe that the ultimate
resolution of any current matters that are not set forth above, including due to the existence of
insurance coverage, indemnification and escrow accounts, will have a material effect on our financial
position or results of operations. None of our directors, officers or affiliates, owners of record or
beneficially of more than five percent of any class of our voting securities, or security holder is involved
in a proceeding adverse to our business or has a material interest adverse to our business.
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Environmental

To date, our expenditures to comply with environmental or safety regulations have not been

significant and are not expected

to be significant in the future. However, new regulations, enforcement

policies, claims for damages or other events could result in significant future costs.

Leases

During June 2006, we entered into a non-cancelable operating lease for our principal executive

offices in Fort Worth. The lease

expires on April 20, 2011. Qur total obligation for the life of the lease

is $1,490,584. In addition, during October 2005 we entered into a five year operating lease for our field

offices at WO Energy. The lease

expires on November 29, 2010, Future minimum rentals due under

our nen-cancellable operating leases were as follows on June 30, 2007:

Total operating lease obligations

2008 2009 2010 2011 Tota)
.......... $436,397 $438,422 $425,875 $334,165 $1,634,859

Rent expense amounted to $339,697, $98,000, and $107,868 for the years ended June 30, 2007,

2006 and 2005, respectively.

Employment Contracts

We have an employment contract with our CEO that requires minimum compensation totaling
$476,000 annually through December 31, 2010. Our Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
has an employment contract through May 31, 2010 that provides for minimum compensation of
$300,000 annually. Our Senior Vice-President of Operations employment contract is through May 31,

2010 that provides for minimum

compensation of $250,000 annually. Our Vice President and Principal

Accounting Officer has an employment contract through June 30, 2010 that provides for minimum
compensation of $187,000 annually.

13. SUPPLEMENTARY FINAN

CIAL INFORMATION FOR OIL AND GAS PRODUCING

ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED)

All of our operations are directly related to oil and natural gas producing activities located in
Texas, Oklahoma and New Mexico.

Capitalized Costs Relating to Oil and Gas Producing Activities

Mineral interests in oil

June 30,
2007 2006

and gas properties:

Proved ... . e e $ 97,709,480 § 89,027,955
Unproved ... .. — 1,500,025
Wells and related equipment and facilities ......... 70,618,844 41,539,638

Support equipment and facilities used in oil and gas

producing activities

........................ 6,405,549 4,890,023

Uncompleted wells, equipment and facilities .. . ... .. 15,109,000 1,109,000

Total capitalized costs

........................ 189,842,882 138,066,641

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization . . . . . (6,201,635) (2,319,780)

Net Capitalized Costs

........................ $183,641,247 $135,746,861
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Costs Incurred in Oil and Gas Producing Activities

Years Ended June, 30

2007 2006 2005
Acquisition of proved properties . .. ... ... ... L $ 9873979 $108,725,132 $12,444 875
Acquisition of unproved properties . . ................ — 21,932 1,478,093
Development costs. . . ......... .. ... ... ... ... 41,902,262 12,649,715 1,984,894
Asset retirement costs recognized according to SFAS
NO. 143 . o e e 17,855 118,068 27,787
Total Costs Incurred . ... .. . . $ 51,794,006  $121,514,847  $15,935,649

Results of Operations from Oil and Gas Producing Activities

Years Ended June 30,

2007 2006 2005

Oil and gas revenues .. ............ccvernueenen., $ 28,353,026 3 15,860,562 § 3,764,015

Production costs ... .. ...... ... i (10,885,393) (6,240,986} (2,068,881)
Productiontaxes . ........ ... ... ... ... (2,465,191)  (1,153,775) (223,566}
Depreciation and accretion. . .............. .. . ... (4,312,409) (1,809,034) (273,724)
Realized gain on hedge contracts .. ................. 962,559 540,871 —_

Unrealized loss on hedge contracts . . ................ (1,810,000)  (3,245,588) —
Results of oil and gas producing operations before income

BAXES © ottt e e $ 9,842,592 § 3,952,050 §$ 1,197,844

Provision for income taxes® ....................... (3,543,333) (1,462,259) —

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax . . ...... 2,644,534 485,480 716,341

Results of Oil and Gas Producing Operations .. ........ § 8,943,793 § 2975271 § 1,914,185

*  Since we did not have a provision for federal income taxes for 2005, we did not compute a tax
provision for the disclosure listed above.

Proved Reserves

Our proved oil and natural gas reserves have been estimated by independent petroleum engineers.
Proved reserves are the estimated quantities that geologic and engineering data demonstrate with
reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from known reservoirs under existing economic
and operating conditions. Proved developed reserves are the quantities expected to be recovered
through existing wells with existing equipment and operating methods. Due to the inherent
uncertainties and the limited nature of reservoir data, such estimates are subject to change as
additional information becomes available. The reserves actually recovered and the timing of production
of these reserves may be substantially different from the original estimate. Revisions result primarily
from new information obtained from development drilling and production history; acquisitions of oil
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and natural gas properties; and changes in economic factors. Our proved reserves are summarized in
the table below.

Crude Oil Natural Gas

Bbls. Ml
Reserves at June 30,2004 . . ...... ... . i 213,245 —
Purchases of minerals in place .................... 2,066,456 9,531,352
Revisions of prior estimates . ..................... 865,587 1,036,629
Production . . ..ot e e (89,308) (180,069)
Reserves at June 30,2005 . . .. .. .. ... .. ol 3,055,980 10,387,912
Proved developed reserves ... ....... ... .. o 2,989,514 10,019,094
Reserves at June 30,2005 . ... .. ... o i i 3,055,980 10,387,912
Purchases of minerals inplace . .......... ... ...... 29,733,098 75,840,658
Revisions of prior estimates . ..................... 1,270,383  (16,421,342)
Production . ... ..ot i it e e e e e {191,700) (705,183)
Reserves at June 30,2006 . ... ... ... i, 33,867,761 69,102,045
Proved developed reserves .. ...... ... .. 6,983,925 23,527,860
Reserves at June 30,2006 . . ... ...... ... ... v, 33,867,761 69,102,045
Purchases of minerals inplace . ................... 7,756,858 8,158,734
Extensions and discoveries . ... ... ... — 64,940,035
Sale of minerals inplace. ... ....... ... . ... ... (216,308)  (2,132,618)
Revisions of prior estimates . ..................... 1,204,567 7,712,363
Production . . ... ... o (283,054)  (1,440,894)
Reserves at June 30,2007 . .. ... ... .. .. .. 42,329,824 146,339,665
Proved developed reserves . ........... ... ... ... 6,554,961 28,450,252

The base prices used to compute the crude oil and natural gas reserves represent the NYMEX oil
and natural gas prices at June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. For the reserves at June 30, 2007,
the crude oil and natural gas prices were $70.47 per barrel and $6.40 per MMbtu, respectively. For the
reserves at June 30, 2006, the crude oil and natural gas prices were $73.94 per barrel and $5.83 per
MMbtu, respectively. For the reserves at June 30, 2005, the crude oil and natural gas prices were
$56.54 per barrel and $6.98 per MMbtu, respectively.

For the reserves at June 30, 2007 and 2006, the purchases of minerals in place pertain to our
acquisitions of oil and natural gas properties, which are discussed in greater detail at Note 3.

For the reserves at June 30, 2006, the above table identifies a 16,422,506 Mcf reduction in natural
gas reserves for revisions of prior estimates. Approximately 7,200,000 Mcf pertains to renegotiation of a
natural gas purchase contract that was not finalized at June 30, 2006; therefore, these reserves were
excluded at June 30, 2006, but were included in the reserve at June 30, 2007 since the natural gas
purchase contract was finalized. The remaining 9,224,523 Mef reduction is primarily due to the
reassessment of natural gas production from the planned waterflood implementation in the Panhandle
Field.

For the reserves at June 30, 2007, the extensions and discoverics pertain to our drilling and
completing wells in the Barnett Shale formation at our Desdemona Properties.
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Standardized Measure

The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows (“‘standardized measure”) and
changes in such cash flows are prepared using assumptions required by the FASB. Such assumptions
include the use of year-end prices for oil and natural gas and year-end costs for estimated future
development and production expenditures to produce year-end estimated proved reserves. Discounted
future net cash flows are calculated using a 10% rate.

As of June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005, estimated well abandonment costs, net of salvage, are
deducted from the standardized measure using year-end costs. Such abandonment costs are recorded as
a liability on the consolidated balance sheets, using estimated values of the projected abandonment
date and discounted using a risk-adjusted rate at the time the well is drilled or acquired.

The standardized measure does not represent management’s estimate of our future cash flows or
the value of proved oil and natural gas reserves. Probable and possible reserves, which may become
proved in the future, are excluded from the calculations. Furthermore, year-end prices used to
determine the standardized measure of discounted cash flows, are influenced by seasonal demand and
other factors and may not be the most representative in estimating future revenues or reserve data.

Price and cost revisions are primarily the net result of changes in year-end prices, based on
beginning of year reserve estimates. Quantity estimate revisions are primarily the result of the extended
economic life of proved reserves and proved undeveloped reserve additions attributable to increased
development activity.

Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Cash Flows:

The standardized measure of discounted estimated future net cash flows related to proved crude
oil and natural gas reserves for the yvears ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2007 2006 2005

Futurecashinflows ........................ $ 3,902,164,000 $2,812,728,000 § 222,665,000
Future production and development costs .. ...... (1,258,325,000)  (893,798,000) (123,360,000}
Future income taxes . . ... ... vnrnnnnnnns (920,000,000) (694,500,000}  (31,606,000)
Future net cash flows . ...................... 1,723,839,000  1,224,430,000 67,699,000
10% annual discount . ...................... (1,022,808,000) (881,966,000}  (37,160,000)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash

flows ... e $ 701,031,000 $ 342,464,000 $ 30,539,000
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Changes in Standardized Measure of Discounted Future Cash Flows:

The primary changes in the standardized measure of discounted estimated future net cash flows
for the years ended June 30, 2007, 2006 and 2005 are as follows:

Balance at beginning of year

Net changes in prices and production costs. . . . .

Net changes in future development costs
Sales of oil and gas produced, net
Purchases of reserves
Sales of reserves

Extensions and discoveries. .. ... ...........
Revisions of previous quantity estimates . . . . . . .

Previously estimated development costs incurred

Net change in income taxes . . ..............

Accretion of discount

2007 2006 2005
...... $342,464,000 $ 30,539,000 § 1,500,000
...... (7,186,000) 32,650,000 315,000
...... (91,588,000)  (48,006,000)  (1,680,000)
...... (15,765,000)  (10,247,000)  (2,409,000)
...... 174,645,000 575,835,000 43,280,000
...... (10,953,000) — —
...... 207,340,000 — —
...... 47,699,000  (19,929,000) 2,164,000
...... 43,802,000 7,760,000 1,985,000
...... (97,089,000)  (213,131,000)  (14,833,000)
...... 57,043,000 3,054,000 233,000
...... 50,619,000  (16,061,000) (16,000)

$701,031,000 $ 342,464,000 $ 30,539,000

14. SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

We derived the selected historical financial data in the table below from our unaudited interim
consolidated financial statements. The sum of net income per share by quarter may not equal the net
income per share for the year due to variations in the weighted average shares outstanding used in
computing such amounts. The historical data presented here are only a summary and should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statements, related notes and other financial information

included elsewhere in this annual report.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2007

Operating revenues from continuing operations . .

Operating income (loss) from continuing
operations
Loss from continuing operations

Income from discontinued operations, net of tax .
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock . . .
Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted . .

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006

Operating revenues from continuing operations . .

Operating income (loss) from continuing
operations

Net income (loss) from continuing operations . . .
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax .
Net income (loss) applicable to common stock . . .
Net income (loss) per share—basic and diluted . .

30-Sep

31-Dec

31-Mar

30-Jun
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C 133478 (424,659)  (1,587,287)
. (442914)  (530,281)  (2,250,689)
75,021 85,103 59,559
(636,492) (1,412,149) (3,158,102
(0.02) (0.04) (0.10)
$1,541,874 $ 2,625,499 $ 4,835,493

. (696,335)  (691,401) 39,201
(610,373)  (1,656,251) (1,207,722)
152,416 169,715 76,694
(457,957)  (1,486,536) (1,131,028)
(0.02) (0.06) (0.05)

$7,674,800 $ 6,157,932 §$ 5,883,454 $8,636,840

(320,439)

(210,507)
2,424,851
1,247,372
0.04

$6,857,690

254,119
1,144,442
86,655
1,231,097
0.05




OFFICERS

J[EFF JOHNSON

Chairman and CEO

Mr. Johnson brings over 17 years® experience in the
oil and gas business to Cano Petroleum. Starting his
career in corporate finance, he successfully raised
funds for oil and gas partnerships for Chesapeake
Energy’s South Texas projects. In 1993, Mr. Johnson
initiated his first independent oil and gas exploration

venture and arranged the purchase of Scope Operating.

Ine. in 1997. Afier assembling a diversified team

of key management personnel and oil and gas
consuliants, he was instrumental in the successful

sale of all of Scope’s producing propertics and assets.
Mr. Johnson serves as a member of the AMEX Listed
Council Company Board. He serves as a member of
the [ndependent Petroleum Association of America, as
well as the Texas Independent Producers and Royalty
Owners Associatiorn.

MORRIS B. “SAM”" SMITH

Senior Vice President and CFO

Mr. Smith was appointed a Director and Chairman

of our Audit Committee on March 22, 2008, and
served in such capacities until May 31, 2006. On
June 1, 2006, he began service as our Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer. From July 2004
until May 2006, he was a management consultant

for Ulterra Drilling Technotogies {formerly RBI
International, Ltd). In addition, from May 2005 10
August 2003, he served as the Chief Financial Officer
at Ulterra Drilling Technologies. From Ogctober 2004
to January 2005, he was the Inierim Chief Financial
Officer of Stroud Qil Propertics and was u consultant
from January 2004 to June 2004. From August .
2000, through December 31, 2003, Mr. Smith was
Executive Vice Prestdent, Chief Financial Officer and
‘I'reasurer of Encore Acquisition Company, where he
was also Corporate Secretary from December 2002
10 December 2003. From July 1996 to July 2000,

Mr. $mith held the positions of Vice President ol
Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Union Pacific
Rescurces.

PAT MCKINNEY

Senior Vice President of Engineering

and Operations

Mr. McK inney brings to the company more than 25
years of progressive oil and gas industry experience
in enginecring, operations, finance and strategic
planning. Most recently, he was the Worldwide
Strategic Porifolio Manager for Pioneer Natural
Resources, located in Irving, Texas. Prior to that,

Mr. McKinney was the co-founder and CFO of a
successfill transportation start-up and, subsequently,
president of a transportation subsidiary of Corrections
Corporation of America. Mr. McKinney spent more
than 17 years with Union Pacific Corp., where he
worked closely with Sam Smith, both in its corporate
headquarters and its oil and gas, transportation and
logistics subsidiarics. He gained extensive experience
in secondary and enhanced oil recovery at UPR’s
Wilmington Oilfield in California. Mr. MeKinney
received his Bachelor of Science degree in Petroleum
Engineering [rom the University of Wyoming and his
MBA from Pepperdine University.

MICHAEL ]. RICKETTS

Vice President and

Principal Accounting Officer

Mr. Ricketts is a Certified Public Accountant who

has 25 years of diversitied accounting and finance
experience with large public and private companies.
Prior to joining Cano Petroleum, he served as Treasury
Director and Controller with TNP Enterprises, Inc. and
its subsidianries Texas-New Mexico Power Company.
and First Choice Power Company. Mr. Rickeits

has also been employed by Union Pacific Resource
Company, an integrated oil and gas company, and
KPMG. Mr. Rickelts is a member of the Texas Soctety
of Centified Public Accountants, and scrved as a

past two-term president of the Fort Worth Treasury

Management Associalion.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Cano Petroleum Inc. is an independent Texas-
based energy producer with properties in the
mid-continent region of the United States.

Led by an experienced management team,
Cano's primary focus is on increasing domestic
production from proven fields using enhanced
recovery methods. Cano trades on the American
Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol CFW.
Additional information is available at
WWw,Canopetro.com.
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